
           

Planning and
Zoning Commission
Study Session

  
  

September 18, 2024 | 5:00 p.m.
Chandler City Council Chambers       
88 E. Chicago Street, Chandler AZ

  

  

Commission Members
Chair Rick Heumann
Vice Chair Sherri Koshiol
Commissioner Mike Quinn
Commissioner Kyle Barichello
Commissioner Rene Lopez
Commissioner Charlotte Golla
Commissioner Ryan Schwarzer

 
Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is
hereby given to the members of the Planning and Zoning Commission and to the general
public that the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a STUDY SESSION open to the
public on Wednesday, September 18, 2024, at 5:00 p.m., at City Council Chambers, 88 E.
Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ. One or more members of the Commission may attend this
meeting by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and
services by contacting the City Clerk's office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make
requests in advance as it affords the City time to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 4 Planning and Zoning Commission



Planning and Zoning Commission
Study Session Agenda - September 18, 2024

           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or
Commission from discussing an item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your
concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you raise.
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the Board or Commission, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

1. August 21, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
  Move Planning and Zoning Commission approve Planning and Zoning Commission

meeting minutes of the Study Session of the August 21, 2024 and Regular Meeting of
August 21, 2024.

 

2. Rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan, PLH24-0023 The District
Downtown, located at the Northwest corner of Arizona Avenue and the SanTan 202
Freeway

  Rezoning
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Rezoning PLH24-0023
The District Downtown, Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) for mixed
used development including multi-family, office, and commercial uses as permitted under
Community Commercial (C-2) to PAD for mixed uses including multi-family, office,
commercial uses permitted under the Community Commercial District (C-2) and
automobile and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay allowing for heights up to 120 feet,
subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Preliminary Development Plan
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH24-0023 The District Downtown for site layout and conceptual
building architecture, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

 

3. Rezoning, Preliminary Development Plan, and Preliminary Plat,
PLH24-0001/PLT24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown, located approximately 1/4 mile
north of the northeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Warner Road

  Rezoning

Page 2 of 4 Planning and Zoning Commission



  Rezoning
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Rezoning
PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown from Regional Commercial (C-3) to Planned Area
Development (PAD) for multi-family residential, subject to the conditions
as recommended by Planning staff. 

Preliminary Development Plan
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown for site layout and building
architecture, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Preliminary Plat
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary Plat,
PLT24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown, subject to the condition as recommended by
Planning staff.

 

4. Use Permit, PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Storage, generally located at the
southeast corner of Pecos and McQueen roads

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Use Permit
PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Storage to allow a self-storage facility on a property
zoned Community Commercial District (C-2), subject to the conditions as recommended
by Planning staff.

 

5. Entertainment Use Permit, PLH24-0022 The Mexicano, 3095 W Chandler
Boulevard, generally located at the southwest corner of Chandler Boulevard and
Price Road

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Entertainment Use
Permit PLH24-0022 The Mexicano to allow live indoor and outdoor entertainment,
speakers and tv screens, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

 

6. Preliminary Development Plan, PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch, 3999 S. Dobson
Road, located at the northeast corner of Dobson Road and Ocotillo Road

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch for modifications to existing
signage, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

 

7. Notice of Cancellation of the October 2, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission
Hearing

  Move Planning and Zoning Commission cancel the October 2, 2024, Planning and
Zoning Commission Hearing.

 

Discussion
 

Member Comments/Announcements
 

Page 3 of 4 Planning and Zoning Commission



Calendar
 

8. The next Study Session will be held before the Regular Meeting on Wednesday,
October 16, 2024, in the Chandler City Council Chambers, 88 E. Chicago Street,
Chandler, Arizona. 

  

 

Adjourn
 

Page 4 of 4 Planning and Zoning Commission



ITEM  1 

Planning & Zoning Commission      Development Services  Memo No. PZ
24-0055
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator
From: Julie San Miguel, Senior Administrative Assistant 
Subject: August 21, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission approve Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting minutes of the Study Session of the August 21, 2024 and
Regular Meeting of August 21, 2024.

Attachments
August 21, 2024 Study Session Minutes 
August 21, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes 













































ITEM  2 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. 24-052
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Lauren Schumann, Planning Senior Program Manager 
Subject: PLH24-0023 The District Downtown 
Request: Rezoning from Planned Area Development (PAD) for mixed uses including

multi-family, office, and commercial uses permitted under the Community
Commercial District (C-2) to PAD for mixed uses including multi-family,
office, commercial uses permitted under the Community Commercial District
(C-2) and automobile and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay allowing for
heights up to 120 feet

Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval for site layout and
conceptual building architecture
 

Location: Northwest corner of Arizona Avenue and the SanTan 202 Freeway
Applicant:Brennan Ray; Burch & Cracchiolo, P.A. 

Proposed Motion:
Rezoning
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Rezoning
PLH24-0023 The District Downtown, Rezoning from Planned Area Development
(PAD) for mixed used development including multi-family, office, and commercial
uses as permitted under Community Commercial (C-2) to PAD for mixed uses
including multi-family, office, commercial uses permitted under the Community
Commercial District (C-2) and automobile and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay
allowing for heights up to 120 feet, subject to the conditions as recommended by
Planning staff.

Preliminary Development Plan



Preliminary Development Plan
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH24-0023 The District Downtown for site layout and
conceptual building architecture, subject to the conditions as recommended by
Planning staff.

Background Data:
Site 44.7 acres and vacant
Subject site received PAD zoning for office, retail, and hotel uses in 1987 as
part of a larger master plan that included the adjacent Stonebridge Ranch
Apartment Complex
Zoning extended in 1989 and vested when the apartments were constructed
in 2000 
Zoning amended in 2007 to allow a Mid-Rise overlay with heights up to 120
feet for the entire site
Time extension was approved in 2010 
A rezoning to add multi-family residential within the mixed-use development
occurred in 2022 with stipulations pertaining to phasing of development 
The applicant requests rezoning to add automobile and truck sales to
permitted uses within the mixed-use development, eliminate phasing
stipulations, and revised the most western multi-family from a
wrapped parking garage to surface parked development
Proposed PDP establishes where uses can occur and conceptual building
renderings are provided to establish quality of design; a Mid-Rise Overlay is
permitted over the entire site allowing building heights up to 120 feet
If approved, mixed-uses include two multi-family developments totaling 800
units, two office buildings, two hotels, two automotive dealerships, and
supporting commercial retail at the street intersection

 

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Pecos Road, then
multi-family  South SanTan 202 Freeway, then

commercial shopping center 

East
Arizona Avenue, then
commercial shopping
center 

West Multi-family 

General Plan and Area Plan Designations



  Existing Proposed
General
Plan

Neighborhoods within Downtown Chandler Growth
Area

No Change 

Proposed Development
  Proposed Land Uses 
Parcel 1
9.19 acres  Two automobile and truck dealerships 

Parcel 2 
8.93 acres 

Commercial Uses including retail,
restaurants, maximum of three drive-thru
pads, and common outdoor community
space  
Approximately 45,115 square feet
commercial uses 

Parcel 3 
4.73 acres 

Office-Two 2-story offices with outdoor
plaza and parking 
Approximately 72,8000 square feet office

Parcel 4 
6.02 acres

Multi-family residential 400 units; density
66.4 du/ac
Units wrap parking garage 

Parcel 5 
12.35
acres 

Multi-family residential 400 units; density
32.4 du/ac
Surface parked  

Parcel 6 &
7 
4.01 acres 

Two hotels each with 98 rooms; totaling
196 hotel rooms 

 

Review and Recommendation
The subject site has been zoned for mixed-use development since 1987 and a
Mid-Rise Overlay allowing for heights up to 120 feet since 2007. The site is the
last undeveloped quadrant of the San Tan 202 Freeway/Arizona Avenue
interchange and occupies all vacant land bounded by Arizona Avenue, Pecos
Road, existing multi-family to the west, and the San Tan 202 Freeway. The other
three interchange quadrants have been developed as retail power centers
anchored by large box retailers. The applicant proposes to complete this
intersection with a mixed-use development including residential, office, and
commercial uses. 



commercial uses. 

Within the 2022 zoning case, stipulations were added to ensure more than one
use would develop. Stipulations stated a portion of commercial must develop prior
to first phase of multi-family and all commercial buildings along
Arizona Avenue were required to be built before the second phase of multi-family
could occur. The developer has asked the phasing stipulations be removed to
maintain flexibility while attracting potential tenant(s), and allow the property to
develop under market demand. The developer has provided a phasing plan;
within the first phase, all landscaping along Arizona Avenue and Pecos Road will
be installed and the internal 'main street' will be built. The main internal drive
has been revised to a curvilinear design with a focal point of open space between
the different uses and tree-lined sidewalks will be provided throughout the
development for connectivity. The second phase would include the commercial
corner at Arizona Avenue and Pecos Road, one hotel, and the multi-family located
along the western property line. The proposed multi-family development under
phase two is surface parked and compatible with the existing surfaced parked
multi-family to the immediate west. The new design shifts the buildings further to
the east fronting onto the internal main street. The surface parked multi-family
development will encompass the entire western property.

The applicant requests to add automobile and truck sales to the permitted uses,
which are permitted by right within properties zoned Regional Commercial (C-3)
district. The proposed dealerships are adjacent to the SanTan 202 Freeway and
could accommodate potentially two different dealerships. The revenue from the
vehicle sales could benefit the City and help with deficits from lost multi-family
revenue. Staff is proposing a stipulation allowing only franchise dealerships,
which have exclusive rights to sell new vehicles to the public for a specific
manufacturer or brand. Franchise dealerships provide a larger selection of new
vehicles and provide some used vehicles. The proposed dealerships request a
digital sign along Arizona Avenue, which is consistent with signage permitted at
other auto dealerships along the freeway within Chandler. 

The applicant has included conceptual renderings and exhibits to establish the
required level of quality and design for buildings, hard scape, and landscaping.
Upon identifying the tenant and respective building needs, the applicant will submit
for Administrative Design Review for site and building design. Staff will review the
administrative submittal for consistency with the renderings, conceptual imagery,
narrative, stipulations, and City Code. The conceptual Development Booklet and
stipulations will result in a high-quality mixed-use development to complete the
intersection and entrance to the downtown area. 



Planning staff has reviewed and supports the request citing consistency with the
General Plan and goals of the Downtown Chandler Growth Area. The District
Downtown will create a sense of place through site layout by providing a main
street boulevard with tree-lined sidewalks, building awnings, patio areas, public
outdoor plaza areas, landscaping, and cohesive architecture. Since 1987, the
subject site has been intended to develop with employment uses and supporting
commercial uses. The request will continue this vision and improve by adding a
residential component of 800 units to further supplement the commercial during
the non-office hours. Furthermore, the subject site has allowed for building heights
up to 120 feet since 2007. Staff continues to support the request for Mid-Rise
Overlay allowing building heights up to 120 feet as the property abuts the freeway
and a major intersection. 

Planning staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the General Plan and
recommends approval subject to conditions.

Traffic Analysis
A Traffic Impact Study was submitted to the City's Transportation Engineer and
accepted. The developer will install a new signal along Pecos Road at Palm Lane
to allow for better access to the site and circulation within and around the
development. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
The neighborhood meeting was held on July 10, 2024. Four
residents attended, asking general questions of the project including traffic,
proposed uses, and construction timelines. 
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any concerns or
opposition to the request. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval:
Rezoning
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of Rezoning from PAD for mixed used development
including multi-family, office, and commercial uses permitted under Community
Commercial (C-2) to PAD for mixed uses including multi-family, office, commercial
uses permitted under the Community Commercial District (C-2) and automobile
and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay allowing for heights up to 120 feet,



and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay allowing for heights up to 120 feet,
subject to the following conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the conceptual plans
included in the Development Booklet, entitled, "The District Downtown" and
kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH24-0023,
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or
supplemented by Chandler City Council.
 

1.

Building heights shall not exceed 120 (one hundred and twenty) feet in height
as measured to the top of parapet of the building façade.
 

2.

Residential density shall be permitted up to a maximum density of forty (40)
dwelling units per acre for Parcel 5 and seventy (70) dwelling units per acre
for Parcel 4.  
 

3.

Uses permitted within the office buildings include general office and medical
office.  Medical office shall be contingent upon compliance with minimum
parking requirements per Zoning Code section 35-1804 Parking Schedule. 
 

4.

Users for the automobile and truck sales shall be limited to franchise
dealerships only. Franchise dealerships are those dealerships that (a) meet
the definition of a “franchisee” under A.R.S. 28-4301, (b) have received a
New Motor Vehicle Dealer license from the Arizona Motor Vehicle Division to
sell new vehicles, and (c) have the legal right to sell new vehicles to the
public for a specific manufacturer or brand.
 

5.

Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements
including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks,
median improvements and street lighting, to achieve conformance with City
codes, standard details, and design manuals.
 

6.

Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and
deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.
 

7.

The developer shall be required to install landscaping in the arterial street
median(s) adjoining this project. In the event that the landscaping already
exists within such median(s) the developer shall be required to upgrade such
landscaping to meet current City Standards.
 

8.

The landscaping and all other improvements in all open-spaces shall be9.



maintained by the property owner or property owners' association and shall
be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of planting.
 
The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent
property owner or property owners' association.
 

10.

Minimum building setbacks shall be as follows: 
Property Line Location  Minimum Building Setback
Arizona Avenue 30 feet 
Pecos Road  30 feet 
West  20 feet 
South  10 feet 

11.

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions: 

 Development shall be in substantial conformance with the conceptual plans
included in the Development Booklet, entitled, "The District Downtown" and
kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH24-0023,
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or
supplemented by Chandler City Council.  
 

1.

A separate Preliminary Development Plan application shall be required for the
proposed multi-family on Parcel 4. 
 

2.

In the event that a different use, other than automobile and truck sales,
proposes to develop on Parcel 1, a separate Preliminary Development Plan
application will be required.
 

3.

As part of the Administrative Design Review process, where staff
determines the proposed site improvements do not achieve a
high-quality interconnected mixed-use development, the request may be
reverted to Council for approval of a revised Preliminary Development Plan. 
 

4.

As part of the Administrative Design Review process, where staff determines
that the proposed building design does not achieve a high-quality
architectural design as rendered in exhibits within the Development Booklet,
the request may be reverted to Council for approval of a revised Preliminary

5.



Development Plan. 
 
Phase 1 shall include all off-site improvements, landscaping along Arizona
Avenue and Pecos Road, and internal drive through the site, as depicted in
the Phasing exhibit. 
 

6.

The development shall be in compliance with current Commercial Design
Standards and Parking Schedule, unless indicated within the "The District
Downtown" development booklet. 
 

7.

Tree-lined sidewalks connecting all uses within the development shall be
provided.
 

8.

A minimum of one passenger loading area shall be provided for each 
multi-family parcel, office, and one for each commercial parcel.  
 

9.

Electric vehicle charging stations shall be provided in each commercial parcel
and a minimum of two electric vehicle charging stations shall be provided per
residential building.
 

10.

All roof-mounted mechanical equipment shall be fully screened on all sides by
top of parapet. Said screening shall be architecturally integrated with the
building.
 

11.

The developer shall provide a porte cochère at the entrance of each hotel.  
 

12.

Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final
Development Plan approval; compliance with the details required by all
applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler and this Preliminary
Development Plan shall apply.
 

13.

Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street
medians) and perimeter walls shall be approved by the Planning
Administrator.
 

14.

Fifty percent of the trees planted along Arizona Avenue and Pecos Road shall
be a minimum of 36-inch box and 12-feet in height at the time of planting. 
 

15.

The mesquite tree species shall be replaced with another species from the 
City approved low-water use plant list.
 

16.

Except as shown in the Development Booklet, all signs shall comply with17.



Chapter 39, Sign Code, of the Chandler City Code. 
 
The proposed digital monument sign shall only be utilized by the permitted
automobile and truck dealerships on Parcel 1. 
 

18.

Signage shall be designed in coordination with landscape plans, planting
materials, storm water basins, site contours, utility pedestals, and other site
appurtenances or features so as not to create problems with sign visibility or
prompt the removal of required or proposed landscaping. Building signage
shall be architecturally coordinated with the respective  façade. 
 

19.

The monument sign’s sign panels shall have an integrated or decorative
cover panel until a tenant name is added to the sign.
 

20.

The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.21.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet 
2022 Approved Site Plan 



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W PECOS RD
S P

AL
M 

LN
E PECOS RD

W SANTAN - SR202L FW

E KESLER LN

E MORELOS ST

S N
EB

RA
SK

A S
T

S C
AL

IFO
RN

IA 
ST

E SANTAN - SR202L FW

W KESLER LN

W REMINGTON DR

W MORELOS ST

W LONGHORN DR

W GERONIMO ST

W SARAGOSA ST

S C
OL

OR
AD

O 
ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Project Details
REZONE & PDP
44.7 Acres
Mixed-Use Multi-Family, Office,
Community Commercial, and automobile
and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay
allowing for heights up to 120 feet

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0023 The District Downtown ´

^

Pecos Rd.

PAD
Crosswinds
Apartments

SF-8.5

PAD
Stonebridge

Ranch
Apartments

I-1

PAD

C-3

PAD

C-3 I-2

PAD

AG-1Santan/202 Fwy.

MF-1 MF-2 MF-2

SF-8.5
Kesler

Addition

MF-2
Winns

Addition

MF-2

Chieftan Village

PAD
Almaschool

Place
PAD



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

W PECOS RD
S P

AL
M 

LN
E PECOS RD

W SANTAN - SR202L FW

E KESLER LN

E MORELOS ST

S N
EB

RA
SK

A S
T

S C
AL

IFO
RN

IA 
ST

E SANTAN - SR202L FW

W KESLER LN

W REMINGTON DR

W MORELOS ST

W LONGHORN DR

W GERONIMO ST

W SARAGOSA ST

S C
OL

OR
AD

O 
ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Project Details
REZONE & PDP
44.7 Acres
Mixed-Use Multi-Family, Office,
Community Commercial, and automobile
and truck sales with a Mid-Rise Overlay
allowing for heights up to 120 feet

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0023 The District Downtown ´

^

Pecos Rd.

PAD
Crosswinds
Apartments

SF-8.5

PAD
Stonebridge

Ranch
Apartments

I-1

PAD

C-3

PAD

C-3 I-2

PAD

AG-1Santan/202 Fwy.

MF-1 MF-2 MF-2

SF-8.5
Kesler

Addition

MF-2
Winns

Addition

MF-2

Chieftan Village

PAD
Almaschool

Place
PAD



 
 

Planned Area Development 
 

and 

 
Preliminary Development Plan 

 
 
 
 
 

The District Downtown 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Northwest Corner of 
Arizona Avenue and Loop 202 

 
by: 

 
Meridian West AZ/202, LLC 

 
 

Case No: PLH24-0023 
 

Submitted:  June 4, 2024 
Updated: September 4, 2024 
Updated: September 11, 2024



 i 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
I. Introduction ......................................................................................................................... 1 

II. Site, Surrounding Area, and Existing Zoning ..................................................................... 1 

III. Proposed Planned Area Development ................................................................................ 1 

IV. Proposed Preliminary Development Plan ........................................................................... 1 

A. Site Layout .......................................................................................................................... 1 

B. Architecture......................................................................................................................... 3 

C. Landscaping Theme and Design Considerations ................................................................ 4 

D. Entry Monumentation and Screening ................................................................................. 4 

E. Development Standards ...................................................................................................... 4 

F. Multi-Family Design Standards .......................................................................................... 5 

G. Circulation........................................................................................................................... 6 

H. Parking ................................................................................................................................ 6 

V. Miscellaneous ..................................................................................................................... 6 

A. Comprehensive Sign Plan ................................................................................................... 6 

B. Phasing ................................................................................................................................ 7 

C. Utilities ................................................................................................................................ 7 

D. Grading and Drainage ......................................................................................................... 7 

VI. Project Team ....................................................................................................................... 7 

VII. Conclusion .......................................................................................................................... 8 

 

  



 ii 

TABLE OF EXHIBITS 
 
 

Exhibit No.  Description 

1 Aerial & Vicinity Map 

2 Conceptual Site Plan 

3 Non-Residential Building Perspectives 

4 Multi-Family Residential Concept 

5 Colors & Materials Palette 

6 Landscape & Open Space Character 

7 Conceptual Master Plan – Plant Palette 

8 Comprehensive Sign Plan 

9 Conceptual Phasing Plan 

10 Conceptual Grading & Drainage 
 



 1 

 
THE DISTRICT DOWNTOWN 

I. INTRODUCTION 
Meridian West AZ/202, LLC (“Meridian West”) is the owner of The District Downtown, 

an exciting mixed-use development on approximately 49.30± gross (44.73± net) acres (the “Site”) 
at the northwest corner of Arizona Avenue and the Loop 202 Freeway.  See Exhibit 1, Aerial & 
Vicinity Map.  The District Downtown will be a high-quality, dynamic mixed-used development 
containing a mix of office, commercial, and multi-family uses.  The design, layout, and theming 
create a high-quality development that will be a recognizable presence and strong, viable 
development for the City of Chandler (the “City”) given its location proximate to the Loop 202, 
the Price Road Corridor, and Chandler Airport.  The District Downtown creates shopping and 
employment opportunities in the immediate area and is anticipated to improve the City’s jobs-to-
population ratio while at the same time provide much needed housing to the City and immediate 
area. To achieve this, Meridian West seeks rezone the Site to Planned Area Development (PAD) 
and Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) approval.   
II. SITE, SURROUNDING AREA, AND EXISTING ZONING 

The Site is designated on the City’s General Plan as Neighborhoods and lies within the 
Downtown Chandler Growth Area.  Within the Neighborhood designation, mixed-use 
development containing residential, commercial, and/or office can be considered at the intersection 
of major arterials, freeway interchanges with arterial streets, commercial areas, Downtown, and 
high-capacity transit corridors.  Urban residential exceeding 18 du/ac. can be considered in 
Downtown, in regional commercial areas, and within designated high-capacity transit corridors.  
The Site is zoned PAD Mixed-Use for a range of uses including commercial, office, and multi-
family residential.   

Arizona Avenue is designated as a High-Capacity Transit Corridor.  High-capacity transit 
corridors are appropriate locations for the development of high-intensity, mixed-land uses. Such 
developments would create opportunities for living within walking distance of schools, stores, and 
restaurants. For some people this means less travel time, cost savings and convenience, and better 
quality of life. 

The Downtown Chandler Growth Area includes the historic Downtown square and extends 
south to the Loop 202.  This Growth Area encourages a vibrant live, work, and play atmosphere.  
It additionally encourages developing the Growth Area with higher densities, mixed-uses, and 
transit-oriented development.   

The proposed high-quality, mixed-used development is consistent with the General Plan, 
High-Capacity Transit Corridor, and the Downtown Chandler Growth Area. 
III. PROPOSED PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT  

Meridian West requests the Site be rezoned from PAD Mixed-Use to PAD Mixed-Use for 
a range of uses including commercial (Any use or similar use in the C-2 District of the City’s 
Zoning Ordinance, including automobile and truck sales); office (professional, business, 
administrative, executive, and other offices); and multi-family residential.   
IV. PROPOSED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

A. Site Layout  
The District Downtown is designed as a high-quality, mixed-use development that will 

create vital employment, retail, and housing opportunities at the gateway to Downtown Chandler, 



 2 

adjacent to major transportation corridors (Arizona Avenue/State Route 87 and the Loop 202), and 
near the City’s primary employment areas (Price Road Corridor and the Chandler Airpark).  See 
Exhibit 2, Conceptual Site Plan.   

The District Downtown is organized around a uniform street network which connects to a 
centralized main street that terminates at a central park and open space area, then continues 
throughout the Site in an appropriate manner that provides clear, distinctive routes for both 
vehicles and pedestrians to the planned uses.  The centralized main street links to Arizona Avenue 
which compresses as it enters the Site to slow traffic down and create a pedestrian friendly 
environment.  Thoughtfully planned pedestrian experiences are placed throughout the site using 
organic and structural shade elements. This provides opportunities for shaded seating, where 
enhanced decorative paving and patterned landscape invite patrons, residents, or employees to 
enjoy the urban environment.  Pedestrian connections are planned between the different uses 
through defined paths, further emphasizing the mixed-use nature of the development.  Unique to 
the development is an open space/park area near the west end of the main street, near the 
commercial retail uses.  This area may contain design elements and features such as a shaded 
seating, urban street furniture, patterned landscape, and decorative lighting to attract individuals, 
couples, and families to the development.  

Commercial uses are conveniently located on the eastern most portion of the Site with 
additional access points provided along Pecos Road.  Retail commercial buildings are planned to 
be oriented along the central main street as well as Arizona Avenue, locating the majority of the 
parking internal to the Site.  In the south-central portion of the site, hotel uses are planned.  This 
use is located near the freeway corridor for higher visibility and scale.  Two, 2-story offices are 
planned along Pecos Road, with an additional multi-family parcel centrally located on the Site, 
south of the offices.  The intentional layout allows for transitions in land use from the west to the 
east.  Specific details on proposed development, uses, etc. are found in Exhibit 2. 

This PDP depicts the general layout (“Site Plan”), general appearance (“Elevations”), and 
theming (“Theming”) of The District Downtown, but it does not restrict uses or buildings to the 
building locations or square footages as depicted on the Site Plan or appearance as depicted by the 
Elevations or Theming.  Adjustments in Site Plan configuration to accommodate change in uses, 
alternative building design or geometry, layout of buildings within the Site, pedestrian and 
vehicular circulation within the Site, parking or other Site specific criteria as well as, adjustments 
in buildings floor area, and changes in the building architecture and theming will be allowed as 
long as each final building or buildings and individual lots and theming within the Site: (1) meets 
the general intent of the proposed Site Plan; (2) meets the level of quality and finish represented 
in the proposed building elevations of the Elevations and Theming; (3) comply with the below 
Design Guidelines; (4) use the colors and materials identified on the Color and Materials Palette 
or use compatible colors and materials as identified on the Color and Materials Palette; (5) provide 
code required parking stalls or demonstrate conformance with the City’s shared parking 
requirements; and (6) meet building setbacks as required by the City’s Zoning Ordinance or as 
otherwise identified in this PAD.  Actual building footprints, layout within a lot or lots’ 
developable area, and theming shall be determined administratively through the Administrative 
Design Review approval processes.   

Notwithstanding the preceding, a separate Preliminary Development Plan must be 
submitted and approved by the City Council for the proposed multi-family development on Parcel 
4 as shown on Exhibit 2, Conceptual Site Plan. 



 3 

B. Architecture 
Non-Residential 
The overall theme of the non-residential buildings is an interpretation of a modern 

southwest look.  See Exhibit 3, Non-Residential Building Perspective.  The buildings incorporate 
large overhangs for sun screening and to create shaded areas for pedestrians and occupants.  The 
2-story office buildings feature roof top decks with shaded outdoor areas.  Landscape boxes are 
utilized to drape planting materials over the building façade at the balcony locations and at the 
upper pedestrian walkway connecting the two buildings.  A significant amount of glass and steel 
is utilized in the building facades to give a modern tech look while still maintaining a design theme 
consistent with surrounding structures.  The commercial/retail buildings are designed to be 
pedestrian friendly with seating areas and shading for protection from the direct sun.  Certain 
elements from the site sign design package are utilized and incorporated into the building design 
as well. This can be seen in areas such as the exterior column details on the office and commercial 
buildings. This helps to create a cohesive and comprehensive overall development plan. 

Building materials are similar and consistent.  Window sizes reflect a more appropriate 
sizing for the intended use and incorporate overhangs for sun screening.  Building materials 
include natural stone, composite metal panels, Hardie panels and EIFS where appropriate, and a 
generous use of glass and aluminum storefront windows on the commercial buildings and curtain 
walls on the office buildings.  Colors range from light and dark earth tones to incorporate the 
surrounding Sonoran Desert background, to modern metallic blues and greys to signify a new 
state-of-the -art development.  See Exhibit 5, Color & Materials Palette. 

Residential 
The building architecture is anticipated to include varied massing, varying roof parapets, 

architectural features, stoops, materials, and façade detailing found in many modern, contemporary 
luxury multi‐family developments found in the Phoenix Metro-area and Southwest region.  See 
Exhibit 4, Multi-Family Residential Concept.  The building massing includes a series of towers 
and recessed facades and patios.  The massing and detailing emphasize the promotion of pedestrian 
activity via lighting, trees, and shade structures (such as awnings and roof overhangs).  The color 
scheme is a blend of shades of brown, white,  and tan with some complementary accent colors 
found within the Sonoran Desert color palette and is consistent and appropriate with the 
surrounding building context. 

Architectural Design Guidelines 
To ensure the future building elevations are designed consistent with the expectations set 

forth in the PDP, Meridian West proposes the following design guidelines.  These design 
guidelines are intended to create a cohesive, attractive, and appropriate architectural statement.  
The guidelines provided in this document are not absolute, but are general statements aimed at 
setting forth the design expectations: 

• All building elevations should maintain the same visual integrity, cohesiveness, and 
design detail.   

• All building elevations should consider the use of multiple heights, wall planes, 
masses, and exterior materials along with natural elements, and complementary 
colors and texture to other building elevations within the Site. 

• All building elevations should incorporate elements of the building elevations 
approved in this PDP.  Where building elevations may expand in scale, simple relief 
may be used by including various architectural features such as an EIFS relief, a 
wainscot system, change in material or color on the surface that will be expanded 



 4 

(where one building plane meets another, a change in material or color will add 
interest). 

• Building elevations should be designed to respond to the harsh southwest climate 
and oriented to recognize the value of appropriate landscaping and cooling 
requirements in harmony with the environment. 

• Human scale massing and proportions should complement the building elevation 
function and the design should be harmonious with adjoining developments. 

• Canopies, arcades, and overhangs should be designed to create places of refuge for 
pedestrians and to create interest within the building design. 

• Landscape buffers will be designed for the street edges and to emphasize the points 
of entry into the development. 

• Identify internal crosswalks with changes in paving materials, signs, or paint 
striping. 

The design of the future building elevations and theming may be administratively approved 
by Staff upon a finding that the proposed building elevations and theming are substantially 
consistent with the Non-Residential Building Perspectives (Exhibit 3), Multi-Family Residential 
Concept (Exhibit 4), and these Architectural Design Guidelines.   

C. Landscaping Theme and Design Considerations 
The overall landscape theme incorporates low water use, regionally appropriate plant 

material that is suitable for the Sonoran Desert to create an attractive experience for those who 
work, shop, and live at The District Downtown as well as those travelling along the Loop 202, 
Arizona Avenue, and Pecos Road.  The landscaping theme draws from urban forms aimed to 
complement the scale and texture of the buildings.  See Exhibit 6, Landscape & Open Space 
Character.  The design is intended to include striking patterns and layering of plant material at 
entries and pedestrian spaces to emphasize key pedestrian and vehicular routes. Trees will be 
placed along the streets in formal patterns to provided much needed shade on sidewalks to create 
a unique aesthetic with contrasting canopies and understory planting.  The overall cohesive design 
will establish The District Downtown as a destination within the south downtown area of Chandler. 

All of the plant species proposed adhere to the Arizona Department of Water Resources, 
“Low Water Use Plant List” in order to incorporate native and hybrid arid region vegetation into 
the landscape.  See Exhibit 7, Conceptual Master Plan – Plant Palette.  All of the landscape 
within the boundary of the Site will be watered on an automatic drip irrigation system. 

D. Entry Monumentation and Screening 
Entry monumentation and signage for the Site will be designed to complement the overall 

building architecture. Scale, both horizontal and vertical, will be used, where appropriate, to 
emphasize primary access points and landmark features. Colors and materials proposed will 
highlight the quality and level of finish of the building elevations.  

Proper screening of the parking areas will be accomplished through earthen berms and 
decorative walls that have been designed to complement the building and utilizing varying colors 
and textures arranged in an attractive design.   

E. Development Standards 
Meridian West is proposing the following development standards: 



 5 

Regulation Development Standard 
Building Height (max.) 120 ft., inclusive of parapet walls, mechanical 

equipment, and screening 
Building Setback (min.) 

- Front (Arizona Ave.) 

- Side (Pecos Rd.) 

- Side (Loop 202) 

- Rear (west) 

30 ft. 
30 ft. 
10 ft. 
20 ft. 

Landscape Setback (min.) 
- Front (Arizona Ave.) 

- Side (Pecos Rd.) 

- Side (Loop 202) 

- Rear (west) 

20 ft. 
20 ft. 
10 ft. 
20 ft. 

Lot Coverage1 (max.) 60 % 
Residential Density1 Parcel 4 – 67 du/ac 

Parcel 5 – 33 du/ac 
Perimeter Parking Screen Wall Height  3 ft. 

F. Multi-Family Design Standards 
The City’s Zoning Ordinance sets forth additional requirements for multi-family 

development to encourage creative and innovative design techniques, quality, and merit.  The 
District Downtown provides the following: 

1.  Open Space 
The requirements for common and private open space are based on traditional suburban 

development and do not consider developing in an urban-like setting. Great care has been taken to 
ensure the usable common open space far exceeds what the City’s Code would otherwise require.  
The anticipated amenities throughout the development and within the common open spaces in this 
urban-like setting provide better opportunities for residents and guests to interact with each other.  
Usable common open space and recreation area at the rate of 125 square feet per bedroom at a 
minimum width of 12 feet shall be provided.  Private open space shall be a minimum of 4 feet in 
diameter for patios and balconies.  This area will be an average of 4’x12’ for a total of 48 sq. ft. 
per patio/balcony.  

2.  Site Circulation and Parking 
Safe and convenient pedestrian circulation to and from parking lots throughout the 

development must provided.  Code-required parking spaces and ADA van accessible spaces shall 
provided.  Parking canopy covers must be architecturally integrated with the surrounding 
structures, i.e., color, materials, location, and 10-inch minimum fascia (all four sides). 

3.  Amenity Options 
Six amenities are required to be provided in accordance with the following schedule: 260 

units or larger.  Because of the urban, in-fill nature of the Site and proposed community, the amount 
and quality of amenities shall strive to satisfy the spirit and intent of needing to provide a second 
pool, ramada, etc.   

4.  Interface with Single-Family Areas 

 
1 Calculated on the overall Site and not on an individual parcel. 



 6 

There are no single-family areas adjacent to the Site.  
5.  Specific design attention areas 

The design of courtyards and pedestrian areas must relate to the “human scale.”  Large 
unvaried building facades shall be avoided.  Common open spaces, rather than parking lots, shall 
be used as central features.   

6.  Energy conservation 
The residential development shall provide shading for the buildings through overhangs 

and/or trees and shade trees along drives, building perimeters, and where appropriate.  Additional 
building shading may be provided through the use of inset patios and balconies, metal canopies to 
shade windows, and the use of landscaping. 

7.  Landscaping 
The amount of landscaping shall be of sufficient intensity to create a pleasant and 

comfortable living environment.  Special attention shall be given to the areas that are highly visible 
to the public to create an upscale landscape experience.  

8.  Building Standards 
Mechanical equipment shall be fully screened through the use of parapet walls on the 

building elevations.  
9.  Lighting 

Lighting will comply with the City’s Zoning Code.  External lighting will be appropriately 
located and designed to prevent light from spilling onto adjacent properties.  

  10.  Signage 
See the discussion in Section V.A for details concerning signage. 
G. Circulation 
The District Downtown has been planned to ensure efficient on-site circulation and 

appropriate access to the public street system surrounding the Site.  Access to Site will occur as 
follows: full access will be provided on Pecos Road at the alignment of Palm Lane, along Arizona 
Avenue at the alignment of the Walmart driveway (a signalized intersection). Limited access will 
be provided at three additional driveways for the proposed development; two on  Pecos Road and 
one on Arizona Avenue. 

H. Parking 
A total of 2,178 parking spaces are required and 2,183 spaces are provided.  For 

commercial uses, the minimum parking ratio shall be 5.5 spaces per 1,000. 
V. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Comprehensive Sign Plan 
The Comprehensive Sign Plan is attached as Exhibit 8.  The Comprehensive Sign Plan 

addresses both permanent identification and temporary marketing requirements and has been 
designed to complement the quality of the employment, commercial, and residential components.  
To the extent the proposed comprehensive sign plan conflicts with the City’s Sign Code, we 
request the Comprehensive Sign Plan set forth in this booklet be followed.   



 7 

B. Phasing 
The District Downtown is preliminarily anticipating developing in multiple phases as 

identified on Exhibit 9, Conceptual Phasing Plan, and as follows: 

• Phase 1 will be the off-site perimeter improvements along Pecos Road and Arizona 
Avenue and the main access drive from Arizona Avenue and Pecos Road.   

• Phase 2 will be the commercial development along Arizona Avenue and Pecos 
Road in Parcel 2, one of the two hotels in Parcels 6 and 7, and the multi-family 
development in Parcel 5. 

• A Preliminary Development Plan must be submitted and approved by the City 
Council for the proposed multi-family development on Parcel 4. 

• The balance of the development will be developed according to market demand. 

• Any changes to the Conceptual Phasing Plan must be approved by the City Council. 
C. Utilities 
The onsite water, fire and sewer lines will be private except for a public water loop 

connecting existing mains in Arizona Avenue, Pecos Road, and the existing apartments to the west.  
The City has requested that the connection to the apartment be completed as part of this project to 
enhance the existing water pressures in the complex.  The public water loop will comply with the 
City’s requirements.  

D. Grading and Drainage 
The Conceptual Grading and Drainage Plan is attached as Exhibit 10.  Development of 

the Site will provide retention for the 100-year, 2-hour storm event plus 10% in accordance with 
City of Chandler standards for site development. 
VI. PROJECT TEAM 
Owner/Developer:     Meridian West AZ/202, LLC 

Attn:  Greg Gienko  
 PO Box 15270 

Phoenix, AZ  85060 
Architect (Non-Residential):   Neri Architects 
       Attn:  Guido Neri 
        Michi Mho 

 6400 N Northwest Hwy, Suite 4 
Chicago, IL 60631 

Planning/Landscape:    ABLA 
       Attn: Andy Baron 
        Jim Beckman 

310 E. Rio Salado Parkway 
Tempe, AZ 85281 

Traffic Engineer:     Lokahi 
       Attn:  Jamie Blakeman 
       10555 N. 114th Street, Suite 105,  

Scottsdale, AZ 85259   
Zoning:      Burch & Cracchiolo, P.A. 
       Attn:  Brennan Ray 



 8 

        Madison Leake 
       1850 North Central Avenue, Suite 1700 
       Phoenix, Arizona  85004 
       Phone: (602) 234-8794 
VII. CONCLUSION 

The District Downtown is a high-quality, exciting employment, commercial, and 
residential mixed-use development that will complement the surrounding area and provide a 
recognizable presence in the rapidly developing employment area.  The development presents the 
opportunity to create a dynamic mixed-used development with a variety of compatible and 
supportive uses.  We request your approval of this PAD and PDP amendment. 

       Meridian West AZ/202, LLC 
      



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 1 



DISTRICT DOWNTOWN
Aerial ABLASTUDIO.COM

N

Date:Plan Scale
20' 40'

20'1: 06-16-2022

PECOS ROAD

AR
IZ

ON
A 

AV
EN

UE

LOOP 202
VICINITY  MAP NOT TO SCALE

N

AL
M

A 
SC

HO
OL

 R
D

AR
IZ

ON
A 

AV
E

M
CQ

UE
EN

   
   

RD

FRYE RD

PECOS RD

SANTAN FWY

GERMANN RD

202

PROJECT SITE



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 2 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 3 



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.5

Typical Retail/Restaurant 



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.6

Typical Retail/Restaurant 



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.3

Typical Retail/Restaurant 



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.4

Typical Retail/Restaurant 



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.8

Typical Retail/Restaurant Courtyard 



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.2

Typical Retail



8/17/2022 4:58:41 PM
2221

AC-6.5.1

Typical Retail



6/17/2022 4:30:16 PM
2221

AC-6.6.1

Typical Office



6/17/2022 4:30:16 PM
2221

AC-6.6.2

Typical Office



6/17/2022 4:30:17 PM
2221

AC-6.6.3

Typical Office



6/17/2022 4:30:17 PM
2221

AC-6.6.4

Typical Office



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 4 



12

CHANDLER AZ  |   05.20.2024
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICT DOWNTOWN
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL CONCEPT



13

CHANDLER AZ  |   05.20.2024
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL

DISTRICT DOWNTOWN
MULTIFAMILY RESIDENTIAL CONCEPT



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 5 



8/17/2022 4:15:19 PM
2221

AC-3.3.3

ALUMINUM CANOPY ALUMINUM RAILING

ALUMINUM CLAD ROOF METAL PANELING 

mmho
Text Box
REPRESENTATIVE EXAMPLES FORCOLOR PALETTE AND MATERIALS



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 6 



Date: 06/16/2022

ABLASTUDIO.COM

D I S T R I C T  D O W N T O W N

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

L a n d s c a p e  &  O p e n  S p a c e  C h a ra c t e r



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 7 



DISTRICT DOWNTOWN
Conceptual Master Plan - Plant Palette ABLASTUDIO.COM

N

Date:Plan Scale
20' 40'

20'1: 06-16-2022

Ulmus parvifolia
'Sempervirens' Elm

15 gal.

Chitalpa tashkinensis
Chitalpa

24" Box

Quercus virginiana 
'Cathedral' Oak

24" Box

P L A N T   M A T E R I A L S   P A L E T T E
Extra Large Shrubs Size Qty

Large Shrubs Size Qty

Medium Shrubs Size Qty

Vauquelinia californica
Arizona Rosewood

5 gal.

Vines Size Qty

Olea europea
'Willsonii' Olive

24" Box Multi

Pithecellobium flexicaule
Texas Ebony

15 gal.

S

Y

P

Lf

Pm

Gl

Rt

Cg

Lj

Dodonea viscosa
Hopbush

5 gal.

Cordia Boissieri
Anachuita

5 gal.

Bougainvillea 'California Gold'
Orange Bougainvillea

5 gal.

Salvia clevlandii
Chaparral Sage

5 gal.

Leucophyllum frutescens 'compacta'
Compact Texas Sage

5 gal.

Portulacaria afra minima
Dwarf Elephant Food

5 gal.

Lantana sp.
'New Gold' Lantana

1 gal.

Lantana montevidensis
Purple Trailing Lantana

1 gal.

Muhlenbergia rigens 
Deer Grass

1 gal.

Agave salmiana x ferox
Large Leaf Agave

5 gal.

Hesperaloe parviflora
'Brakelights' Red Yucca

3 gal.

Muhlenbergia lindheimeri
'Autumn Glow'

5 gal.

Bougainvillea 'California Gold'
Orange Bougainvillea

5 gal

Guara lindheimeri
Pink Guara

5 gal.

Rosmarinus officinalis 'Prostratus'
Trailing Rosemary

1 gal.

Caeselpinia gillesii
Yellow Bird of Paradise

5 gal.

Ligustrum japonicum
Japanese Privet

5 gal.

Eremophila glabra spp. caranosa
Winter Blaze

5 gal.

Nolina matapensis
Beargrass

5 gal.

Ch Agave bovicornuta
Cow's Horn

5 gal.

Ep Eremophila prostrata 
Outback Sunrise Eremophila

1 gal

Cacti/ Accents Size Qty

Bouteloua gracilis
Blond Ambition

1 gal

Euphorbia antisyphilitica
Candelilla

1 gal

Yucca pallida
Pale Leaf Yucca

5 gal

Small Shrubs Size Qty

Groundcovers Size Qty

Russellia equistiformis
Coral Fountain

5 gal.

Dasylirion acrotrichum
Green Desert Spoon

5 gal.

Ts Tecoma sp. 'Sparky
Sparky

5 gal.

Ll Leucophyllum langmaniae 'Lynn's Legacy'
Lynn's Legacy Sage

5 gal.

Eremophila hygrophana Blue Bells
Blue Bells

5 gal.

Teucrium chamaedrys 'prostratum'
Prostrate Germander

1 gal.

Tf

Tp

Teucrium fruticans
Bush Germander

5 gal.

Hesperaloe sp. Pink Parade
Pink Parade Hesperaloe

3 gal.

Ok Opuntia sp. Kelly's Choice
Kelly's Choice Prickly Pear

5 gal.

Yr Yucca rupicola
Twisted Leaf Yucca

5 gal.

Trees Size Qty

Fraxinus greggii 
Little Leaf Ash

24' Box

Gazania rigens 'Sun Gold'
Trailing Yellow Gazania

1 gal

C Chrysactinia mexicana
Damianita

1 gal

Lfg Leucophyllum frutescens 'Green Cloud'
Green Cloud Sage

5 gal.

B
Buxus microphylla japonica
Green Beauty Boxwood

5 gal.

Ulmus parvifolia
'Sempervirens' Elm

 24" Box

Pistacia chinensis
Chinese Pistache

15 gal.

Pistacia chinensis
Chinese Pistache

24" Box

Quercus virginiana 
'Cathedral' Oak

15 gal.

Ficus pumila
Creeping Fig 5 gal

Salvage Tree
Mesquite species

36" Box

Pistacia lentiscus
Mastic Tree

24" Box

Pachycereus marginatus
Mexican Fence Post cactus

5 gal.

Acacia aneura
Mulga Acacia

24" Box

Caesalpinia cacalaco
Cascalote

24' Box

Phoenix dactylifera
Date Palm

20' to pinapple



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 8 



COMPREHENSIVE SIGN PROGRAM
May 20, 2024

Prepared for:
MERIDIAN WEST DEVELOPMENT, LLC
P.O. Box 15270, Phoenix, AZ 85060

Prepared By:

4210 N 63rd Place

Scottsdale, AZ 85251





 1

Table of Contents

Introduction & Theme 1

Sign Hierarchy & Location Plan 2-3

Freestanding Signage

1 - Freeway Pylon 4

2 - Project ID/Corner Feature  5

3 - Project ID/Entry Feature  6

4a - Primary Tenant / Multi-Tenant  7

4b - Secondary Multi-Tenant  8

4c - Special Use Tenant Monument 9

5 - Office/Hotel/ Multi-Family Monument  10

6 - Vehicular Directional  11

Tenant Wall Signage

Tenant Signage Matrix 12-13

7 - Tenant Wall Signage Standards  14-15

7 - Individual Letter Details 16

7 - 3-D Cabinets 17

7 - Canopy Signs 18

7 - Projecting Signs 19

8 - Arcade/Shingle Signs 20

8 -  Window Signs/Graphics 21

9 - Addressing 22

Typical Building Elevations 

Retail Buildings  23-24

Office Buildings  25 

General Performance Requirements

General Requirements 27

Definitions 29



 2



 1

Introduction

The THE DISTRICT DOWNTOWN  is located on the 
southwest corner of Arizona Avenue and Pecos 
Road, directly adjacent to the 202 Freeway, in 
Chandler, Arizona. The project is a mixed-use 
development with a variety of commercial uses 
including office, hotel, restaurant and retail. 

Properly adhered to, the criteria contained herein 
will ensure that  project and tenant identification is 
consistent in quality, and is compatible with the overall 
architectural character of the center and surrounding 
area. 
 

Owner:
MERIDIAN WEST DEVELOPMENT, LLC
P.O. Box 15270
Phoenix, AZ 85060
480.231.9238

Contacts:
Greg Gienko

Logo Standard

The intent of this sign criteria is to establish and 
maintain guidelines consistent with the signage 
policies and ordinances of the City of Chandler. It is 
also meant to assure a standard conformance and 
quality for the design, size, placement and materials 
used for all business identification for the THE DISTRICT 
DOWNTOWN.

 "Additional Quality Standards" (as required by the City 
of Chandler) have been met in this package through 
the following items:

• Freestanding monument sign bases of stone/brick 
or any material matching buildings.

Theme

Dunn Edwards DE6328
Anchor Gray

Dunn Edwards DE6329
Cover of Night

Dunn Edwards DE6374
Silver Polish 

Dunn Edwards DE164
Autumn Bark

Dunn Edwards DE5485
Russet Green

Dunn Edwards DE6214
Pigeon Gray

Davis Concrete
Mesquite

There is a new name with a new Brand being 
developed - that will fit within the context of signage 
areas, materials and colors of the project.

• Wall signage letter height shall be limited to 15% 
of the overall building height or 80% of vertical 
measurement, whichever is shorter.

• All office wall signage shall be reverse pan-channel 
letters/logos, consistent in color/finish.

• All office wall signage is to be located on the upper 
floor only.

Project Colors and Materials

Colors and materials used throughout the sign system 
are derived from the approved architectural color and 
materials palette.

Background panels on freestanding retail monuments 
will be fabricated with perforated metal panel 
construction for mounting of individual letters.

Example 



 2

Sign Location Plan

5 5 53b3b 6a5 4a3a 

4a

4c

2

4b 

4b 

3 

3 

11 55

F 

Sign Type 1 - Freeway Pylon 
 
Sign Type 2 - Corner Project ID Feature 
 
Sign Type 3a - Commercial Project ID/Entry Feature 
 
Sign Type 3b - Residential Project ID/Entry Feature 
 
Sign Type 4a - Primary Tenant / Multi-Tenant  
 
Sign Type 4b - Secondary Multi-Tenant

Sign Type 4c - Special Use Tenant Monument

 

 

Sign Type 5 - Parcel ID Monument
 

Sign Type 6a/b - Vehicular Directionals 
 

Landmark Water Feature 

S IGNAGE  HIERARCH Y  KEY 

55

6a 

6a 

F 

SCALE • 1” = 200’

Auto 
Dealership 
dedicated 
monument

702'-2 1/2"
33

2'
-0

"±
33

2'
-0

"±

337'-6"±



 3

Sign Location Plan

5 5 53b3b 6a5 4a3a 

4a

4c

2

4b 

4b 

3 

3 

11 55

F 

Sign Type 1 - Freeway Pylon 
 
Sign Type 2 - Corner Project ID Feature 
 
Sign Type 3a - Commercial Project ID/Entry Feature 
 
Sign Type 3b - Residential Project ID/Entry Feature 
 
Sign Type 4a - Primary Tenant / Multi-Tenant  
 
Sign Type 4b - Secondary Multi-Tenant

Sign Type 4c - Special Use Tenant Monument

 

 

Sign Type 5 - Parcel ID Monument
 

Sign Type 6a/b - Vehicular Directionals 
 

Landmark Water Feature 

S IGNAGE  HIERARCH Y  KEY 

55

6a 

6a 

F 

SCALE • 1” = 200’

Auto 
Dealership 
dedicated 
monument

702'-2 1/2"

33
2'

-0
"±

33
2'

-0
"±

337'-6"±



 4

[1] Freeway Pylon

There shall be two (2) freeway pylons along the 
southern border of the project, bordering the north 
side of the 202 Freeway. This sign type will serve to 
identify the overall project, as well major tenants and 
amenities within the site such as hotels. 

At a height of sixty-five (65) feet, these stylish pylons 
will have excellent visibility from all lanes of the 
freeway.

Sign Type 1

Function Project and major tenant 
identification. 

Height 65'-0"

Sq. Ft. ID Lettering - 69 s.f.
4 Tenant Panels at 120.2 s.f. each - 
480.8 s.f.
Total Sign Area - 549.8 s.f.

Quantity Two (2)

Illum. Project ID - halo lit
Tenants internal face lit

Materials Project ID of Reverse Pan Channels on 
aluminum cabinet.
Tenant lettering to be Pan Channels 
with Plexiglass faces. 
Aluminum architectural accents. 
Tenant background panels of 
perforated metal, painted.

Colors Structure: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Base: Painted to match Davis Colors 
"Mesquite" concrete
Accents: DE 6374 Silver Polish
Tenant Panels: DE6374 Silver Polish
Tenant ID: Corporate Standards
Project ID: White

Scale: 3/32" = 1' - 0"

65
'-0

"

20
'-8

"

12
"

3'
-1

0"
57

'-0
"

6'
-1

0"
7"

24'-6"

2'-5" 19'-6"

18'-10"12"

5'
-6

"
5'

-1
"

4'
-4

"

3'
-6

"

1'
-8

"



 5

[2] Project ID / Corner Feature

There shall be one (1) corner feature at the 
southwestern corner of the Arizona Avenue and Pecos 
Road. This sign is only to identify the project. It will be 
physically and graphically incorporated into a water 
feature (by others), enhancing the experience of both 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic at the intersection 

At a height of just over twelve (12) feet, the corner 
feature will have good visibility without being 
overpowered by the surrounding architecture.

Project name of edge lit, dimensional letters mounted 
on perforated panels, backed by matte acrylic panels 
internally illuminated to create a soft backlit glow.

Sign Type 2

Function Project identification. 

Height 12'-4"

Sq. Ft. Lettering - 85 s.f.

Quantity One (1)

Illum. Project ID - halo lit

Materials Perforated metal panels on aluminum 
architectural structure. 
Project lettering of Reverse Pan 
Channels.
Additional lighting behind perforated 
panels with acrylic back up.

Colors Project ID: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Panels: DE6374 Silver Polish

Scale: 3/32" = 1' - 0"

THE DISTRICT
D O W N T O W N5'

-9
"

12
'-4

"

59'-3"

28
"

15
"

24'-0"



 6

[3] Project ID / Entry Feature

There shall be six (6) low profile entry monuments 
at the primary entrances on both Pecos Road and 
Arizona Avenue, mainly where future traffic signals 
are planned. These signs will display the project 
identification.

At five (5) feet, the sign and information are below the 
maximum height stipulation of six (6) feet.

Sign Type 3

Function Project identification. 

Height 5'-0"

Sq. Ft. Lettering - Approx. 32 s.f. 

Quantity Five(5)

Illum. Halo and/or ground up-lit

Materials Masonry/concrete wall, planter and 
base. Reverse Pan Channel metal 
letters/logo. Aluminum architectural 
accents. Painted wall and structure.

Colors Wall: DE5485 Russet Green
Base: Davis Concrete "Mesquite" 
Accents: DE 6374 Silver Polish
Project ID: DE6374 Silver Polish
Planter: DE6328 Anchor Grey

Scale: 1/4" = 1' - 0"

Scale: 1/4" = 1' - 0"

Option 1 - Without ID

5'
-0

"

3'
-9

"

1'
-6

"

25'-9"

17'-0"

14'-0" 4'-4"

5'
-0

"

3'
-9

"

1'
-6

"

25'-9"

17'-0"

14'-0" 4'-4"

1'
-1

1"

6'
-0

"

8"
8"

8" 2"



 7

The primary multi-tenant monument 
is located near the entries closest to 
the intersection along Pecos Road 
and Arizona Avenue. Per code, this 
signs is at a maximum height of 
14'-0", and will display up to four (4) 
tenants.

These signs pull elements from the 
architecture and will be incorporated 
into the surrounding landscaping.

Sign Type 4a

Function Development identification with  four (4) retail/commercial 
tenant identification panels. 

Height 14'-0" to top of tenant sign area

Sq. Ft. Project ID - 6.3 s.f.
Tenants - 4 at 9.7 s.f. each
Total 45.2 s.f.

Quantity Three (3)

Illum. Combination of face lit and halo.

Materials Aluminum fabrication with masonry base.
Project lettering of Reverse Pan Channels on aluminum 
cabinet.
Tenant lettering to be Pan Channels with Plexiglass faces. 
Aluminum architectural accents. Tenant background panels 
of perforated metal, painted.

Colors Structure: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Base/Planter: Davis Concrete "Mesquite"
Tenant ID/Accents: DE 6374 Silver Polish
Tenant ID: Corporate Standards
Project ID: White

[4a] Multi-Tenant Monument
14

'-0
"

1'
-8

"
2"

8"

8'-3"

9" 6'-0"

5'-10"

Scale: 1/4" = 1' - 0"

2'-6"

1'-6"

1'-4"

1'-0"

1'
-4

"

5'-0"10'-10"

4'
-0

"
2'

-3
"



 8

[4b] Secondary Multi-Tenant Monument

Sign Type 4b

Function Maximum of three (3) retail/commercial tenant 
identification panels. 

Height 10'-0" to top of sign area

Sq. Ft. Tenants - 3 at 8.3 s.f. each
Total - 24.9 s.f.

Quantity Two (2)

Illum. Combination of face lit and halo.

Materials Aluminum fabrication with masonry base. Project 
lettering of Reverse Pan Channels on aluminum 
cabinet.
Tenant lettering to be Pan Channels with Plexiglass 
faces. 
Aluminum architectural accents. Tenant background 
panels of perforated metal, painted.

Colors Structure: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Base/Planter: Davis Concrete "Mesquite"
Tenant ID/Accents: DE 6374 Silver Polish
Tenant ID: Corporate Standards

The secondary multi-tenant 
monuments are located along Pecos 
Road and Arizona Avenue. Per code, 
this sign is at a maximum height 
of 10'-0". There will be no project 
identification on this sign. However, 
project addressing and up to three (3) 
tenants will be displayed.

This sign pulls elements from the 
architecture and will be incorporated 
into the surrounding landscaping.

Scale: 1/4" = 1' - 0"

10
'-0

"

2'-6"

1'-6"

1'-4"
1'-0"

1'
-7

"
2"

2'
-5

"

6'-4"

5'-1"

5'-3"

8'-0"

1'
-0

"

5'-0"



 9

The Special Use Tenant Monument 
would be located at the south 
corner of the project and would 
be dedicated to a potential auto/
dealership use only. This sign 
would identify the dealership with 
a standard sized electronic display 
board for multiple product names/
brands/product images.
 
This sign will use design elements 
from the dealership's architecture 
along with the District elements, 
and will be incorporated into the 
surrounding landscaping.

Sign Type 4a

Function Dealership identification with  electronic message board. 

Height 14'-0" to top of tenant sign area

Sq. Ft. Project ID - 6.3 s.f.
Tenants - Electronic board - 40 s.f.
Dealership branding - 10 s.f.
Total 56.3 s.f.±

Quantity One (1)

Illum. Combination of face lit and halo.

Materials Aluminum fabrication with masonry base.
Project lettering of Reverse Pan Channels on aluminum 
cabinet.
Dealership lettering to be Pan Channels with Plexiglass faces. 
Aluminum architectural accents. Tenant background panels 
of perforated metal, painted.

Colors Structure: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Base/Planter: Davis Concrete "Mesquite"
Tenant ID/Accents: DE 6374 Silver Polish
Tenant ID: Corporate Standards
Project ID: White

[4c]  Special Use Tenant Monument

C A N O O
A U T O M O T I V E

14
'-0

"

2"
2"

8"

8'-3"

12" 6'-0"

Scale: 1/4" = 1' - 0"

2'-6"

1'-6"
1'-4"

1'-0"

1'
-4

"

5'-0"10'-10"

4'
-0

"
2'

-3
"

5'
-4

"

7'-6"



 10

[5] Office / Hotel / Multi-Family Monument

There shall be five (5) low profile 
monuments along the major 
thoroughfare of the site to provide 
a tie with the overall development 
identification monument for the various 
mixed use components on the site. 
The sign will be a maximum height of 
6'-0", and contain up to two (2) tenant 
identifications. For a single use, a single 
panel area may be used.

This sign pulls elements from the 
architecture and will be incorporated 
into the surrounding landscaping. 

Sign Type 5

Function Identification of one (1) corporate tenant/hotel.

Height 6'-0" to top of sign area

Sq. Ft. ID - 2 at 11.6 s.f. each
Total - 23.2 s.f.

Quantity Five (5)

Illum. Internal. RPC halo (addressing).

Materials Aluminum fabrication with masonry base. 1/2" thick 
push-thru acrylic tenant copy with applied metal face (for 
halo illumination). Addressing of flat cut alut aluminum 
addressing. Paint.

Hotel may be face illuminated.

Colors Structure: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Base/Planter: Davis Concrete "Mesquite"
Tenant Area: Painted to match "Mesquite"
Accents: DE 6374 Silver Polish
Tenant ID: DE6329 Cover of Night - Hotels may use corporate 
standards for ID.

TENANT 1TENANT 1
T E N A N T  T W O
Secondary Information To Go Here
T E N A N T  T W O
Secondary Information To Go Here

Scale: 1/4" = 1' - 0"

6'
-0

"

1'
-0

"
1'

-4
"

8"

13'-4"

2"

11'-2"

8'-8"

1'-9"

1'-5"

1'-7"

4'-8"



 11

[6] Vehicular Directional

These signs are located at primary 
traffic decision points to assist traffic 
flow utilizing two (2) sizes. Along the 
private interior roadways, the 6'-6" size 
will be used where traffic is moving 
faster and with numerous destination 
options. The smaller, 3'-0" directionals 
are used within specific project 
sites, parking lots and driveways, 
where traffic is slower and only a few 
destination options exist.
 
These signs incorporate the 
architectural and wall details in the 

Sign Type 6a 6b

Function Direct vehicular traffic 
through the site.

Height 6'-6" max 3’-0” max

Sq. Ft. 8 s.f. 4 s.f.

Quantity Three (3) As needed

Illum. Non-illuminated Non-illuminated

Materials Aluminum structure with applied reflective vinyl letters 
and symbols. Painted background.

Colors Panel: DE6328 Anchor Grey
Base: Painted to match "Mesquite"
Letters/Arrows: White reflective Vinyl to match

3'
-0

"

1'
-1

1"

2'-0"

2'-0"

6"
4"

Drive-Thru

Deliveries

O�ces
Apartments
Parking 
Garage

Shops

Hotel

Scale: 3/8" = 1' - 0"

6"
4"

6'
-6

"

2'-6 "



 12

Building Wall Sign Matrix

BUILDING TYPE MAXIMUM QUANTITY LOCATION SIGN AREA MAXIMUM LETTER HEIGHT ILLUMINATION 
STYLE

SIGN TYPE/ DESIGN / COLOR

Retail Shops

 

Two (2) per tenant Signs to be located 
directly over or adjacent 
to tenant entry and rear 
elevations.  One (1) per 
elevation.

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of 
leased frontage.

Thirty-six (36) inches for any  
individual letter. No layout 
shall exceed 80% of the vertical 
measurement of the architectural 
fascia. 

Letter height not to exceed 15% of 
the building height.

Internal, halo 
or combination 
thereof. 

Pan Channel, Reverse Pan-Channel or Custom 
Cabinet Letters/Logo. No exposed raceways.

Logos, logotype and colors may be per the 
tenant’s national/corporate standards.

Tenant Identification signage must 
incorporate a name for the business. 
“Modifiers” as the identification will not be 
allowed.

Retail Pads 
 

One (1) per elevation 
that offers vehicular 
readability from 
a street,  internal 
thoroughfare, or 
parking area. 

Maximum of four (4) 
per building

Primary sign to be 
located directly over or 
adjacent to tenant entry

All others per tenant 
signage program - 
signage area cannot 
be transferred to other 
elevations

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of 
designated frontage. 

Thirty-six (36) inches for any  
individual letter. Symbols and Iconic 
elements are exempt from the 
letter height restrictions. No layout 
shall exceed 80% of the vertical 
measurement of the architectural 
fascia. 

Letter height not to exceed 15% 
of the building height or 80% of 
vertical measurement whichever is 
shorter.

Internal, halo 
or combination 
thereof. 

Pan Channel, Reverse Pan-Channel or Custom 
Cabinet Letters/Logo. No exposed raceways.

Logos, logotype and colors may be per the 
tenant’s national/corporate standards.

Tenant Identification signage must 
incorporate a name for the business. 
“Modifiers” as the identification will not be 
allowed.

Office Two (2) per tenant Owner to designate 
tenants and signage 
locations which may not 
necessarily be over their 
leased space.
 
Locations to be on upper 
level only. 

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of 
leased suite space.

No one sign shall 
exceed 250 square 
feet.

Forty-eight (48) inch Capital Height 

Letter height not to exceed 15% 
of the building height or 80% of 
vertical measurement whichever is 
shorter.

Halo Reverse Pan-Channel Letters/Logos. No 
exposed raceways.

Logo and logotype may be per the tenant 
national/corporate standards.

All signage shall be brushed aluminum finish.

Automotive Two (2) per brand being 
sold on site

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of  
eased suite space.

No one sign shall 
exceed 250 square 
feet.

Forty-eight (48) inch Capital Height.

Letter height not to exceed 15% 
of the building height or 80% of 
vertical measurement whichever is 
shorter.

Internal, halo 
or combination 
thereof. 

Reverse Pan-Channel Letters/Logos. No 
exposed raceways.

Logo and logotype may be per the tenant 
national/corporate standards.

All signage shall be brushed aluminum finish.



 13

BUILDING TYPE MAXIMUM QUANTITY LOCATION SIGN AREA MAXIMUM LETTER HEIGHT ILLUMINATION 
STYLE

SIGN TYPE/ DESIGN / COLOR

Retail Shops

 

Two (2) per tenant Signs to be located 
directly over or adjacent 
to tenant entry and rear 
elevations.  One (1) per 
elevation.

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of 
leased frontage.

Thirty-six (36) inches for any  
individual letter. No layout 
shall exceed 80% of the vertical 
measurement of the architectural 
fascia. 

Letter height not to exceed 15% of 
the building height.

Internal, halo 
or combination 
thereof. 

Pan Channel, Reverse Pan-Channel or Custom 
Cabinet Letters/Logo. No exposed raceways.

Logos, logotype and colors may be per the 
tenant’s national/corporate standards.

Tenant Identification signage must 
incorporate a name for the business. 
“Modifiers” as the identification will not be 
allowed.

Retail Pads 
 

One (1) per elevation 
that offers vehicular 
readability from 
a street,  internal 
thoroughfare, or 
parking area. 

Maximum of four (4) 
per building

Primary sign to be 
located directly over or 
adjacent to tenant entry

All others per tenant 
signage program - 
signage area cannot 
be transferred to other 
elevations

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of 
designated frontage. 

Thirty-six (36) inches for any  
individual letter. Symbols and Iconic 
elements are exempt from the 
letter height restrictions. No layout 
shall exceed 80% of the vertical 
measurement of the architectural 
fascia. 

Letter height not to exceed 15% 
of the building height or 80% of 
vertical measurement whichever is 
shorter.

Internal, halo 
or combination 
thereof. 

Pan Channel, Reverse Pan-Channel or Custom 
Cabinet Letters/Logo. No exposed raceways.

Logos, logotype and colors may be per the 
tenant’s national/corporate standards.

Tenant Identification signage must 
incorporate a name for the business. 
“Modifiers” as the identification will not be 
allowed.

Office Two (2) per tenant Owner to designate 
tenants and signage 
locations which may not 
necessarily be over their 
leased space.
 
Locations to be on upper 
level only. 

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of 
leased suite space.

No one sign shall 
exceed 250 square 
feet.

Forty-eight (48) inch Capital Height 

Letter height not to exceed 15% 
of the building height or 80% of 
vertical measurement whichever is 
shorter.

Halo Reverse Pan-Channel Letters/Logos. No 
exposed raceways.

Logo and logotype may be per the tenant 
national/corporate standards.

All signage shall be brushed aluminum finish.

Automotive Two (2) per brand being 
sold on site

Two (2) square feet 
per each lineal foot of  
eased suite space.

No one sign shall 
exceed 250 square 
feet.

Forty-eight (48) inch Capital Height.

Letter height not to exceed 15% 
of the building height or 80% of 
vertical measurement whichever is 
shorter.

Internal, halo 
or combination 
thereof. 

Reverse Pan-Channel Letters/Logos. No 
exposed raceways.

Logo and logotype may be per the tenant 
national/corporate standards.

All signage shall be brushed aluminum finish.



 14

[7] Retail Tenant Wall Signage Standards

Sign Area
For maximum aggregate building sign area per Tenant, 
refer to matrix.

Calculation of sign area: Where a sign consists only of 
individual letters, numerals, symbols, or other similar 
components, the total area of the sign shall be the area 
of the square or rectangle surrounding all components of 
the sign. 

A maximum of one (1) rectangle will be allowed. 

All retail tenants must have storefront signs fabricated 
from either internally illuminated individual pan-
channel, reverse pan-channel letters and logos, and/or 
“custom 3-D panels”.

All sign designs and layouts will be approved on an 
individual basis through the Developer’s discretion.  
Creative designs, forms, and the use of “custom” 
3-D panel signs are encouraged.  Unless as part of 
a nationally registered and/or trademarked logo, 
rectangular shaped custom cabinets are strictly 
prohibited.  

Layout/Design
Copy and/or logos utilized shall be Tenant’s choice, 
subject to the approval of Developer and/or 
Developer’s agents and the City of Chandler.

All national retailers shall be permitted to utilize their 
standard corporate identification program subject 
to sign area limitations contained in the approved 
Comprehensive Signage Package (CSP).

Tenant Identification signage must incorporate a name 
for the business. “Modifiers” as the identication will not 
be allowed.

Letter Spacing/Kerning
To fit within layout standards, lettering and/or logo 
may not be condensed more than 90% of horizontal 
letter width of original design. 

Graphic  below illustrates a name that is allowed a 
maximum letter height, and maximum sign length and 
width. The graphics show what is allowed for fitting 
the lettering within that space, based on the tenants 
registered trademark/logo.

2'
-0

"

ACCEPTABLE LAYOUT
20" LETTER AT 90% HORIZONTAL SPACING

MAXIMUM 24" LETTER - STANDARD LAYOUT

UNACCEPTABLE LAYOUT
24" LETTER-TOO TIGHT KERNING AND AT 90% HORIZONTAL SPACING

UNACCEPTABLE LAYOUT
24" LETTER-80% HORIZONTAL SPACING

3'
-0

" 
M

A
X

3'
-0

" 
M

A
X

3'
-0

" 
M

A
X

3'
-0

" 
M

A
X

MAX WIDTH OF SIGN ENVELOPE

Sun Framing

1'
-8

"TANNING SALONTANNING SALON
The Ultimate Tanning SalonThe Ultimate Tanning Salon

Total sign envelope width 
not to exceed 80% of fascia area

Total sign area / leased frontage

Shall not 
exceed 65%
 of sign area

Si
gn

 a
re

a
(h

ei
gh

t 
w

ill
 v

ar
y)



 15

Figure 1

Architectural Frontage

Leased Frontage

80% Of Architectural Frontage

75
%

vh

24
"

V
ER

T
IC

A
L 

H
EI

G
H

T
70

%
vh

V
ER

T
IC

A
L 

H
EI

G
H

T

Leased Frontage

80% Of Frontage

Leased Frontage

80% Of Frontage

75
%

 v
.h Varies

Varies

Figure 2

Figure 1

Figure 2

Figure 3

Figure 3

Two Line Tenant
Copy Layout

T h e  A l p h a b e t  S t o r e

36
"

m
ax

Sign Locations / Restrictions

Tenant signage shall be installed in accordance 
with the typical elevations which follow.

Tenant signs shall be centered horizontally and 
vertically within the architectural frontage and/or 
directly over the doorway if space permits. Signs 
must be located within Tenant's leased elevation. 
Freestanding Pad Tenants and Major Tenant 
buildings may have signs on all elevations. 

Height and Length of Sign on Wall Surface

In no event shall any sign exceed eighty (80%) 
percent of the building elevation and/or wall 
surface upon which it is placed. The available 
surface area of the architectural sign area shall 
regulate letter height not exceeding 70% vertical 
height.



 16

[7] Retail Tenant Wall Signage - Individual Letters

Individual illuminated letters and logos and may 
include pan channel metal letters with acrylic sign 
faces, reverse pan channel “backlit” illuminated 
letters, or any combination thereof as outlined in 
the matrix per tenant type. 
 
All signage shall be reviewed and approved by 
the Developer and/or Developer’s agents and 
shall be appropriate to the surrounding building 
features, environment, and architectural thematic 
design. Developer and/or Developer’s agents 
and the City of Chandler shall have discretion in 
varying any provision of these specifications.

Construction
Individual pan channel letters and logos must 
be constructed of minimum of .063 aluminum 
returns. Pan channel letter faces must be a 
minimum 1/8" Plexiglas, Acrylic or Lexan.

Reverse pan channel letter faces must be a 
minimum of 1/8" thick aluminum. 

No “Channelume,”  “Letteredge,” or similar material 
will be allowed. Exposed raceways, conduits, 
fasteners, tubing or transformers will not be 
permitted.  All inductors, transformers, or other 
equipment will be concealed in a water tight 
condition.

Colors
Letter face colors are per Tenant's corporate 
standards with the exception that no fluorescent 
colors will be allowed. Retainers for pan channels 
must match letter face or return color. For 
National Tenants, returns and retainers may be 
per corporate standards - however, no gold, silver, 
copper or brass will be allowed.  

Illumination
Tenant building signage may be internally 
illuminated (LED), backlit to create a silhouette 
combination of lighting methods mentioned 
herein. No exposed neon and/or clear faced 
internal neon illumination will be allowed.



 17

Alternative signage options to the standard 
individual letters is the use of "Custom 3-D 
Panels". These are multiple layered in design with 
a mix of opaque and translucent backgrounds, 
various fabrication and illumination methods 
of lettering, built around a single unit. This type 
of design and fabrication method provides for 
ease of installation by connecting to one single 
J-box on the fascia and protects the building from 
repeated drilling and wiring for individual letter 
installations. 

All designs will be approved on an individual 
basis through Developer’s discretion.  Creative 
designs and forms, and “Custom” Panel signs 
are encouraged. Unless as part of a nationally 
registered and/or trademarked logo, rectangular 
shaped cabinets are prohibited.  

Colors
Letter face colors are per Tenant's corporate 
standards with the exception that no fluorescent 
colors will be allowed. Retainers for pan channels 
must match letter face or return color. For 
National Tenants, returns and retainers may be 
per corporate standards - however, no gold, silver, 
copper or brass will be allowed.  

Illumination
Tenant building signage may be internally 
illuminated (LED), backlit to create a silhouette 
combination of lighting methods mentioned 
herein. No exposed neon and/or clear faced 
internal neon illumination will be allowed.

[7] Retail Tenant Wall Signage -3D Panel Details



 18

[7] Tenant Wall Signage -Canopy Signs

Typically located on the ground floor, Standing Canopy 
Signs, Canopy Fascia Signs and Suspended Canopy 
Signs should be placed centered on the tenant’s 
frontage and centered on the canopy structure, if 
possible. 

The Landlord can approve exceptions for each of these 
types of canopy signs due to variations in architectural 
features on the building, variations in the canopy 
structure and the tenant corporate brand standards.

For Standing and Fascia Canopy signs, all raceways 
shall be concealed within the canopy structure or 
behind the canopy front face outside of the line-
of-sight when viewed from below or in-front of the 
canopy structure. Posts and beams are allowed to be 
visible if signage is integral with the design.

The sign shall limited to individual characters.
Raceways shall be concealed with in the canopy or 
lattice. Backer panels are allowed.

If Suspended Canopy signage is applicable to the 
building architecture, support structure, "cabinet 
backers", lettering application and illumination shall 
be designed to be consistent in appearance, with the 
exception of the tenants corporate brand standards 
type and colors. Posts and beams are allowed to be 
visible if signage is integral with the design.  Standing 
Canopy Signs can be either face-lit, halo-lit, or 
indirect-lit with LEDs or “neon”.  These sign shall have a 
minimum clearance of 84" (7'-0").
 
Illumination
Indirect sign lighting shall be shielded so that the 
illumination source is not visible.

Office signage may be non-illuminated, but all retail 
should be illuminated per the guidelines.

Where illuminated, LED’s are recommended. All 
Canopy signs can be either face-lit, halo-lit, or indirect-
lit with LEDs or “neon”.

Standing Canopy Sign is a sign mounted to the 
top of the leading edge of a canopy located above a 
storefront parallel to the building façade on which it is 
mounted. 

Canopy Fascia Sign is a sign attached to the vertical 
front face of a canopy, roof overhang, covered 
walkway, covered porch, or purlin of an open lattice 
structure.  

Suspended Canopy Sign is a sign suspended 
under a canopy, roof overhang, covered walkway, 
covered porch, or open lattice walkway and parallel 
to storefront. 



 19

[7] Tenant Wall Signage -Projecting Signs

A Projecting (Blade) Sign is a business identification 
sign that is mounted perpendicular to the face or 
corner of a building. 

Unless separated by a structure and not visible from 
an abutting public street, Projecting Signs shall not 
be placed within one-hundred fifty (150) feet from an 
abutting public street. 

One (1) Projecting Sign is permitted per each fifty (50) 
lineal feet of store frontage. 

Such sign shall not be located within twenty (20) feet 
in any direction of another Projecting Sign on the same 
building wall.  

A Projecting Sign shall be placed on the tenant’s leased 
frontage and shall not encroach onto another tenant 
suite adjacent to or above the tenant suite in which the 
Projecting Sign identifies with approval of the landlord.  

Maximum Projection
Sixty (60) inches from the wall of the building to the 
outside edge of the sign and a minimum clearance 
from adjacent grade of 10'-0".

Illumination
Internal Illumination can be Face, Halo Backlighted‚ 
Dual-Illumination from exterior and interior sources or 
Non-Illuminated.

Indirect Illumination shall be a shield light sources

Where illuminated, LED’s are recommended.



 20

[8] Storefront Graphics -Arcade Signs

Where there are covered walkway areas,  Arcade  signs 
hang or flag mount off tenant storefronts oriented to 
the pedestrian located at the primary public accessible 
entry. 

Within the Commercial Plaza, support structures, 
"cabinet backers", lettering application and 
illumination shall be designed to be consistent in 
appearance. Design of the graphics may unique within 
the context of their storefront’s architecture, services/
products provided and their recognized corporate 
identity and design theme, subject to approval of the 
Landlord. 

All arcade type signs are oriented perpendicular to the 
tenant store front with a minimum 84” 
(7'-0") clearance from walkway.  

Structure
Armature should be constructed as a rigid element, 
not allowing the sign to swing.
Suspended Canopy Signs should display the Tenant’s 
unique identity (logo) while evoking the sense 
of contemporary high craftsmanship and design 
sensitivity

Illumination
Arcade/Shingle Signs can be either face- lit, halo-lit, or 
indirect-lit with LEDs or neon.

Indirect sign lighting shall be shielded so that the 
illumination source is not visible.

Non-illumination allowed.



 21

[8] Storefront Window Graphics (retail & office)

Window Signs
These are fabricated small cabinet or panels signs 
suspended behind the store front glazing and can 
identify the tenant or be open/closed signs.

Can be internally illuminated.

Sign may be displayed within 3.75 feet of a window 
pane.

Window Graphics
No more than 25% of front glass area may have 
signage/graphic, applied to, or within 3 feet behind 
the window area.  This includes temporary signage 
applications for sales, promotions and/or any 
permanent identification signage.

Addressing
Individual tenant suites shall have six (6) inch 
white 3M vinyl letter addressing centered on the 
window above the door.

Colors and Layouts 
The tenant may display information such as: the suite 
number or address; tenant contact information (phone 
number or website); hours of operation; goods or 
services provided.

Signage applied to storefront glass can be Vinyl, Gold 
or silver leaf, Professionally hand painted lettering and/
or graphics done by a professional sign painter and 
approved by Landlord prior to application. 

All window graphic layouts shall be approved in 
writing by the Association for quality and consistency 
with the criteria package for The THE DISTRICT 
DOWNTOWN prior to submittal to the City of Chandler 
for approval.

Restrictions 
Window Signs or Graphics may not be pre-fabricated 
neon elements of any kind.



 22

Building address numerals shall be Futura typeface, 
with a minimum height of twelve inches (12"). 

Construction and Colors

Individual reverse pan-channel numbers are to be 
used. Addressing can be either halo illuminated 
clip mounted off the wall, or non illuminated flush 
mounted.

Numeral locations of darker colors, brushed 
aluminum finish should be used.  Locations with 
light colored backgrounds should use dark charcoal 
or black finishes.

[9  ] Building Addressing

1234567890

123456789012
"



23

EAST ELEVATION Bldg 3A

SOUTH ELEVATION Bldg 3A

WEST ELEVATION Bldg 3A

NORTH ELEVATION Bldg 3A

SIGNAGE
SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGESIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGESIGNAGE
SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

LEDGE SIGNAGE

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

LEDGE SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge Location

Note - Sign locations shown are merely 
possible locations and mounting 
methods. Not all signage locations 
shown will be used.  Final locations to 
be determined upon leasing.

Wall Sign Locations -Typical Retail - Building 3A 



24

Wall Sign Locations - Typical Retail 1B & 2E

SOUTH ELEVATION Bldg 2E

WEST ELEVATION Bldg 2E EAST ELEVATION Bldg 2E

NORTH ELEVATION Bldg 2E

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

LEDGE SIGNAGE LEDGE SIGNAGE LEDGE SIGNAGE
SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

Alternate Ledge LocationAlternate Ledge Location

SCALE:  1/16" = 1'-0"

18
'-6

"

18
'-6

"

Note - Sign locations shown are merely possible locations and 
mounting methods. Not all signage locations shown will be used.  
Final locations to be determined upon leasing.



25

Note - Sign locations 
shown are merely possible 
locations. Final locations 
to be determined by 
Developer. Maximum of 
three (3) signs per North 
and South elevations.

NORTH ELEVATION Bldg 3A

EAST ELEVATION Bldg 3A

SOUTH ELEVATION Bldg 3A

WEST ELEVATION Bldg 3A

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE
SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGESIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGESIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SCALE  • 1” = 20’

SIGNAGE
SIGNAGESIGNAGE SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGESIGNAGE

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGESIGNAGE SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SIGNAGE

SCALE  • 1” = 20’

SCALE  • 1” = 20’ SCALE  • 1” = 20’

20
'-0

 "

20
'-0

 "

Wall Sign Locations - 2 Story Office



 27

All signs at The District Downtown must be 
compatible with the standards outlined in this 
Master Sign Program and in conformance with City 
of Chandler Sign Requirements. The purpose of the 
sign standards is to ensure an attractive commercial 
office environment and to protect the interests of 
the surrounding neighborhood, Developer, and 
Owners/Occupants of all suites within The District. 
Conformance will be strictly enforced, and any 
installed non conforming or unapproved signs will be 
brought into conformance at the sole expense of the 
Owner/Occupant.

Meridian West Development LLC herein referred to as 
“Developer”, and The District Downtown Unit Owner's 
Association herein referred to as "Association" shall 
administer and interpret the criteria. Before designing 
signs, all The  District Downtown Owners/Occupants 
will receive a copy of these signage standards. Sign 
plans submitted to the Developer/Association for 
approval must conform to these standards.  The 
Developer/Association will administer and interpret 
the criteria. All signs must be approved in writing by 
the Developer/Association prior to permit application 
and installation.

1 Signage proposal   
Prior to preparation of signage drawings and 
specifications, the Owner’s/Occupant’s sign contractor 
must review all architectural, structural, and electrical 
documents as they relate to the building wall and/
or storefront at the proposed signage location. In 
addition, the sign contractor should visit the project 
site to become familiar with as-built conditions and 
verify all dimensions.

Each Owner/Occupant must submit to the Developer/
Association four (4) sets of detailed shop drawings 
showing locations, sizes, design, colors, materials, 
lettering, graphics, conduits, junction boxes, sleeves, 
methods of illumination and other mounting 
apparatus of all proposed wall, window, and rear door 
signs. This submittal must be made at least fifteen (15) 
days prior to submittal to the City for permits.

2 Developer/Association Approval  
After review of the signage proposal, the Developer/
Association will return one of the three sets of 
drawings to the Owner/Occupant, marked either 
“Approved",  “Approved as Noted,” or “Revise and 
Resubmit.”  

An approval from Developer/Association does not 
guarantee City approval. A sign permit must be 
obtained and issued prior to fabrication. For City 
permits, approved sign drawings from the Developer/
Association along with the required documentation for 
City for review.

• “Approved”   
If drawings are marked “Approved,” the Owner/
Occupant is allowed to proceed with obtaining 
review and approval from the City.     

• “Approved as Noted”   
If drawings are marked “Approved as Noted,” the 
Owner/Occupant is allowed to proceed with City 
review, provided that any modifications noted 
are incorporated into the design and proceed 

An applicant that takes exception to the noted 
modifications may revise and resubmit, as 
explained below. 

• “Revise and Resubmit”   
If drawings are marked “Revise and Resubmit,” the 
plans will be returned to the Owner/Occupant 
with comments. The drawings shall be revised and 
resubmitted for Developer/Association approval. 

3  Openings in building walls 
Locations of all openings for conduit and sleeves in 
building walls must be indicated by the sign contractor 
on the drawings submitted. The contractor shall install 
the sign in accordance with the approved drawings. 

4 Messages   
Except for tenants leasing more than 5,000 square feet 
of space; Sign Band signs are restricted to advertising 
either (a) the person, firm, company, or corporation 
operating the use conducted on the site, or (b) the 
products sold therein, but not both. 

5 Owner/Occupant responsibilities for other   
regulations   
The Developer/Association’s approval of an Owner’s/
Occupant’s signage plan does not constitute an 
implication, representation, or certification by 
the Developer/Association that those plans are 
in compliance with applicable statutes, codes, 
ordinances, or other regulations. Compliance with 
other regulations is the sole responsibility of the 
Owner/Occupant for all work performed on the 
premises by or for the Owner/Occupant. 

General Performance Requirements 



 28

6 Prohibited signs  
• Cabinet (Typical) Acrylic, Plexiglas, or plastic-faced 

panels with surface or second-surface applied 
or painted graphics, injection molded panels 
with integral color - internally backlit cabinet 
construction.

• No signs, advertisements, notices, or other 
lettering shall be displayed, exhibited, inscribed, 
painted, or affixed on any part of the buildings 
visible from outside the premises, except 
as specifically approved by the Developer/
Association. 

• Rude, obscene, offensive, animated, flashing, 
blinking, rotating, moving, or audible signs.

• Placards; posters; playbills; postings; paintings; 
flags; signs in public right-of-way; and fixed 
balloons are not permitted in any location, 
whether or not visible from outside the premises. 

• Change-panel signs are prohibited.

• "A" frames and portable signs.

• Signs that are installed without written approval 
from the Developer/Association, or that are 
inconsistent with approved drawings, may be 
subject to removal and reinstallation by the 
Developer at the Owner’s Occupant’s expense. 

• Painted or hand lettered signs on storefronts.

• Flashing, moving or audible signs.

• Luminous vacuum formed type plastic letters

• Inflatable signs or graphic devices.

• Freestanding attraction boards, posters or other 
permanent advertising devices.

• Paper, cardboard or Styrofoam signs.

• Signs with exposed neon tubing or raceways.

• Signs with gold or silver plastic trim caps that 
contrast with letter returns.

7 Illuminated signs   
The City of Chandler requires permits for all signs and 
electrical permits for all signs that are illuminated. It is 
the Owner’s/Occupant’s sole responsibility to secure 
these and any other permits that may be required. 

8 Size limitation   
Each Owner/Occupant must limit the area of its sign 
in accordance with the area allocated for signage. 
Maximum letter height and length varies according to 
storefront, but it must not exceed the area allocated 
for signage. Each Owner/Occupant will be granted a 
minimum of one sign. Owners/Occupants with more 
than one elevation wall may have a sign on each 
elevation. 

9 Labels   
No labels are permitted on the exposed surface of 
signs, except those required by local ordinance. Sets of 
individual letters shall have one label on an end letter 
only. These are to be installed in an inconspicuous 
location. 

10 Freestanding signs   
All freestanding signs must meet applicable setbacks, 
and their installation must comply with all local 
building and electrical codes.

11 Upkeep and maintenance   
Each Owner/Occupant is fully responsible for the 
upkeep and maintenance of its sign(s), including any 
individual pylon or monument signage, and Owners/
Occupants are to repair any sign defects within five 
(5) days of notification. If an Owner/Occupant does 
not repair said sign(s), the Developer, at the Owner/
Occupant sole cost and expense, may repair and/or 
replace sign(s). 

A penalty of 100% of the Developer’s cost to repair 
said signage, in addition to the cost of the repair, may 
be assessed to the Owner/Occupant if the Developer 
is required to provide the necessary maintenance due 
to the Owner’s/Occupant’s noncompliance following 
notification. 

12 Illumination timer   
Power to illuminate the Owner’s/Occupant’s sign 
is to be from Owner’s/Occupant’s electricity meter, 
switched through time clock, set in accordance with 
schedules determined by the Developer. 

13 Sealing of building penetrations   
All penetrations of the building structure required for 
sign installation shall be neatly sealed in a watertight 
fashion. 

14 Damage caused by or during installation   
The sign contractor and/or Owner/Occupant will 
pay for any damage to a building’s fascia, canopy, 



 29

Definitions 
The following definitions are used throughout the 
comprehensive signage plan and are exclusive to this 
document. 

Aggregate Sign Area 
The total area of all permitted signs pertaining to any 
one Owner/Occupant, which includes Street-front 
signage, Storefront signage (arcade and window 
signage/graphics).

Architectural Frontage 
The portion of the building frontage of the leased 
space which has been delineated through use of 
reveals, patterning, materials, finishes, column breaks, 
etc that creates a special area for signage.

Architectural Awnings
Elements which are constructed of permanent type 
of materials and are an integral part of the building 
elevation design.  

Building Leased Frontage 
The overall lineal foot frontage of a leased space. 

Cabinet (Typical)  
Acrylic, Plexiglas, or plastic-faced panels with surface 
or second-surface applied or painted graphics, 
internally backlit in a box construction.

Custom Cabinet  
Cabinet designed and fabricated in multiple planes, 
colors, finishes and unique shapes and forms.  Typically 
with dimensional illuminated letters and opaque 
backgrounds. 

Committee
Made up of the consenting owners as defined in the 
Construction, Operation and Reciprocal Easement 
Agreement. 

Graphics 
Lettering, symbols, and logos used for name 
identification (primary identification), and for 
identification of product and services (secondary 
identification or modifiers). 

Sign Area 
The aggregate area of the smallest rectangles that 
encloses individual elements of a sign’s lettering and 
logos.

Sign Envelope 
The overall height and length allowances of sign area 
designated for Owner/Occupant sign placement on a 
building elevation. 

Street Front Signage 
Signage installed parallel to the building fascia, 
typically located along the front of the building on 
parapet, fascia or building wall intended for the 
viewing of vehicular traffic. 
 
Storefront Signage & Graphics- Permanent  
This is the signage located along the storefront 
portion, oriented to pedestrian.  It includes the 
transparent portion of storefront (windows) and/
or solid wall areas used for merchandise display 
and permanent graphics.  This includes awnings, 
tenant suite number,  logo and name identification,  
secondary name modifiers, hours of operation,  
services or name brand marketing, menu cabinets, etc.

structure, roof, or flashing caused by sign installation. 
Owner/Occupant shall be fully responsible for the 
operations of Owner's/Occupant's sign contractor 
and shall indemnify, defend, and hold Developer/
Association/Developer harmless for, from, and against 
damages or liabilities of account thereof.  

15 Required insurance for sign contractors   
All sign contractors must carry workers’ compensation 
and commercial liability insurance against all 
damages suffered or done to any and all persons and/
or property while engaged in the construction or 
installation of signs, with a combined single limit in an 
amount not less than two million and no/100 dollars 
($2,000,000.00) per occurrence. Every sign contractor 
must hold a current contractor’s license in the State 
of Arizona. Developer must be named as additionally 
insured in the workers’ compensation and commercial 
liability insurance. 

16 Sign Permits   
Owner/Occupant is responsible for obtaining all 
necessary sign permits prior to sign installation. 

17  Developer/Association’s right to modify 
requirements   
The Developer/Association has the right to modify 



 30



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit 9 





Exhibit 10 



SIGN

LF 16.8
LF 16.0LF 16.0

LF 14.5

LF 14.1

LF 14.9
LF 16.0

LF 16.8

LF 17.5

LF 19.5

LF 19.5

LF 18.0

LF 18.0
LF 15.5LF 15.4LF 15.4

LF 14.1

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

E

PECOS RD

1215

1215

1215

1218

1219

12
16

12
16

1216

1214

1214
1213

1213

12
15

1216

1216

1216

1216

LF 14.1

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB
GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB GB GB

GB

GB

RIM=15.00

GB

GB
GB

GB

GB
GBGB

RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00
RIM=15.00RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00
RIM=15.00

RIM=15.00
RIM=13.00RIM=13.00

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB GB

GB GBGB

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90

RIM=12.90 RIM=12.90

GB

1214

1214

1214

12
1412

14

12
14

12
13

12151214

12
13

12
13

1213

1214

1214

RIM=12.50 RIM=13.00 RIM=13.50 RIM=14.00

GB GB GB

GB
GB

GB

GB

RIM=15.10

RIM=15.10

RIM=15.10

RIM=14.00

RIM=14.00RIM=14.00

GB

GB

GB

N
E

B
R

A
SK

A
 S

T

C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

 S
T

PA
L

M
 L

N

PARCEL 5

PARCEL 6

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 7

PARCEL 4

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

GB

GB

GB

GB

GB

JOB NUMBER
SHEET

SCALE (VERT.)
DATE

SCALE (HORIZ.)

235451

D
IS

TR
IC

T 
D

O
W

N
TO

W
N

S
W

C
 A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 A

V
E

 A
N

D
 P

E
C

O
S

 R
D

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

DA
TE

N/A

Z:
\20

23
\23

54
51

\D
wg

\P
re

_P
lat

\P
lat

\54
51

-P
re

Gr
ad

in
g.

dw
g

CHECKED BY: EB  DESIGNED BY: DS  DRAFTED BY: DS

Wood, Patel & Associates, Inc.

Civil Engineering
Water Resources
Land Survey
Construction Management

602.335.8500

www.woodpatel.com

RE
V

Call 811 or click Arizona811.com

Contact Arizona 811 at least two full
working days before you begin excavation

R

OF 1

Reg
is t

ere
d  Profess ional  Eng ineer  (Civi l)

58109
ETHAN A.

BOYLE

CER
T I F ICATE  NO.

Da t e  S i gned . . . . . . . . . . .
. .

.

AR I ZONA ,  U . S . A .
PR

EL
IM

IN
A

R
Y 

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E 

PL
A

N

5/08/2024

1

24

5

/

/

08

5/08/2024

N

C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
, A

Z

1

1" = 80'

Horz. 1 in. =         ft.

0 80 160

80

RETENTION CALCULATIONS
VR = C x (P/12) x A x 1.1

DESIGN STORM: 100-YEAR, 2-HOUR
RAINFALL DEPTH, P: 2.20 INCHES

RETENTION VOLUMES

BASIN ID
AREA

(SF/AC) C
VOLUME

REQUIRED1, VR

(CF/AF)

DRYWELLS
REQUIRED2

(0.1 CFS / DW)
PARCEL 1 399,533 / 9.17

0.9

72,515 / 1.66 6
PARCEL 2 389,164 / 8.93 70,633 / 1.62 6
PARCEL 3 190,468 / 4.37 34,570 / 0.79 3
PARCEL 4 262,289 / 6.02 47,605 / 1.09 4
PARCEL 5 538,027 / 12.35 97,652 / 2.24 8
PARCEL 6 99,545 / 2.29 18,067 / 0.41 2
PARCEL 7 75,531 / 1.73 13,709 / 0.31 2

O-1 (PECOS) 118,487 / 2.72 22,700 / 0.52 2
O-2 (AZ-87) 82,673 / 1.90 15,839 / 0.36 2

TOTAL 393,291 / 9.03 35
NOTES
1. REQUIRED RETENTION SHALL PROVIDE 110%  OF THE VOLUME

REQUIRED (VR) PER THE CITY OF CHANDLER ENGINEERING & DESIGN
STANDARDS MANUAL, 2023 EDITION.

2. FOR DESIGN AND PERMITTING PURPOSES, EACH DRYWELL SHALL
HAVE A PRESUMPTIVE CAPACITY OF 0.1 CFS (12,960 CUBIC FEET IN 36
HOURS). CREDIT MAY BE ALLOWED TOWARDS THE TOTAL REMAINING
DRYWELLS TO BE CONSTRUCTED AT ONE-HALF OF THE TESTED
CAPACITY, LIMITED TO 0.5 CFS.

   LEGEND   

LOWEST FINISH FLOOR

CHANGE IN GRADE

FLOW ARROW

PROPOSED CATCH BASIN

PARCEL BOUNDARY

LF
GB

NOT
FOR

CONSTRUCTION
OR RECORDING





ITEM  3 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. 24-051
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator 

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Benjamin Cereceres, Planner
Subject: PLH24-0001/PLT24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown
Request: Rezoning from Regional Commercial District (C-3) to Planned Area

Development (PAD) for multi-family residential

Preliminary Development Plan approval for site layout and building
architecture

Preliminary Plat approval
 

Location: located approximately 1/4 mile north of the northeast corner of Arizona
Avenue and Warner Road

Applicant: Jason Morris, Withey Morris Baugh PLC

Proposed Motion:
Rezoning
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Rezoning
PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown from Regional Commercial (C-3) to Planned
Area Development (PAD) for multi-family residential, subject to the conditions
as recommended by Planning staff. 

Preliminary Development Plan
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown for site layout and building
architecture, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Preliminary Plat



Preliminary Plat
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary Plat,
PLT24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown, subject to the condition as recommended by
Planning staff.

Background Data:
The subject site is approximately 14.1 net acres and is currently used as an
auto dealership. 
The site is adjacent to another multi-family development currently under
construction just north of the site and a retail development south of the site. 
The General Plan's designation of the North Arizona Avenue Growth
Area, High Capacity Transit Corridor, and Employment allow for high density
residential to be considered.
The project consists of 420 dwelling units totaling 30 dwelling units per acre.

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Planned Area Development

(PAD) for Multi-Family
South PAD for Commercial

East PAD for Multi-Family West Arizona Avenue, then Regional
Commercial District (C-3)

General Plan and Area Plan Designations
  Existing Proposed
General
Plan

North Arizona Avenue Growth Area, High Capacity
Transit Corridor, Employment 

No
Change

Proposed Development
Proposed
Land Use  Multi-family dwelling units

420 Units
30 dwelling units per acre (du/ac) (staff proposes a max.
density of 35 dwelling unit per acre to allow flexibility during
the construction phase)

Building
Setbacks Arizona Avenue (west): 20'

North Property line: 10' 
South Property line: 10'
East Property line: 20' 



Height  47' Parapet / 53' Architectural Features (staff proposes a max.
height of 55' to permit flexibility during the construction phase)

Roof Design  Varied Parapet Heights 
Facade
Materials Stucco

Masonry Veneer
Metal Screens
Fiber Cement Panels

Building
Accents  Tower Elements

Vertical Metal Screen Elements
Multi-height Parapets 

Site Design &
Open Space  (6) four-story buildings, two (2) of which will front onto

Arizona Avenue. Two internal buildings wrap the primary
common area, and the remaining two (2) buildings are
located toward the back of the development. 
Amenities include event and activity lawns, fire pints and
grilling stations, putting green, ball court and game tables,
dog park, tot lot and Pickleball Court

Parking 
Required  803 parking spaces
Provided 803 parking spaces provided including private
garages, covered, and uncovered spaces. 

Review and Recommendation
The subject site is zoned Regional Commercial District (C-3) and has contained a
car dealership since as far back as 1986. The site is located within the General
Plans's North Arizona Avenue Growth Area that encourages higher densities to
support future transit efforts along Arizona Avenue, a high capacity transit corridor.
This guidance supports the consideration of multi-family with densities exceeding
18 dwelling units per acre within the larger northern Chandler employment area.
Further policies for this growth area call for pedestrian-oriented improvements,
transforming commercial centers into intense mixed-use developments,
transitioning land use intensities to be respectful to existing neighborhoods, and
enhancing Arizona Avenue as a point of entry through design. The proposed
multi-family development aligns with the policies of the North Arizona
Avenue Growth Area and the intent of the High-Capacity Transit Corridor as
identified within the General Plan by increasing density and continue to implement



redevelopment. 

The development presents a crafted regional/contextual eclectic design,
referencing local characteristics of the existing built environment while considering
the dynamic growing nature of this area of Chandler. All buildings feature
four-sided architecture, with harmonious transition between the horizontal and
vertical volumes that is articulated through massing and material, providing
elements of human scale to the architecture. Redevelopment of the site to
multi-family is appropriate and provides more housing within the City's boundaries.
For these reasons, staff finds the proposed multi-family development aligns with
the goals and policies within the General Plan and recommend the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommends approval. 

Traffic Analysis
A Traffic Impact Study (TIS) was provided by the applicant.  The TIS has been
reviewed and accepted by City traffic engineering staff. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on July 18, 2024. There were no residents
in attendance. 
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition
to the request.

Recommended Conditions of Approval:
Rezoning
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of Rezoning from Regional Commercial District (C-3) to
Planned Area Development (PAD) for multi-family residential, subject to the
following conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development
Booklet, entitled " Toll Brothers Uptown" and kept on file in the City of
Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH24-0001, modified by such
conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler
City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by
Chandler City Council.
 

1.



Multiple-family residential shall be permitted at a maximum density of thirty
five (35) dwelling units per acre.
 

2.

Building height shall be limited to a maximum of fifty-five (55) feet in height.
 

3.

Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements
including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks,
median improvements, and street lighting to achieve conformance with City
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 
 

4.

The landscaping in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the property
owner or property owners' association, and shall be maintained at a level
consistent with or better than at the time of planting.
 

5.

The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent
property owner or property owners' association.
 

6.

Minimum building setbacks shall be as follows:7.

Property Line Location  Minimum Building Setback
Arizona Avenue  20'
North 10'
South  10'
East 20'

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions: 

 Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development
Booklet, entitled "Toll Brothers Uptown" and kept on file in the City of
Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH24-0001, modified by such
conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler
City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by
Chandler City Council.
 

1.

Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, retention, rights-of-way, and
street medians) shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.
 

2.



Fifty percent of the trees planted along the arterial streets shall be a minimum
of 36-inch box and be a minimum of 12-feet in height at the time of planting.
 

3.

The site shall be maintained in a clear and orderly manner.
 

4.

Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final
Development Plan approval; compliance with the details required by all
applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler and this Preliminary
Development Plan shall apply.
 

5.

All mechanical equipment, including HVAC, utility meters, etc. shall be
screened from view by material(s) that are architecturally integrated and
consistent with the proposed buildings.
 

6.

Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs
shall be designed in coordination with landscape plans, planting materials,
storm water retention requirements, and utility pedestals, so as not to create
problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required landscape
materials.
 

7.

A minimum of three (3) electric vehicle charging stations shall be installed per
building.

8.

Preliminary Plat
Planning staff recommends the Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat subject to the following condition: 

Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the
details of all submittals required by code or condition.

1.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet 
Community Support 
Traffic Study 



N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E WARNER RD
N 

NE
VA

DA
 S

T

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 ST

N ITHICA ST

E CORPORATE PL

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 PL

E STOTTLER PL

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 S

T

E GILA LN

E TEMPLE ST

E HIGHLAND ST

E CALLE DEL NORTE

E MANOR DR

E EL MONTE PL

E HIGHLAND DR

E ESTRELLA DR

N 
JA

CK
SO

N 
ST

W GRACE BL

E COLT RD

E MARIPOSA PL
E COLT CT

N 
NI

CH
OL

AS
 D

R

E LOS ARBOLES PL

E BROOKS ST

E EL PRADO RD
E EL PRADO CT

N LAYMAN ST

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 C

T

N 
ITH

IC
A S

T

N JACKSON ST

E MANOR DR

E MARIPOSA PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP
Approximately 14.1 acres 
Multi-Family Residential  (30 du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Warner Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown ´
^

Park
Stonegate Park

PAD

PAD

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

MF-3

Town of Gilbert

C-3

PAD

AG-1

MH-1

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD

I-2

PAD

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD
San Vincente

PAD
Crystal Cove

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Biscayne Bay

PAD C-2

Park
Espee Park

and
Chandler Bike Park

PAD

PAD
I-1

PAD

PAD

C-3AG
-1

PAD
Alante
at the

Islands

Project SitePAD
Alta Uptown



N A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E WARNER RD
N 

NE
VA

DA
 S

T

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 ST

N ITHICA ST

E CORPORATE PL

N 
HA

MI
LT

ON
 PL

E STOTTLER PL

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 S

T

E GILA LN

E TEMPLE ST

E HIGHLAND ST

E CALLE DEL NORTE

E MANOR DR

E EL MONTE PL

E HIGHLAND DR

E ESTRELLA DR

N 
JA

CK
SO

N 
ST

W GRACE BL

E COLT RD

E MARIPOSA PL
E COLT CT

N 
NI

CH
OL

AS
 D

R

E LOS ARBOLES PL

E BROOKS ST

E EL PRADO RD
E EL PRADO CT

N LAYMAN ST

N 
OR

EG
ON

 ST

N 
DE

LA
WA

RE
 C

T

N 
ITH

IC
A S

T

N JACKSON ST

E MANOR DR

E MARIPOSA PL

City of Chandler Planning Division

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP
Approximately 14.1 acres 
Multi-Family Residential  (30 du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Warner Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown ´
^

Park
Stonegate Park

PAD

PAD

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

MF-3

Town of Gilbert

C-3

PAD

AG-1

MH-1

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD

I-2

PAD

C-3

PAD

PAD

PAD
San Vincente

PAD
Crystal Cove

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Stonegate Crossing

PAD
Biscayne Bay

PAD C-2

Park
Espee Park

and
Chandler Bike Park

PAD

PAD
I-1

PAD

PAD

C-3AG
-1

PAD
Alante
at the

Islands

Project SitePAD
Alta Uptown



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Toll Brothers Uptown 
Rezoning, Preliminary Development Plan and 
Preliminary Plat Request

Case No. PLH24-0001& PLT24-0001

Submittal: September 3, 2024

 

 



Page 2 of 9 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Legal Representative: 
Withey Morris Baugh PLC 
Jason Morris / Stephanie Watney, AICP 
2525 East Arizona Biltmore Circle, Suite A-212 
Phoenix, Arizona 85016 

Architect: 
Biltform Architecture 
11460 North Cave Creek Road, Suite 11 
Phoenix, Arizona, 85020 
 

Civil Engineer: 
Bowman: 
2420 S. Power Road, Suite 105 
Mesa, Arizona, 85209 

Traffic Engineer: 
Lōkahi, LLC: 
10555 N. 114th Street, Suite 105  
Scottsdale, AZ 85259 

Landscape Architect: 
Collaborative Design Studio 
7116 E. 1st Avenue, Suite 103 
Scottsdale, Arizona, 85251  

Development Team 

Developer: 

 
8767 E Via De Ventura, Ste 270 

Scottsdale, AZ 85258  



Page 3 of 9 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
I. PAD ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

A. PROJECT OVERVIEW ............................................................................................... 4 

B. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES  ....................................................... 5 

C. GENERAL PLAN AND ZONING  .............................................................................. 5 

D. PERMITTED USES ...................................................................................................... 5 

II. PDP ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

A. DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  ................................................................................ 5 

B. SITE LAYOUT AND DESIGN  .................................................................................... 6 

C. ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND THEME  ............................................................... 7 

D. LANDSCAPING .......................................................................................................... 8 

E. PARKING .................................................................................................................... 8 

F. SIGNAGE .................................................................................................................... 8 

G. PHASING .................................................................................................................... 9 

III. ENGINEERING ................................................................................................................... 8 

A. GRADING AND DRAINAGE ..................................................................................... 9 

B. WATER AND SEWER  ................................................................................................ 9 

IV. SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................... 9 

 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 
 

AERIAL CONTEXT MAP  ....................................................................................................... A 

CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN  ................................................................................................... B 

PERSPECTIVE RENDERINGS  .............................................................................................. C 

LANDSCAPE PLAN ............................................................................................................... D 

FLOOR PLANS AND ELEVATIONS  ..................................................................................... E 

COLORS AND MATERIALS PALETTE  ................................................................................. F 

SITE DETAILS AND SIGNAGE ............................................................................................. G 

PRELIMINARY GRADING AND DRAINAGE PLAN ............................................................. H 

PRELIMINARY PLAT ................................................................................................................ I 

 



Page 4 of 9 
 

I. PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT 
 

A. Introduction and Project Overview 
 
On behalf of Toll Bros., Inc, a national developer of high-quality multi-family communities, this application 
is a request for approval of a Planned Area Development (PAD), Preliminary Development Plan (“PDP”) 
and Preliminary Plat for the approximately 14.1 net acre property located at the southeast corner of 
Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard, otherwise commonly known as Maricopa County Assessor’s 
Parcel Numbers 302-29-009E, -009G and -009L (cumulatively, the “Property”) (See Tab A, Aerial Map). 
The Property is well-positioned along Arizona Avenue, a major arterial and designated High-Capacity 
Transit Corridor, with adjacency to Chandler Mercado, which features a number of experience-oriented 
commercial tenants, restaurants and more. 
 
As background, the Property was developed approximately 40 years ago as a car dealership, better 
known today as Earnhardt Chevrolet. To the north of the Property is an in-progress multi-family 
development which was formerly a parking lot that was used for Earnhardt’s related operations. That site 
was recently rezoned to a PAD to allow multi-family development due to market circumstances. Similarly, 
because of the inflationary environment and interest rates, together with locational attributes of the 
dealership, the Property and viability of it as an auto dealership has been impacted. Conversely, there is 
a significant statewide shortage of housing, and demand for quality housing – including within this area 
of Chandler. As such, this PAD provides a framework for re-development of the Property as a high-quality 
multi-family apartment community (the “Project”). 

 
As detailed herein, the intent of this PAD is to establish site-specific permitted uses, as well development 
standards and design criteria for redevelopment of the Property as a high-quality market rate multi-family 
apartment community which will help fill a need for quality and diverse residential housing proximate to 
transit, existing/future retail, and employment opportunities within the highly anticipated Uptown Chandler 
area. The proposed Project is a four-story, 420-unit multi-family community with an overall density of 30 
dwelling units per acre. The Project will include a mix of studio (44), one-bedroom (213), two-bedroom 
(131) and three-bedroom (32) unit configurations ranging from 650 square feet to 1,450 square feet. This 
unit mix offers choice and options to accommodate a variety of lifestyles and transitions, from young 
graduates to retirees looking for a maintenance free, lock-and-leave lifestyle. 

 
The proposed Toll Brothers Uptown multi-family community is in a unique location along a corridor 
anticipated for growth. It will be compatible with existing land use patterns in the area and help synergize 
the area with new residents, which will in turn support other nearby land uses. 
 

B. Relationship to Adjacent Properties 
 
The area surrounding the Property consists of a multi-family development to the east (Zoned PAD); a 
commercial shopping center to the south (Zoned PAD), which features a number of restaurant and 
activity-based tenants – all within walking distance of the Property; Arizona Avenue to the west, with a 



Page 5 of 9 
 

variety of shops and offices beyond the arterial street (Zoned C-2); and future multi-family to the north 
(Zoned PAD).  

 

C. General Plan and Zoning 

 
The City of Chandler General Plan Future Land Use Map and Circulation Plan Map designates the 
Property as Employment / North Arizona Avenue Growth Area, and High Capacity Transit Corridor, 
respectively. Notably, the General Plan provides that residential densities may be considered in an 
Employment designation with a compatible mix of uses and an integral component, as described in 
growth area policies, or otherwise.  

Further, the General Plan provides that multi-family “can be considered… within designated high-
capacity transit corridors”. As noted, the Property is located within a High-Capacity Transit Corridor, thus 
this request conforms to the vision of the General Plan. Further, the North Arizona Avenue Growth 
encourages higher densities to support future transit-oriented efforts along Arizona Avenue, a designated 
high-capacity transit corridor. 

The existing zoning for the Property is C-3 District. As such, this PAD/PDP is requested to rezone the 
Property and allow multi-family residential as a permitted use at the Property, and to establish site layout 
and building architecture for the Project, as detailed further below.  

 

D. Permitted Uses  
 

1. Multi-family residential 
2. Accessory uses for multi-family residential per Zoning Code Section 35-1001. 

 

II. Preliminary Development Plan  
 

The PDP establishes the site and building standards for development of the Property.   
 

A. Development Standards  
 

The following development standards are proposed for the Project: 
 

Table 1 – Development Standards  
Development Standard PAD 
Building Height 47’ (Parapet) 

53’ (Architectural Features) 
Building Setbacks (Min) 

Front (Arizona Avenue) 
Side (North Property Line) 

 
20’ 
10’ 



Page 6 of 9 
 

Side (South Property Line) 
Rear (East Property Line) 

10’ 
20’ 

Perimeter Landscape Setbacks (Min) 
Front (Arizona Avenue) 
Side (North Property Line) 
Side (South Property Line) 
Rear (East Property Line) 

 
20’1 
10’2,3 
10’ 
20’ 

Min. Accessory Structure Setbacks 
(Parking Canopies) 

10’  
 

Lot Coverage (Max) 30%  
Common Open Space 136,804 Square Feet (222 Square Feet/Bedroom) 

 
Parking lot landscape area: In locations on the site plan where the frequency of parking lot planter 
islands exceeds one (1) planter/ten (10) spaces, additional 9-foot-wide islands may accommodate 
pedestrian sidewalks to promote pedestrian connectivity, provided that a minimum of five (5) shrubs is 
provided per island. Where a minimum of four (4) feet of clearance is provided, trees may also be 
accommodated within select islands, where feasible. Additional islands, not to exceed five (5) total, may 
also accommodate pedestrian sidewalks as provided above. This minor relief will allow for the required 
parking to be maintained while meeting the intent of landscape requirements.  

 

B. Site Layout and Design 
 

As designed, the proposed multi-family development features an urban design appropriate for adjacency 
to a high-capacity transit corridor. The main entry drive to the community includes buildings flanking 
either side of the entry drive, with the club house as the focal point, which provides a grand sense of 
arrival. The proposed development consists of six (6) four-story buildings, two (2) of which will front onto 
Arizona Avenue.  Two (2) internal buildings wrap the primary common area, and the remaining two (2) 
buildings are located toward the back of the development. The height of the buildings is approximately 
47 feet to the top of parapet, however the height is strategically extended in some key locations to a 53 
feet. This additional height allows for architectural features and embellishment. 
 
As shown on the enclosed conceptual site plan (Tab B), the proposed community will be highly 
amenitized with several meaningful amenity areas, to conceptually include the following: 
 

• +/- 10,800 square foot club house and leasing office; 
• Resort style swimming pool area featuring two (2) full-sized swimming pools, spa, sun deck, 

beach lawn, and pool cabanas; 
• Entertainment pavilion with outdoor kitchen; 

 
1 The landscape setback along Arizona Avenue may include encroachment of view fencing to promote 
functional use of front yard open space. 
2 The landscape setback for the first 460 feet of the north (west) perimeter may be reduced to 2 feet to 
accommodate driveway access and recreational appurtenances. Any such reduction shall not exceed 250 
consecutive linear feet. 
3 Trash compactor/recycling enclosures are permitted to encroach into the landscape setback. 



Page 7 of 9 
 

• Event and activity lawns; 
• Fire pits and grilling stations; 
• Putting green; 
• Ball courts and game tables;  
• Dog park; 
• Tot lot;  
• Pickleball court; 
• Pedestrian linkages to/from and throughout the Project, fostering connectivity and a sense of 

community; 
• Alternative amenities analogous to the list above may be approved administratively by the 

Zoning Administrator in order to accommodate easement or utility conflicts. 
 

The proposed development provides approximately 145,392 square feet of ground floor building area 
(23.6% lot coverage) and 171,284 square feet (26.2%) of landscaped area, including landscape medians. 
Primary vehicular access is provided via the main drive along the center of the Project’s Arizona Avenue 
frontage. This access provides efficient access to the clubhouse and leasing office, while ensuring gate-
controlled access to the larger community. A secondary full access is provided along the north end of 
the Project’s frontage, which aligns with Grace Boulevard to the west. Additionally, an emergency access 
only driveway is provided along the south project boundary adjacent to Arizona Avenue. Finally, solid 
waste is provided to the east of the most northerly driveway and—due to the distance from the balance 
of units—trash valet is contemplated for resident convenience. 

 

C. Architectural Design and Theme 
 

The architectural approach is a crafted regional/contextual eclectic design, referencing local 
characteristics of the existing built environment while considering the dynamic and growing nature of this 
area of Chandler.  The two buildings fronting Arizona Avenue flank the project's entry, with impactful 
tower elements emblazoned with the project name and articulated with vertical metal screen elements. 
These screens reference a similarly distinctive feature found on nearby Chandler City Hall.  At the 
terminus of the project's entry is another building that surrounds a generously sized and landscaped 
amenity courtyard. All the buildings feature four-sided architecture, with a harmonious transition between 
the horizontal and vertical volumes that is articulated through massing and material, providing elements 
of human scale to the architecture. Use of multi-height parapets, individual deep balcony spaces with a 
variety of undulation treatments and spacious patios at the ground level provide visual interest and depth 
to the elevations. The buildings' fenestration creates varying patterns of gridded windows and grouped 
openings framed within larger scaled massing. 
 
The architectural design is complemented by a desert appropriate landscape palette that surrounds the 
buildings, providing shade, character and greenery to the pedestrian experience.  The central amenity 
area, a key feature to the community, can be accessed through a well-amenitized club house, providing 
a pleasing architectural transition to variety of exterior gathering spaces that promote human interaction. 
To further benefit the resident experience there is also an approximately 2.04-acre landscaped open 
space area located at the rear of the site, whereby the adjacent buildings are sited lengthwise to take 
advantage of views. See Tab C, Perspective Renderings and Tab E, Elevations. 
 



Page 8 of 9 
 

The elevations include complementary colors, materials and textures that take cues from the surrounding 
area, while also providing a residential look and feel to the architecture. The exterior color palette 
balances neutral white and contrasting gray hues with darker warm colors of brown lap siding and stucco.  
In working with staff, the elevations have been fine tuned to include: block-like cladding material that 
wraps the two buildings facing Arizona Avenue and the clubhouse building; textured masonry veneer at 
prominent visible locations across all the buildings; elongated bracket detail at the metal canopies; and, 
distinctive white frame / brown inset articulation primarily at the building corners.  These changes have 
contributed to overall enhancement of the project design.  Masonry veneer enhances the base of the 
buildings with character and texture.  See Tab F, Colors and Materials Palette. 

 

D. Landscaping and Walls 
 
The Community has been designed with ample open space and recreation areas comprised of quality 
amenities distributed throughout. The open space and shared recreation areas are intended to 
encourage resident interaction and create a sense of place. The Community also features a well-planned 
landscape theme which will contribute to a more livable environment. 
 
The Project’s frontage is planned with formal placements of Southern Live Oak and Wilson Olive trees, 
as well as bold massings of shrubs and accents, resulting in a strong formal streetscape design. Color, 
texture and massings will create visual interest for people and cars passing by.  See Tab D, Landscape 
Plan. 
 
A conceptual wall plan is provided at Tab D. The wall plan identifies the north and south boundaries of 
the Property enclosed with a 6-foot-tall wall. There is an existing wall along the east boundary, which will 
be painted to match the theme of the Project. Along the Project’s Arizona Avenue frontage are a series 
of yards enclosed with a 6-foot-tall decorative view fence.  
 

E. Parking 
 
There are 803 parking spaces required and provided for the proposed development, for an overall ratio 
of 1.91 parking spaces per unit. This provided parking includes 135 garage parking spaces, 135 tandem 
parking spaces, 285 covered parking spaces, and 248 open parking spaces. This ratio meets the 
requirements for guest parking and will mitigate spillover within the larger area. The overall parking ratio 
includes 16 accessible parking spaces, and Electric Vehicle parking will be provided at a rate of six 
percent for a total of 49 spaces for both EV ready and EV capable charging stations. 

F. Signage 

Conceptual building and monument signage is enclosed herein (Tab G). There are two (2) 6-foot-tall 
project monument signs proposed along the Arizona Avenue frontage, at the main entrance to the 
development. The proposed monument signage features a masonry veneer base, as well as reverse pan 
channel lettering pegged off of a painted stucco finish and rear illuminated. The proposed signage is 
architecturally integrated with the project elevations to ensure a cohesive appearance.  



Page 9 of 9 
 

The sign plan also proposed two (2) street facing wall mounted signs, with a maximum sign area of 50 
square feet each. 
 

G. Phasing 
 

It is anticipated that the Project will be developed under a single phase, subject to market conditions. 
 

III. Engineering 
 

A. Grading and Drainage 
 

The grading and drainage design will incorporate onsite surface retention basins and underground 
retention systems.  The requirement for this Property is to capture 110% of the 100-year 2-hour storm 
event.  The Property will ultimately outfall to the northwest corner at Arizona Avenue.  An approved City 
of Chandler underground storage system will be utilized.   
 
The Arizona Avenue frontage will be rebuilt to remove and add deceleration lanes. The half-street 
drainage that historically was coming to the Property will be captured by scuppers and routed to 
underground retention.   See Tab H, Preliminary Grading and Drainage Plan. 

 

B. Water and Sewer 
 
This Property is bound on the west by public right-of-way and existing public water and sewer 
infrastructure.  There is an existing 12” sanitary main located within Arizona Avenue that will serve this 
site.  There is an existing 16” water main within Arizona Avenue.   
 
A private 8” sewer tap is planned to connect to an existing manhole in Arizona Avenue.  

 
Two 8” water meters from the existing 16” water main in Arizona Avenue will connect to a private onsite 
8” water system loop. The loop will be for domestic water service to the buildings, landscaping water, 
and multiple fire hydrants onsite as well as the fire sprinkler connection to the building.  Onsite fire hydrant 
coverage will be provided to meet City of Chandler Fire Department requirements. 

 

IV. Summary 
 

This proposal will provide new, highly-amenitized and quality housing opportunities within Uptown Chandler, 
an important area of growth for the City, proximate to existing and future retail and employment opportunities, 
and major transportation arteries. The Project conforms to the City’s established policy goals and will be a 
compatible and complementary land use for the area. 

























































































































































Body Color    

   Body Color    

   

   

  

   













1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

BIKE SHOP

MECH

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

B2A2 A2A1

B2 A1 A1

A1

AS

A1

A2

C1

C1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

SHOP

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

AS

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

AS

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

MECH.

W / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM
LIN.

A6

B2

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

B2

ASKITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

LIVING

W.I.C. M. BATH

BATH #2

LIN.

M. BEDROOM

PAN.

BALCONY

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

BEDROOM #2

WH

STO.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

LIN.

PATIO

B5

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

BIKE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.
CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1
M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.
CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

MAINTENANCE

BREAK RM

ELEC RM

PORTER

STORAGE
STORAGE
CHEMICAL

MAINTENANCE
OFFICE

TECH WORK

MECH

MECH

B2A2
MAINT

KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

B2

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

B2

MECH.

W / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM
LIN.

A6
KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

MECH.

W
 / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W
.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM

LIN.

A
6

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.
M.

 B
AT

H

BA
TH

 #2

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

PA
N.

BA
LC

ON
Y

W
.I.C

.

KI
TC

HE
N

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

W
H ST

O.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

PA
TI

O

B5

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.
M.

 B
AT

H

BA
TH

 #2

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

PA
N.

BA
LC

ON
Y

W
.I.C

.

KI
TC

HE
N

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

W
HST

O.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

PA
TI

OB5

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

A1

ASKITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

A1

DI
NI

NG

EN
TR

Y

KI
TC

HE
N PA

N.

W
 / D

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BE
DR

OO
M 

#3

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

W
AL

KI
N

CO
AT

PA
TI

O

C1

KITCHEN

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2 MECH.

W
 / D

W
.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

KI
TC

HE
N

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

W
.I.C

.

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

BA
TH

 #2

LIV
IN

G

PA
N.

M.
 B

AT
H

PA
TI

O

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

LIVING

M. BATH

LIN.

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

KITCHEN

PAN.

W
 / D

MECH.
W

. H.

CLOSET

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

B1
B1

A1

A1

A2

A2

KITCHEN

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2 MECH.

W
 / D

W
.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO B1

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

A2

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

A2

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1
1

DINING

ENTRY

KITCHEN PAN.

W
 / D

BALCONY

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

BEDROOM #3

LIVING

M. BATH
BATH #2

MECH.

CLOS

W
ALKIN

COAT

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

LIVING

M. BATH

LIN.

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

KITCHEN

PAN.

W
 / D

MECH.
W

. H.

CLOSET

PATIO

KITCHEN

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2 MECH.

W
 / D

W
.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

M.
 B

AT
H

PA
N.

KI
TC

HE
N

W
.I.C

.

CL
OS

ET

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

KITCHEN

PAN.

M. BEDROOM

W
.I.C.

BATH

W
. H.

LIVING

DINING

OFFICE
FLEX

W
 / D

MECH.

CLOSET

PATIO

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

B2

B4

A1

A1

A2

A2

B1

B2

B2
B4

A1

A2

C1 C1

LIVING

M. BATH

LIN.

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

KITCHEN

PAN.

W
 / D

MECH.
W

. H.

CLOSET

PATIO

A2

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

A2

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

KITCHEN

PAN.

M. BEDROOM

W
.I.C.

BATH

W
. H.

LIVING

DINING

OFFICE
FLEX

W
 / D

MECH.

CLOSET

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

DI
NI

NG

EN
TR

Y

KI
TC

HE
N PA

N.

W
 / D

BA
LC

ON
Y

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BE
DR

OO
M 

#3

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

W
AL

KI
N

CO
AT

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

B4

B4

A2

C1

A1

C1

AS

B2

A2

A1

A2

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

AS

'SB'

'SC' 'SD' 'BA' 'SA'

3

3

4

5

3

3

5

3

3

3

3 3

3

5

5

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

SCALE:

23-031

REVISIONS:

BILTFORM ARCHITECTURE GROUP, INC.

11460 north cave creek road  .   suite   11
phoenix   .   arizona    8 5 0 2 0

i l t f o r m a r c h i t e c t u r e
g r o u p ,   LLC .

Phone  602.285.9200 Fax   602.285.9229

f o
 r 

m

b

EXPIRES 9/30/25

-

100% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

02/16/2024

TO
LL

 BR
OT

HE
RS

 AP
AR

TM
EN

T L
IVI

NG
87

67
 E

. V
IA

 D
E 

VE
NT

UR
A,

 S
UI

TE
 39

0, 
SC

OT
TS

DA
LE

, A
Z. 

85
25

8

TO
LL

 B
RO

TH
ER

S 
UP

TO
W

N
Ap

ar
tm

en
t H

om
es

CH
AN

DL
ER

, A
RI

ZO
NA

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  u

  r
  e

SITE LIGHTING
ELECTRICAL PLAN

1" = 30'-0"

E1.1

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E

R
EF

ER
 T

O
SH

EE
T 

E1
.1

.2



1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

B2

B2

A1

A1

A1

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

AS

AS

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

B2

MECH.

W / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

PATIO

M. BEDROOM
LIN.

A6

LIVING

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

BALCONY

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

LIN.

PATIO

B5

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

MECH.

W
 / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W
.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM

LIN.

A
6

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.
M.

 B
AT

H

BA
TH

 #2

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

PA
N.

BA
LC

ON
Y

W
.I.C

.

KI
TC

HE
N

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

W
H ST

O.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

PA
TI

O

B5

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

DI
NI

NG

EN
TR

Y

KI
TC

HE
N PA

N.

W
 / D

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BE
DR

OO
M 

#3

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

W
AL

KI
N

CO
AT

PA
TI

O

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

DINING

ENTRY

KITCHEN PAN.

W
 / D

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

BEDROOM #3

LIVING

M. BATH
BATH #2

MECH.

CLOS

W
ALKIN

COAT

PATIO

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

W
.I.C

.

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

BA
TH

 #2

LIV
IN

G

PA
N.

M.
 B

AT
H

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

'SA'

'SD'

'SC' 'BA'

3

3

3

5

5

3

4

4

4

3
5

4

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

SCALE:

23-031

REVISIONS:

BILTFORM ARCHITECTURE GROUP, INC.

11460 north cave creek road  .   suite   11
phoenix   .   arizona    8 5 0 2 0

i l t f o r m a r c h i t e c t u r e
g r o u p ,   LLC .

Phone  602.285.9200 Fax   602.285.9229

f o
 r 

m

b

EXPIRES 9/30/25

-

100% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

02/16/2024

TO
LL

 BR
OT

HE
RS

 AP
AR

TM
EN

T L
IVI

NG
87

67
 E

. V
IA

 D
E 

VE
NT

UR
A,

 S
UI

TE
 39

0, 
SC

OT
TS

DA
LE

, A
Z. 

85
25

8

TO
LL

 B
RO

TH
ER

S 
UP

TO
W

N
Ap

ar
tm

en
t H

om
es

CH
AN

DL
ER

, A
RI

ZO
NA

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  u

  r
  e

SITE LIGHTING
ELECTRICAL PLAN

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E

R
EF

ER
 T

O
SH

EE
T 

E1
.1

.1

1" = 30'-0"

E1.2



1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

BIKE SHOP

MECH

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALLTANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

B2A2 A2

B2

B2

A1A1

B2 A1 A1

A1

AS

A1

A2

C1

C1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

A2

SHOP

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

AS

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

AS

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

B2

MECH.

W / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM
LIN.

A6

B2

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

B2

ASKITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

LIVING

W.I.C. M. BATH

BATH #2

LIN.

M. BEDROOM

PAN.

BALCONY

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

BEDROOM #2

WH

STO.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

LIN.

PATIO

B5

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2
M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

BIKE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.
CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.
CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

MAINTENANCE

BREAK RM

ELEC RM

PORTER

STORAGE
STORAGE
CHEMICAL

MAINTENANCE
OFFICE

TECH WORK

MECH

MECH

B2A2
MAINT

KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.
CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

B2

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

B2

MECH.

W / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM
LIN.

A6
KITCHEN

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

MECH.

W / D

W.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

B1

MECH.

W
 / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W
.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM

LIN.

A
6

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.
M.

 B
AT

H

BA
TH

 #2

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

PA
N.

BA
LC

ON
Y

W
.I.C

.

KI
TC

HE
N

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

W
H ST

O.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

PA
TI

O

B5

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.
M.

 B
AT

H

BA
TH

 #2

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

PA
N.

BA
LC

ON
Y

W
.I.C

.

KI
TC

HE
N

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

W
HST

O.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

PA
TI

OB5

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

A1

ASKITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

A1

DI
NI

NG

EN
TR

Y

KI
TC

HE
N PA

N.

W
 / D

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BE
DR

OO
M 

#3

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

W
AL

KI
N

CO
AT

PA
TI

O

C1

KITCHEN

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2 MECH.

W
 / D

W
.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

KI
TC

HE
N

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

W
.I.C

.

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

BA
TH

 #2

LIV
IN

G

PA
N.

M.
 B

AT
H

PA
TI

O

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

LIVING

M. BATH

LIN.

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

KITCHEN

PAN.

W
 / D

MECH.
W

. H.

CLOSET

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

B1
B1

A1

A1

A2

A2

KITCHEN

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2 MECH.

W
 / D

W
.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO B1
LIV

IN
G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

A2

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

A2

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W / D

LIVING

W.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1

DINING

ENTRY

KITCHEN PAN.

W
 / D

BALCONY

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

BEDROOM #3

LIVING

M. BATH
BATH #2

MECH.

CLOS

W
ALKIN

COAT

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

LIVING

M. BATH

LIN.

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

KITCHEN

PAN.

W
 / D

MECH.
W

. H.

CLOSET

PATIO

KITCHEN

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2 MECH.

W
 / D

W
.I.C.

CLOSET

LIN.

BATH #2

LIVING

PAN.

M. BATH

PATIO

M.
 B

AT
H

PA
N.

KI
TC

HE
N

W
.I.C

.

CL
OS

ET

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

KITCHEN

PAN.

M. BEDROOM

W
.I.C.

BATH

W
. H.

LIVING

DINING

OFFICE
FLEX

W
 / D

MECH.

CLOSET

PATIO

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

B2

B4

A1

A1

A2

A2

B1

B2

B2
B4

A1

A2

C1 C1

LIVING

M. BATH

LIN.

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

KITCHEN

PAN.

W
 / D

MECH.
W

. H.

CLOSET

PATIO

A2

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

A2

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

KITCHEN

PAN.

M. BEDROOM

W
.I.C.

BATH

W
. H.

LIVING

DINING

OFFICE
FLEX

W
 / D

MECH.

CLOSET

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

DI
NI

NG

EN
TR

Y

KI
TC

HE
N PA

N.

W
 / D

BA
LC

ON
Y

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BE
DR

OO
M 

#3

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

W
AL

KI
N

CO
AT

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

B4

B4

A2

C1

A1

C1

AS

B2

A2

A1

A2

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

AS

3

3

4

5

3

3

5

3

3

5

3

5

3 3

3

5

5

'SA'

'SC' 'SD' 'BA''BB'

'SC'

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

SCALE:

23-031

REVISIONS:

BILTFORM ARCHITECTURE GROUP, INC.

11460 north cave creek road  .   suite   11
phoenix   .   arizona    8 5 0 2 0

i l t f o r m a r c h i t e c t u r e
g r o u p ,   LLC .

Phone  602.285.9200 Fax   602.285.9229

f o
 r 

m

b

EXPIRES 9/30/25

-

100% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

02/16/2024

TO
LL

 BR
OT

HE
RS

 AP
AR

TM
EN

T L
IVI

NG
87

67
 E

. V
IA

 D
E 

VE
NT

UR
A,

 S
UI

TE
 39

0, 
SC

OT
TS

DA
LE

, A
Z. 

85
25

8

TO
LL

 B
RO

TH
ER

S 
UP

TO
W

N
Ap

ar
tm

en
t H

om
es

CH
AN

DL
ER

, A
RI

ZO
NA

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  u

  r
  e

SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E

R
EF

ER
 T

O
SH

EE
T 

E1
.2

.2

1" = 30'-0"

E1.3



1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

NDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

LIN
.

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

W
 / D

ME
CH

.
W

. H
.

CLOSET

PA
TI

O

B2

B2

A1

A1

A1

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

AS

AS

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

B2

MECH.

W / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

PATIO

BEDROOM
LIN.

A6

LIVING

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

BALCONY

W.I.C.

KITCHEN

MECH.

W / D

CLOSET

LIN.

PATIO

B5

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A2

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

A1

MECH.

W
 / D

PAN.

M. BATH

KITCHEN

LIVING

W
.I.C.

PATIO

M. BEDROOM

LIN.

A
6

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.
M.

 B
AT

H

BA
TH

 #2

LIN
.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

PA
N.

BA
LC

ON
Y

W
.I.C

.

KI
TC

HE
N

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

W
H ST

O.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

LIN
.

PA
TI

O

B5

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

1-CAR GARAGE 1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

A1

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

TA
ND

EM
 S

TA
LL

1-
CA

R 
GA

RA
GE

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

DI
NI

NG

EN
TR

Y

KI
TC

HE
N PA

N.

W
 / D

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

BE
DR

OO
M 

#3

LIV
IN

G

M.
 B

AT
H

BA
TH

 #2

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

W
AL

KI
N

CO
AT

PA
TI

O

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

DINING

ENTRY

KITCHEN PAN.

W
 / D

M. BEDROOM

BEDROOM #2

BEDROOM #3

LIVING

M. BATH
BATH #2

MECH.

CLOS

W
ALKIN

COAT

PATIO

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

KITCHEN

M. BATH

M. BEDROOM

LIVING

PATIO

PAN.

MECH.

W
 / D

CLOSET

KI
TC

HE
N

M.
 B

AT
H

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

LIV
IN

G

PA
TI

O

PA
N.

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

CL
OS

ET

M.
 B

AT
H

ME
CH

.

LIN
.

W
 / D

LIV
IN

G

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

CL
OS

ET

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

W
.I.C

.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

BE
DR

OO
M 

#2

ME
CH

.

W
 / D

W
.I.C

.
CL

OS
ET

LIN
.

BA
TH

 #2

LIV
IN

G

PA
N.

M.
 B

AT
H

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

KI
TC

HE
N

PA
N.

M.
 B

ED
RO

OM

W
.I.C

.

BA
TH

W
. H

.

LIV
IN

G

DI
NI

NG

OF
FI

CE
FL

EX

W
 / D

ME
CH

.

CL
OS

ET

PA
TI

O

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE
1-CAR GARAGE

TANDEM STALL
TANDEM STALL

1-CAR GARAGE

M. BATH

MECH.

LIN.

W
 / D

LIVING

W
.I.C.

M. BEDROOM

CLOSET

KITCHEN

PAN.

PATIO

3

3

3

5

5

3

4

4

4

3
5

4

'SA'

'SA'

'SD'

'SC'

'BA'

SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

SCALE:

23-031

REVISIONS:

BILTFORM ARCHITECTURE GROUP, INC.

11460 north cave creek road  .   suite   11
phoenix   .   arizona    8 5 0 2 0

i l t f o r m a r c h i t e c t u r e
g r o u p ,   LLC .

Phone  602.285.9200 Fax   602.285.9229

f o
 r 

m

b

EXPIRES 9/30/25

-

100% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

02/16/2024

TO
LL

 BR
OT

HE
RS

 AP
AR

TM
EN

T L
IVI

NG
87

67
 E

. V
IA

 D
E 

VE
NT

UR
A,

 S
UI

TE
 39

0, 
SC

OT
TS

DA
LE

, A
Z. 

85
25

8

TO
LL

 B
RO

TH
ER

S 
UP

TO
W

N
Ap

ar
tm

en
t H

om
es

CH
AN

DL
ER

, A
RI

ZO
NA

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  u

  r
  e

SITE PHOTOMETRIC PLAN

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E

R
EF

ER
 T

O
SH

EE
T 

E1
.2

.1

1" = 30'-0"

E1.4



SHEET NO:

JOB NO:

SCALE:

23-031

REVISIONS:

BILTFORM ARCHITECTURE GROUP, INC.

11460 north cave creek road  .   suite   11
phoenix   .   arizona    8 5 0 2 0

i l t f o r m a r c h i t e c t u r e
g r o u p ,   LLC .

Phone  602.285.9200 Fax   602.285.9229

f o
 r 

m

b

EXPIRES 9/30/25

-

100% SCHEMATIC
DESIGN

02/16/2024

TO
LL

 BR
OT

HE
RS

 AP
AR

TM
EN

T L
IVI

NG
87

67
 E

. V
IA

 D
E 

VE
NT

UR
A,

 S
UI

TE
 39

0, 
SC

OT
TS

DA
LE

, A
Z. 

85
25

8

TO
LL

 B
RO

TH
ER

S 
UP

TO
W

N
Ap

ar
tm

en
t H

om
es

CH
AN

DL
ER

, A
RI

ZO
NA

a 
 r

  c
  h

  i
  t

  e
  c

  t
  u

  r
  e

EXTERIOR LIGHTING
FIXTURE CUTSHEETS

FIXTURE TYPE 'SA', 'SB' AND 'SC' 

FIXTURE TYPE 'SD' 

FIXTURE TYPE 'BA' 

N/A

E1.5

MOUNT @ '18-0" A.F.F.
43 5

MOUNT @ '18-0" A.F.F.

FIXTURE TYPE 'BB' 
MOUNT @ 7'-6" A.F.F.MOUNT AT CARPORT





T










































BASIN B
VOL REQ: 992 CF

VOL PRO: 1,456 CF

























































 















































SS

TR

TR

T

G














































BASIN OF
VOL REQ: 13,028 CF
VOL PRO: 13,216 CF
























































 












































































































































































   
 

 
 

   
 

 

 
 
 

Toll Brothers Uptown 
Traffic Impact Study 
Category I 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for:  

 
 
 
Project Number: 23.5569 
January 26, 2024 

 
 

Toll Brothers Apartment Living 
8767 E Via De Ventura, Suite 390 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
 

P 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Prepared by: 

 
 

 Lōkahi, LLC 
10555 N. 114th Street, Suite 105 
Scottsdale, AZ 85259 

01/26/24



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

i 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS: 
 
1. Introduction and Executive Summary .............................................................................................1 

1.1. Purpose of Report and Study Objectives ..................................................................................1 

1.2. Executive Summary.................................................................................................................... 2 

2. Proposed Development ................................................................................................................... 5 

3. Area Conditions ................................................................................................................................ 8 

3.1. Study Roadway Segments ......................................................................................................... 8 

3.2. Study Intersections .................................................................................................................... 8 

3.3. Study Area Land Use .................................................................................................................. 9 

3.4. Site Accessibility ......................................................................................................................... 9 

4. Existing Conditions .......................................................................................................................... 12 

4.1. Existing Land Use ...................................................................................................................... 12 

4.2. Existing Traffic Counts .............................................................................................................. 12 

4.3. Existing Capacity Analysis ........................................................................................................ 14 

5. Projected Traffic .............................................................................................................................. 17 

5.1. Trip Generation.......................................................................................................................... 17 

5.1.1. Proposed Development .................................................................................................... 17 

5.1.2. Existing Development ....................................................................................................... 17 

5.2. Trip Generation Comparison ................................................................................................... 18 

5.3. Trip Distribution and Assignment ........................................................................................... 18 

6. Future Conditions (Year 2027 – Opening Year) ............................................................................. 21 

6.1. Year 2027 Background Traffic Volumes ................................................................................... 21 

6.2. Year 2027 Build Traffic Volumes ............................................................................................... 21 

6.3. Year 2027 No Build Capacity Analysis ...................................................................................... 22 

6.4. Year 2027 Build Capacity Analysis ........................................................................................... 22 

7. Future Conditions (Year 2032) ....................................................................................................... 29 

7.1. Year 2032 Background Traffic Volumes .................................................................................. 29 

7.2. Year 2032 Build Traffic Volumes .............................................................................................. 29 

7.3. Year 2032 No Build Capacity Analysis ...................................................................................... 29 

7.4. Year 2032 Build Capacity Analysis ........................................................................................... 30 

8. Right Turn Lane Warrants.............................................................................................................. 36 

9. Recommendations and Conclusions ............................................................................................. 37 

 

  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

ii 

 
 

FIGURES: 
 
Figure 1 – Vicinity Map .............................................................................................................................. 6 

Figure 2 – Site Plan .................................................................................................................................... 7 

Figure 3 – Study Area ............................................................................................................................... 11 

Figure 4 – Existing Traffic Volumes ........................................................................................................ 13 

Figure 5 – Existing Capacity Analysis ..................................................................................................... 16 

Figure 6 – Trip Distribution ..................................................................................................................... 19 

Figure 7 – Site Generated Traffic Volumes ............................................................................................ 20 

Figure 8 – Year 2027 Background Traffic Volumes................................................................................ 25 

Figure 9 – Year 2027 Build Traffic Volumes ........................................................................................... 26 

Figure 10 – Year 2027 No Build Capacity Analysis .................................................................................. 27 

Figure 11 – Year 2027 Build Capacity Analysis ........................................................................................ 28 

Figure 12 – Year 2032 Background Traffic Volumes .............................................................................. 32 

Figure 13 – Year 2032 Build Traffic Volumes .......................................................................................... 33 

Figure 14 – Year 2032 No Build Capacity Analysis .................................................................................. 34 

Figure 15 – Year 2032 Build Capacity Analysis ........................................................................................ 35 

 

Tables: 
 
Table 1 – Level of Service Criteria ........................................................................................................... 14 

Table 2 – Existing Level of Service, Delay, and V/C Ratio ...................................................................... 15 

Table 3 – Trip Generation – Proposed Development ............................................................................. 17 

Table 4 – Trip Generation – Existing Development................................................................................ 17 

Table 5 – Trip Generation Comparison .................................................................................................. 18 

Table 6 – Year 2027 Level of Service, Delay, and V/C Ratio .................................................................. 24 

Table 7 – Year 2032 Level of Service, Delay, and V/C Ratio ................................................................... 31 

 

APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A – Proposed Site Plan ............................................................................................................ A 

Appendix B – Parcel Information ............................................................................................................ B 

Appendix C – Traffic Count Data .............................................................................................................. C 

Appendix D – Existing Capacity Analysis ................................................................................................ D 

Appendix E – Trip Generation .................................................................................................................. E 

Appendix F – MAG Socioeconomic Projections ...................................................................................... F 

Appendix G – Surrounding Development(s) .......................................................................................... G 

Appendix H – Year 2027 No Build Capacity Analysis .............................................................................. H 

Appendix I – Year 2027 Build Capacity Analysis ....................................................................................... I 
Appendix J – Year 2032 No Build Capacity Analysis ................................................................................ J 

Appendix K – Year 2032 Build Capacity Analysis .................................................................................... K 



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

1 

 

1. INTRODUCTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND STUDY OBJECTIVES 

Lōkahi, LLC (Lōkahi) was retained by Toll Brothers Apartment Living to complete a Traffic Impact 
Study (TIS) for the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown residential development. The development is 
generally located on the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard in the City of 
Chandler, Arizona. 
 
The proposed development will be comprised of 423 dwelling units. Of which, there will be 40 
studio units, 208 one-bedroom units, 137 two-bedroom units, and 38 three-bedroom units.  

 
The objective of this Traffic Impact Study is to analyze the traffic related impacts of the proposed 
development to the adjacent roadway network. See Figure 1 for the vicinity map. 
 
This Traffic Impact Analysis includes: 
 

• Level of service analysis of existing conditions for the weekday AM and PM peak hours 

• Trip generation for the proposed development 

• Level of service analysis for the opening year (2027) weekday AM and PM peak hours 

• Level of service analysis for 5 years after the opening year (2032) weekday AM and PM peak 
hours 

 
The following are the intersections included in this study: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1) – existing (with future site access) 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2) – existing (with future site access) 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway C (3) – proposed (emergency access only) 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway D (4) – existing  

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway E (5) – existing  
  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

2 

 

1.2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report presents the analyses and the results of a Traffic Impact Study prepared for the 
proposed Toll Brothers Uptown residential development. The proposed development is generally 
located on the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard in the City of Chandler, 
Arizona.  
 
The proposed development will be comprised of 423 dwelling units. Of which, there will be 40 
studio units, 208 one-bedroom units, 137 two-bedroom units, and 38 three-bedroom units.  
 
The proposed Toll Brothers Uptown residential development is anticipated to start leasing the first 
units in 2026. As a conservative approach it was assumed the full build out would occur in the year 
2027. 
 
Existing Capacity Analysis 
The AM and PM peak hour existing conditions capacity analyses were completed for the existing 
study intersections. The results of the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS 
C or better. 
 
Trip Generation 
The proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development is anticipated to generate a total of 1,971 daily 
trips, with 175 trips occurring in the AM peak hour and 165 trips in the PM peak hour.  
 

Trip Generation 
 

 
 
Trip Generation Comparison 
A trip generation comparison was completed between the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown 
development and the existing automobile sales dealership. The proposed development generates 
22 fewer weekday trips, with 42 more trips during the AM peak hour and 8 fewer trips during the 
PM peak hour, when compared to the existing automobile sales dealership. 
  

Weekday

Total Total In Out Total In Out

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
1,971 175 40 135 165 104 61

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

3 

 

Trip Generation Comparison 
 

 
 
Future Conditions 
Year 2027 (build out) and year 2032 (5 years after build out) analyses were completed without and 
with the build out of the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown. Utilizing MAG socioeconomic data for the 
study area, existing traffic volumes were grown by an annual growth rate of 1.0% to determine the 
future traffic volumes. Additionally, known surrounding development(s) were included in future 
traffic volumes. 
 
Year 2027 – Opening Year 
A capacity analysis was completed for both the AM and PM peak hours for the year 2027, without 
and with the build out of the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development. The year 2027 build 
capacity analysis resulted in all movements operating at a LOS D or better, with the exception of: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Eastbound left PM peak hour operates at LOS E 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)  
o Westbound left AM peak hour operates at LOS E 

 
Year 2032 – 5 Years After Opening Year 
A capacity analysis was completed for both the AM and PM peak hours for the year 2032, without 
and with the build out of the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development. The year 2032 build 
capacity analysis resulted in all movements operating at a LOS D or better, with the exception of: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Eastbound left PM peak hour operates at LOS E 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)  
o Westbound left AM peak hour operates at LOS F 

 
Delays are typical during peak hours for minor-to-major turning movements as well as for movements 
at stop-controlled intersections. Drivers familiar with the area often choose to use alternate routes 

Weekday

Total Total In Out Total In Out

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
1,993 133 97 36 173 69 104

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
1,971 175 40 135 165 104 61

-22 42 -57 99 -8 35 -43

Existing Development

Proposed Development

Difference

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

4 

 

during peak hours or drive at different times to avoid potential delay. Therefore, improvements to 
mitigate LOS E or F at the above intersections are not recommended as part of this study.  
 
Recommendations 
The following are the recommendations with the build out of the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown 
development: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Buildout of full-access point on the east leg of the intersection 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)  
o Buildout of full-access point on the east leg of the intersection 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway C (3)  
o Buildout of an emergency access only driveway.  

  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

5 

 

2. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

The proposed development is generally located on the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and 
Grace Boulevard in the City of Chandler, Arizona. See Figure 1 for a vicinity map. 
 
The proposed development will be comprised of 423 dwelling units. Of which, there will be 40 
studio units, 208 one-bedroom units, 137 two-bedroom units, and 38 three-bedroom units.  
 
There will be a total of three (3) access points provided for the proposed development: 
 
Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1) will be a full-access point on the east side of 
the existing intersection. This driveway will provide full access, allowing all movements into and out 
of the site. 
Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2) will be a full-access point on the east side of the existing 
intersection. This driveway will provide full access, allowing all movements into and out of the site. 
 
Arizona Avenue and Driveway C (3) will be an emergency access only along Arizona Avenue, 
approximately 270-feet south of Driveway B.  
 
See Figure 2 and Appendix A for the proposed site plan. 



FIGURE 1 | VICINITY MAP

PROPOSED SITE

Warner Road
Ar

iz
on

a 
Av

en
ue

Elliot Road

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
oa

d

Knox Road

Grace Boulevard



FIGURE 2 | SITE PLAN



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

8 

 

3. AREA CONDITIONS 

The proposed site is located within the City of Chandler, Arizona. Sections 3.1 and 3.2 provide 
detailed descriptions of the study roadway segments and intersections. See Figure 3 for the study 
area. 
 

3.1. STUDY ROADWAY SEGMENTS 

Arizona Avenue generally runs north-south and provides three (3) travel lanes for each direction of 
travel, with a center two-way left turn lane. There is a posted speed limit of 45 miles per hour 
(mph). Per the City of Chandler’s Transportation Master Plan Update, dated January 2020, Arizona 
Avenue is classified as a major arterial. According to the City of Chandler 2023 Road Segment 
Traffic Volumes, Arizona Avenue has an Average Daily Traffic (ADT) of 31,700 vehicles per day 
(vpd), between Elliot Road and Warner Road. 
 
Grace Boulevard generally runs east-west within the proposed study area and provides one (1) 
travel lane for each direction of travel. There is an unposted speed limit of 25 mph. 
 

3.2. STUDY INTERSECTIONS 

Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard (1) currently operates as a one-way stop-controlled T-
intersection with stop control on the eastbound approach. The eastbound approach provides 
approximately 45 feet of unmarked pavement that is assumed to operate as one (1) left turn lane 
and one (1) right turn lane. The northbound approach provides one (1) dedicated left turn lane, via a 
two-way left turn lane, and three (3) through lanes. The southbound approach provides three (3) 
through lanes and one (1) dedicated right turn lane. 
 
Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (3) currently operates as a two-way stop-controlled T-intersection 
with stop control on the eastbound and westbound approaches. The eastbound and westbound 
approaches are assumed to operate as one (1) shared left-through-right lane. The northbound 
approach provides one (1) dedicated left turn lane, via a two-way left turn lane, two (2) through 
lanes and one (1) shared through-right turn lane. The southbound approach provides one (1) 
dedicated left turn lane, via a two-way left turn lane, and two (2) through lanes, and one (1) 
dedicated right turn lane. Driveway B is located approximately 375-feet south of Grave Boulevard 
(centerline-to-centerline). 
 
Arizona Avenue and Driveway D (4) currently operates as a two-way stop-controlled T-intersection 
with stop control on the eastbound and westbound approaches. The eastbound and westbound 
approaches are assumed to operate as one (1) shared left-through-right lane. The northbound 
approach provides one (1) dedicated left turn lane, via a two-way left turn lane, two (2) through 
lanes and one (1) shared through-right turn lane. The southbound approach provides one (1) 
dedicated left turn lane, via a two-way left turn lane, and two (2) through lanes, and one (1) 



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

9 

 

dedicated right turn lane. Driveway D is located approximately 675-feet south of Grave Boulevard 
(centerline-to-centerline). 
 
Arizona Avenue and Driveway E (5) currently operates as a two-way stop-controlled T-intersection 
with stop control on the eastbound and westbound approaches. The eastbound and westbound 
approaches are assumed to operate as one (1) shared left-through-right lane. The northbound 
approach provides one (1) dedicated left turn lane, via a two-way left turn lane, two (2) through 
lanes and one (1) dedicated right turn lane. The southbound approach provides one (1) dedicated 
left turn lane, via a two-way left turn lane, and two (2) through lanes, and one (1) dedicated right 
turn lane. Driveway D is located approximately 675-feet south of Grave Boulevard (centerline-to-
centerline). 
 

3.3. STUDY AREA LAND USE 

The proposed site is generally located on southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard 
in the City of Chandler, Arizona. The immediate surroundings study area primarily consists of 
residential and commercial land uses. The Chandler Mercado retail center borders the site to the 
south. The Biscayne Bay Apartments border the site to the west. Directly north is currently a 
portion of the Earnhardt Chevrolet parking lot and vacant land, however a future multifamily 
development is currently planned for construction. 
 

3.4. SITE ACCESSIBILITY 

Roadway System 
The US 60 and SR 202 Freeways run east-west within the vicinity of the study area. Additionally, The 
SR 101 runs north-south within the vicinity of the study area The SR 101, US 60, and SR 202 currently 
run through the cities of Phoenix, Mesa, Chandler, Tempe, and Town of Gilbert. The US 60 and SR 
202 can be accessed via Arizona Avenue. SR 101 can be accessed by both Elliot Road and Warner 
Road.  
 
Pedestrian Facilities 
Within the study area, sidewalks are provided along both sides of Arizona Avenue.  
 
Grace Boulevard provides continuous sidewalks on the north side of the road, with intermittent 
sidewalks on the south side of the road, within the study area. 
 
Bicycle Facilities 
Bike lanes are currently not provided within the proposed study area.  
 
Transit Facilities 
Within the immediate study area, Valley Metro Route 112 operates along Arizona Avenue. Valley 
Metro Route 112 provides an existing shaded bus stop in the northbound direction of travel 



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

10 

 

approximately 230 feet north of Grace Boulevard. Similarly, Valley Metro Route 112 provides an 
existing shaded bus stop in the southbound direction of travel approximately 135 feet south of 
Grace Boulevard.   



FIGURE 3 | STUDY AREA

Grace Boulevard 1

IntersectionX

Legend

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

12 

 

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS 

4.1. EXISTING LAND USE 

According to Maricopa County Assessor’s website, the proposed site will occupy three (3) existing 
parcels, APNs 302-29-009E, 302-29-009G, and 302-29-009L. Currently, these three (3) parcels are 
currently being utilized by the existing Earnhardt Chevrolet auto dealership. The three (3) existing 
parcels are zoned for C-3 uses. See Appendix B for detailed parcel information. 
 

4.2. EXISTING TRAFFIC COUNTS 

A local data collection firm, All Traffic Data Services, LLC, was utilized to collect traffic counts. On 
Thursday, September 9th, 2023, four hours of typical weekday turning movement counts were 
obtained during the AM (7:00 to 9:00 am) and PM (4:00 to 6:00 pm) peak hours at the following 
intersection: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1) 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2) 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway D (4) 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway E (5)  
 

Additionally, on Thursday, September 9th, 2023, bi-directional tube counts for 24-hours in 15-minute 
intervals were collected along the following roadway segment(s): 
 

• Arizona Avenue, south of Grace Boulevard 
 
The turning movement counts were then analyzed for the highest 1-hour within each time period. 
The following peak hours were analyzed throughout this study. 
 

AM Peak Hour  7:15 am – 8:15 am 
PM Peak Hour   4:45 pm – 5:45 pm 

 
See Appendix C for detailed traffic count data. See Figure 4 for the existing AM and PM peak hour 
traffic volumes. 



FIGURE 4 | EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM (PM)

X

1

46
 (5

0)
1,0

09
 (1

,5
83

)

27
 (2

4)
1,6

62
 (1

,16
0)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

8 (9)
0 (0)
3 (11)

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway D

Driveway E

54 (34)
25 (46)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

6 
(7

)
1,0

05
 (1

,6
32

)
5 

(3
)

5 
(2

)
1,6

89
 (1

,16
4)

2 
(2

)

1 (0)
0 (0)
0 (2)

4

1 (3)
0 (0)
1 (1)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

1 (
0)

1,0
01

 (1
,6

43
)

6 
(5

)

0 
(5

)
1,6

79
 (1

,14
8)

0 
(3

)

4 (5)
0 (0)
3 (2)

5

22 (11)
2 (1)

38 (30)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

52
 (2

8)
93

4 
(1

,6
03

)
15

 (1
8)

43
 (2

5)
1,6

50
 (1

,13
5)

13
 (1

0)

15 (26)
0 (0)
2 (3)



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

14 

 

4.3. EXISTING CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

The existing conditions capacity analysis was completed for the existing study intersections. The 
capacity and level of service for the study area intersections were evaluated using the 
methodology presented in the 7th Edition of the Highway Capacity Manual (HCM). Traffic analysis 
software, Synchro Version 12, was used to perform the analyses using the existing peak hour factor 
(PHF) obtained from the traffic counts. 
 
Table 1 is from the 6th Edition of the Highway Capacity Manual Exhibit 19-8 and 20-2, which lists the 
Level of Service (LOS) thresholds for signalized and unsignalized intersections. 

 
Table 1 – Level of Service Criteria 

 

 
 

The results of the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS C or better. 
 
See Figure 5 for the existing AM and PM peak hour capacity analysis. The existing AM and PM peak 
hour level of service, delay, and volume-to-capacity ratios for the study intersections are shown in 
Table 2.  
 
The detailed capacity analysis sheets can be found in Appendix D.  
  

Signalized Intersection Unsignalized Intersection

A ≤ 10 ≤ 10

B > 10-20 > 10-15

C > 20-35 > 15-25

D > 35-55 > 25-35

E > 55-80 > 35-50

F > 80 > 50

Control Delay per Vehicle (s/veh)
Level of Service (LOS)



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

15 

 

Table 2 – Existing Level of Service, Delay, and V/C Ratio 
 

 
  

LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C

Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard (1)

Eastbound Left C 19.5 0.197 C 23.3 0.154

Eastbound Right A 9.7 0.035 B 10.8 0.072

Northbound Left B 12.8 0.062 B 14.8 0.064

Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 11.9 0.023 B 12.8 0.044

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 10.4 0.002 B 12.3 0.004

Northbound Left B 11.9 0.011 B 13.9 0.005

Southbound Left C 17.1 0.019 B 11.4 0.006

Arizona Avenue and Driveway D (4)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 11.6 0.004 B 15.0 0.011

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right C 18.7 0.030 B 10.5 0.011

Northbound Left A 0.0 - B 14.1 0.013

Southbound Left C 17.8 0.024 B 11.4 0.009

Arizona Avenue and Driveway E (5)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right C 20.1 0.230 C 15.4 0.112

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 14.4 0.049 B 10.4 0.043

Northbound Left B 12.6 0.094 B 14.8 0.067

Southbound Left C 17.9 0.058 B 11.5 0.033

AM PEAK

Existing Conditions

PM PEAKIntersection



FIGURE 5 | EXISTING CAPACITY ANALYSIS

Legend

Peak Hour Capacity Analysis

Intersection

Lane Configuration

AM(PM)
X

1

B 
(B

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway D

Driveway E

C (C)
A (B)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

4

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

5

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

B (B)

C 
(B

)

A 
(B

)

C (B)

C (C)

C 
(B

)

B 
(B

)

B (B)

B (B)

B 
(B

)

B (B)

C 
(B

)



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

17 

 

5. PROJECTED TRAFFIC 

5.1. TRIP GENERATION 

The trip generation for the proposed development was calculated utilizing the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE) publication entitled Trip Generation, 11th Edition. The ITE rates are 
based on studies that measured the trip generation characteristics for various types of land uses. 
The rates are expressed in terms of trips per unit of land use type. This publication is considered to 
be the standard for the transportation engineering profession. 
 
5.1.1. PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT 

The proposed development will be comprised of 423 dwelling units located in four-story buildings. 
Therefore, the trip generation for the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development was calculated 
utilizing the ITE Land Use 840 – Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise).  
 
The total trip generation for the proposed development is shown in Table 3.  
 

Table 3 – Trip Generation – Proposed Development 
 

 
 
The proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development is anticipated to generate a total of 1,971 daily 
trips, with 175 trips occurring in the AM peak hour and 165 trips in the PM peak hour.  
 
Detailed trip generation calculations can be found in Appendix E. 
 
5.1.2. EXISTING DEVELOPMENT 

As previously mentioned, the existing site is occupied by the Earnhardt Chevrolet automobile sales 
dealership. Therefore, the trips generated by 71,582 square foot automobile sales dealership was 
calculated utilizing ITE Lane Use 840 – Automobile Sales (New). The total trip generation for the 
existing development is shown in Table 4.  
 

Table 4 – Trip Generation – Existing Development 
 

 
 
 

Weekday

Total Total In Out Total In Out

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
1,971 175 40 135 165 104 61

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit

Weekday

Total Total In Out Total In Out

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
1,993 133 97 36 173 69 104

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Automobile Sales (New)

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

18 

 

5.2. TRIP GENERATION COMPARISON 

A trip generation comparison was completed between the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown 
development and the existing automobile sales dealership. See Table 5 below. 
 

Table 5 – Trip Generation Comparison 
 

 
 
The proposed development generates 22 fewer weekday trips, with 42 more trips during the AM 
peak hour and 8 fewer trips during the PM peak hour, when compared to the existing automobile 
sales dealership. 
 

5.3. TRIP DISTRIBUTION AND ASSIGNMENT 

The trip distribution procedure determines the general pattern of travel for vehicles entering and 
exiting the proposed development. The trip distribution for the proposed development is largely 
based on the distribution of the existing traffic with adjustments to account for the anticipated 
changes in traffic patterns along the surrounding roadway network. The trip distribution is shown 
in Figure 6. 
 
The trip assignment was generally based on proximity of the driveways, permitted turn 
movements, as well as ease and probability of use respective to each land use within the site. The 
site generated traffic volumes are shown in Figure 7.  
 
  

Weekday

Total Total In Out Total In Out

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
1,993 133 97 36 173 69 104

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
1,971 175 40 135 165 104 61

-22 42 -57 99 -8 35 -43

Existing Development

Proposed Development

Difference

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour



FIGURE 6 | TRIP DISTRIBUTION

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E

Inbound Trip Distribution Percentages

Outbound Trip Distribution Percentages

Intersection

XX%

X

Legend

XX%

37
% 

(3
2%

)

32
% 

(5
7%

)

68
% 

(4
3%

)

63
% 

(6
8%

)



FIGURE 7 | SITE GENERATED TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM (PM)

X

1

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

13
 (1

1)
16

 (4
6)

4 
(8

)
11

 (2
5)

64 (18)

30 (24)

4

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

5

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

3 Driveway C

43
 (3

5)

15
 (3

3)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway A

28 (8)
13 (11)

43
 (3

5)

15
 (3

3)

43
 (3

5)

15
 (3

3)
64

 (1
8)

4 
(8

)

16
 (4

6)
9 

(2
5)

*Emergency Access Only



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

21 

 

6. FUTURE CONDITIONS (YEAR 2027 – OPENING YEAR) 

The Toll Brothers Uptown development is anticipated to be completed and open in the year 2027. 
Therefore, this section analyzes the effects the proposed development will have on the 
surrounding roadway network during the year 2027. 
 

6.1. YEAR 2027 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

According to the 2023 Maricopa Association of Government (MAG) socioeconomic 
projections within the proposed study area, it is estimated that in the year 2030 the 
population within the Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ) will be approximately 53,951. MAG 
estimates that the 202 population of the surrounding area to be 52,605. This results in an 
approximate annual growth rate of 0.25%. As a conservative approach, a 1.0% annual growth 
rate was utilized.  
 
This annual growth rate of 1.0% was applied to the existing traffic volumes (Figure 4) to estimate 
the ambient traffic growth in the surrounding area. See Appendix F for MAG socioeconomic 
projections. 
 
Surrounding Developments 
Additionally, the following development project within the vicinity of the proposed development 
was considered when projecting the future background volumes. 
 
Alta Uptown 
The proposed Alta Uptown residential development is located on the southeast corner of Arizona 
Avenue and Corporate Place. The traffic volumes associated with this site were obtained from the 
Alta Uptown Traffic Impact Study, dated December 1, 2021. According to this Traffic Impact Study, 
the proposed Alta Uptown development will be comprised of 431 multifamily residential units and is 
anticipated to open in the year 2024. The traffic volumes generated by the Alta Uptown were 
obtained from this Traffic Impact Study. The Alta Uptown peak hour site traffic volumes are 
included in the year 2027 background volumes shown in Figure 8. See Appendix G for excerpts of 
the Alta Uptown Traffic Impact Study, dated December 1, 2021. 
 
See Figure 8 for the year 2027 background traffic volumes which includes the ambient growth and 
the surrounding development identified above. 
 

6.2. YEAR 2027 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

To determine 2027 build traffic volumes, site traffic volumes (Figure 7) were added to the 2027 
background traffic volumes (Figure 8). This represents year 2027 traffic volumes with the build out 
of the proposed Toll Brothers Uptown. The year 2027 build traffic volumes are shown in Figure 9. 
 



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

22 

 

6.3.YEAR 2027 NO BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

The capacity and level of service for the study area intersections were evaluated for the year 2027 
no build scenario. The corresponding traffic volumes are shown in Figure 8. A peak hour factor 
(PHF) of 0.92 was utilized. 
 
The results of the 2027 no build capacity analysis level of service is shown in Figure 10. The results of 
the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS D or better. The year 2027 AM and 
PM peak hour level of service and delay for the study intersections are shown in Table 6. 
 
The year 2027 no build capacity analysis sheets can be found in Appendix H. 
 

6.4. YEAR 2027 BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

The year 2027 build capacity analysis was completed for the study intersections and driveways 
during the AM and PM peak hour. The analysis for the study area intersections were evaluated 
using the methodology described in Section 4.2. A PHF of 0.92 was utilized. 
 
The following improvements were included in the year 2027 capacity analysis: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Buildout of full-access point on the east leg of the intersection 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)  
o Buildout of full-access point on the east leg of the intersection 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway C (3)  
o Buildout of an emergency access only driveway. 

 
The capacity and level of service for the study area intersections were evaluated for the year 2027 
build traffic volumes (Figure 9). The results of the 2027 build capacity analysis level of are shown in 
Figure 11. The results of the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS D or 
better, with the exception of: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Eastbound left PM peak hour operates at LOS F 

Delays are typical during peak hours for minor-to-major turning movements as well as for movements 
at stop-controlled intersections. Drivers familiar with the area often choose to use alternate routes 
during peak hours or drive at different times to avoid potential delay. Therefore, improvements to 
mitigate LOS F at the above intersections are not recommended as part of this study.  
 



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

23 

 

The year 2027 AM and PM peak hour level of service, delay, and volume-to-capacity ratios for the 
study intersections are shown in Table 6. The year 2027 build capacity analysis sheets can be found 
in Appendix I. 
 
  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

24 

 

Table 6 – Year 2027 Level of Service, Delay, and V/C Ratio 
 
 

 
  

LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C

Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)

Eastbound Left C 17.4 0.173 D 33.4 0.232 D 15.1 0.146 F 129.4 0.613

Eastbound Right A 10.0 0.038 B 10.8 0.077 A 10.0 0.038 B 10.8 0.077

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right - - - - - - C 18.8 0.146 D 29.4 0.123

Northbound Left B 12.1 0.056 C 18.2 0.090 B 12.2 0.058 C 19.3 0.098

Southbound Left - - - - - - C 16.4 0.030 B 13.8 0.062

Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 11.8 0.022 C 16.8 0.067 B 13.4 0.027 C 21.6 0.091

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 10.4 0.002 B 13.6 0.005 - - - - - -

Westbound Left - - - - - - D 34.8 0.213 C 19.0 0.092

Westbound Right - - - - - - B 11.0 0.104 A 10.0 0.026

Northbound Left B 11.1 0.009 C 16.7 0.007 B 11.2 0.009 C 16.9 0.007

Southbound Left C 17.2 0.018 B 12.8 0.007 C 18.0 0.059 B 14.2 0.113

Arizona Avenue and Driveway D (4)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 11.0 0.004 C 22.9 0.021 B 11.0 0.004 D 25.3 0.024

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right C 15.8 0.022 B 11.3 0.013 C 16.5 0.024 B 11.7 0.014

Northbound Left A 0.0 - C 17.4 0.018 A 0.0 - C 18.2 0.020

Southbound Left C 17.4 0.022 B 12.9 0.012 C 17.7 0.023 B 13.3 0.012

Corporate Place and Driveway D (5)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right C 20.2 0.230 C 24.7 0.204 C 22.6 0.258 D 28.1 0.232

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 14.1 0.047 B 11.0 0.051 B 14.6 0.049 B 11.2 0.053

Northbound Left B 12.9 0.097 C 18.2 0.094 B 13.4 0.103 C 19.0 0.099

Southbound Left C 17.6 0.057 B 13.1 0.044 C 17.9 0.059 B 13.5 0.047

AM PEAK

Year 2027 No Build

PM PEAKIntersection

Year 2027 Build

AM PEAK PM PEAK



FIGURE 8 | YEAR 2027 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM (PM)

X

1

48
 (5

2)
1,0

94
 (1

,6
86

)

28
 (2

5)
1,7

39
 (1

,2
62

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

8 (9)
0 (0)
3 (11)

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway D

Driveway E

56 (35)
26 (48)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

6 
(7

)
1,0

90
 (1

,7
47

)
5 

(3
)

5 
(2

)
1,7

68
 (1

,2
66

)
2 

(2
)

1 (0)
0 (0)
0 (2)

4

1 (3)
0 (0)
1 (1)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

1 (
0)

1,0
86

 (1
,7

17
)

6 
(5

)

0 
(5

)
1,7

57
 (1

,2
50

)
0 

(3
)

4 (5)
0 (0)
3 (2)

5

23 (11)
2 (1)

40 (31)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

54
 (2

9)
1,0

16
 (1

,7
17

)
16

 (1
9)

45
 (2

6)
1,7

27
 (1

,2
36

)
14

 (1
0)

16 (27)
0 (0)
2 (3)



FIGURE 9 | YEAR 2027 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM (PM)

X

1

48
 (5

2)
1,1

10
 (1

,7
42

)
9 

(2
5)

28
 (2

5)
1,8

03
 (1

,2
80

)
4 

(8
)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

8 (9)
0 (0)
3 (11)

3 Driveway C

1,1
36

 (1
,7

96
)

1,7
77

 (1
,2

91
)

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E

56 (35)
26 (48)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

6 
(7

)
1,1

03
 (1

,7
58

)
16

 (4
6)

5 
(2

)
1,7

72
 (1

,2
74

)
11

 (2
5)

64 (18)
0 (0)
30 (24)

4

1 (3)
0 (0)
1 (1)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

1 (
0)

1,1
29

 (1
,7

94
)

6 
(5

)

0 
(5

)
1,7

72
 (1

,2
83

)
0 

(3
)

4 (5)
0 (0)
3 (2)

5

23 (11)
2 (1)

40 (31)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

54
 (2

9)
1,0

59
 (1

,7
52

)
16

 (1
9)

45
 (2

6)
1,7

42
 (1

,2
69

)
14

 (1
0)

16 (27)
0 (0)
2 (3)

Driveway A

28 (8)
13 (11)

*Emergency Access Only



FIGURE 10 |YEAR 2027 NO BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS

Legend

Peak Hour Capacity Analysis

Intersection

Lane Configuration

AM(PM)
X

1

B 
(C

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway D

Driveway E

C (D)
A (B)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

4

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

5

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

B (C)

C 
(B

)

A 
(C

)

C (B)

C (C)

C 
(B

)

B 
(C

)

B (B)

B (C)

B 
(C

)

B (B)

C 
(B

)



FIGURE 11 |YEAR 2027 BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS

Legend

Peak Hour Capacity Analysis

Intersection

Lane Configuration

AM(PM)
X

1

B 
(C

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

3 Driveway C

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E

C (F)
A (B)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

4

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

5

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

B (D)

C 
(B

)

A 
(C

)

C (B)

C (D)

C 
(B

)

B 
(C

)

B (B)

B (C)

B 
(C

)

B (A)
D (C)C 

(B
)

Driveway A

B (D)

C 
(B

)

*Emergency Access Only



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

29 

 

7. FUTURE CONDITIONS (YEAR 2032) 

This section analyzes the effects the proposed development will have on the surrounding roadway 
network during the year of 2032, 5 years after the opening year. 
 

7.1. YEAR 2032 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

Similar to the year 2027 background traffic volumes described in detail in Section 6.1, a 1.0% annual 
growth rate was applied to the existing traffic volumes through the year 2032. Additionally, the 
surrounding development identified in Section 6.1 was included in the year 2032 background 
volumes. 
 
The year 2032 background traffic volumes are shown in Figure 12. 
 

7.2. YEAR 2032 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES 

When the total site traffic (Figure 7) were added to the year 2032 background traffic (Figure 12), 
the result is the 2032 build traffic volumes. This represents the traffic volumes with the build out of 
the proposed development. The year 2032 build traffic volumes are shown in Figure 13. 
 

7.3. YEAR 2032 NO BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

The capacity and level of service for the study area intersections were evaluated for the year 2032 
no build scenario. The corresponding traffic volumes are shown in Figure 12. A PHF of 0.92 was 
utilized. 
 
The results of the 2032 no build capacity analysis level of service is shown in Figure 14. The results 
of the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS D or better, with the exception 
of: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Eastbound left PM peak hour operates at LOS E 

 
The year 2032 AM and PM peak hour level of service and delay for the study intersections are 
shown in Table 7. The year 2032 no build capacity analysis sheets can be found in Appendix J. 

  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

30 

 

7.4. YEAR 2032 BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS 

The year 2032 build capacity analysis was completed for the study intersections and driveways 
during the AM and PM peak hour. The analysis for the study area intersections were evaluated 
using the methodology described in Section 4.2. A PHF of 0.92 was utilized. 
 
The improvements identifed in Section 6.4 were included in the year 2032 build scenario. 
 
The capacity and level of service for the study area intersections were evaluated for the year 2032 
build traffic volumes (Figure 13). The results of the 2032 build capacity analysis level of service are 
shown in Figure 15. The results of the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS 
D or better, with the exception of: 
 
The results of the capacity analyses reveal that all movements operate at a LOS D or better, with 
the exception of: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Eastbound left PM peak hour operates at LOS F 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)  
o Westbound left AM peak hour operates at LOS E 

 
Delays are typical during peak hours for minor-to-major turning movements as well as for movements 
at stop-controlled intersections. Drivers familiar with the area often choose to use alternate routes 
during peak hours or drive at different times to avoid potential delay. Therefore, improvements to 
mitigate LOS E or F at the above intersections are not recommended as part of this study.  
 
The year 2032 AM and PM peak hour level of service, delay, and volume-to-capacity ratios for the 
study intersections are shown in Table 7. The year 2032 build capacity analysis sheets can be found 
in Appendix K. 
 
  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

31 

 

Table 7 – Year 2032 Level of Service, Delay, and V/C Ratio 
 
 

 
  

LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C LOS DELAY V/C

Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)

Eastbound Left C 18.9 0.199 E 41.5 0.292 C 19.0 0.200 F 165.3 0.723

Eastbound Right A 10.0 0.039 B 10.8 0.081 A 10.0 0.039 B 11.2 0.086

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right - - - - - - C 23.4 0.186 D 30.9 0.130

Northbound Left B 12.7 0.065 C 20.5 0.109 B 12.9 0.067 C 18.9 0.099

Southbound Left - - - - - - C 18.4 0.035 B 13.1 0.057

Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 12.0 0.025 B 13.9 0.056 C 15.5 0.037 C 17.3 0.076

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 10.8 0.002 B 13.8 0.005 - - - - - -

Westbound Left - - - - - - E 48.2 0.283 C 15.5 0.071

Westbound Right - - - - - - B 11.5 0.111 B 10.2 0.028

Northbound Left B 11.6 0.010 C 16.3 0.007 B 11.7 0.010 C 16.5 0.007

Southbound Left C 16.8 0.017 B 12.2 0.006 C 17.6 0.057 B 13.3 0.104

Arizona Avenue and Driveway D (4)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 11.3 0.004 C 22.8 0.021 B 11.3 0.004 C 19.6 0.017

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right C 15.8 0.022 B 11.0 0.013 C 16.6 0.024 B 11.1 0.013

Northbound Left A 0.0 - C 17.0 0.018 A 0.0 - C 17.8 0.019

Southbound Left C 17.1 0.025 B 13.7 0.013 C 17.5 0.026 B 12.7 0.011

Corporate Place and Driveway D (5)

Eastbound Shared Left-Through-Right C 21.5 0.254 D 27.9 0.242 C 20.9 0.247 D 26.2 0.228

Westbound Shared Left-Through-Right B 14.6 0.050 B 10.8 0.052 B 13.7 0.045 B 10.9 0.053

Northbound Left B 13.6 0.109 C 17.8 0.094 B 12.7 0.098 C 18.7 0.100

Southbound Left C 17.2 0.055 B 13.9 0.051 C 17.5 0.057 B 12.8 0.045

Intersection

Year 2032 No Build Year 2032 Build

AM PEAK PM PEAK AM PEAK PM PEAK



FIGURE 12 | YEAR 2032 BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM (PM)

X

1

50
 (5

5)
1,1

48
 (1

,7
80

)

30
 (2

6)
1,8

28
 (1

,3
24

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

9 (10)
0 (0)
3 (12)

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway D

Driveway E

59 (37)
27 (50)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

7 
(8

)
1,1

43
 (1

,8
34

)
5 

(3
)

5 
(2

)
1,8

57
 (1

,3
28

)
2 

(2
)

1 (0)
0 (0)
0 (2)

4

1 (3)
0 (0)
1 (1)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

1 (
0)

1,1
39

 (1
,8

46
)

7 
(5

)

0 
(5

)
1,8

46
 (1

,3
11

)
0 

(3
)

4 (5)
0 (0)
3 (2)

5

24 (12)
2 (1)

42 (33)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

57
 (3

1)
1,0

66
 (1

,8
02

)
16

 (2
0)

47
 (2

7)
1,8

15
 (1

,2
96

)
14

 (1
1)

16 (28)
0 (0)
2 (3)



FIGURE 13 | YEAR 2032 BUILD TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM (PM)

X

1

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

9 (10)
0 (0)
3 (12)

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E

59 (37)
27 (50)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

7 
(8

)
1,1

56
 (1

,8
45

)
16

 (4
6)

5 
(2

)
1,8

61
 (1

,3
36

)
11

 (2
5)

64 (18)
0 (0)
30 (24)

4

1 (3)
0 (0)
1 (1)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

1 (
0)

1,1
82

 (1
,8

81
)

7 
(5

)

0 
(5

)
1,8

61
 (1

,3
44

)
0 

(3
)

4 (5)
0 (0)
3 (2)

5

24 (12)
2 (1)

42 (33)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

57
 (3

1)
1,1

09
 (1

,8
37

)
16

 (2
0)

47
 (2

7)
1,8

30
 (1

,3
29

)
14

 (1
1)

16 (28)
0 (0)
2 (3)

3 Driveway C

1,1
89

 (1
,8

83
)

1,8
67

 (1
,3

52
)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway A

28 (8)
13 (11)50

 (5
5)

1,1
64

 (1
,8

26
)

9 
(2

5)

30
 (2

6)
1,8

92
 (1

,3
42

)
4 

(8
)

*Emergency Access Only



FIGURE 14 | YEAR 2032 NO BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS

Legend

Peak Hour Capacity Analysis

Intersection

Lane Configuration

AM(PM)
X

1

B 
(C

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway D

Driveway E

C (E)
A (B)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

4

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

5

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

B (C)

C 
(B

)

A 
(C

)

C (B)

C (D)

C 
(B

)

B 
(C

)

B (B)

B (B)

B 
(C

)

B (B)

C 
(B

)



FIGURE 15 |YEAR 2032 BUILD CAPACITY ANALYSIS

Legend

Peak Hour Capacity Analysis

Intersection

Lane Configuration

AM(PM)
X

1

B 
(C

)

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

2

3 Driveway C

Grace Boulevard 1

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
en

ue

2

3
4

5

Driveway A

Driveway B

Driveway C

Driveway D

Driveway E

C (F)
A (B)

Grace Blvd

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway B
Driveway B

4

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway D
Driveway D

5

Arizona Ave
Arizona Ave

Driveway E
Driveway E

B (C)

C 
(B

)

A 
(C

)

C (B)

C (D)

C 
(B

)

B 
(C

)

B (B)

C (C)

B 
(C

)

B (B)
E (C)C 

(B
)

Driveway A

C (D)

C 
(B

)

*Emergency Access Only



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

36 

 

8. RIGHT TURN LANE WARRANTS 

Turn lanes allow vehicles exiting a roadway to slow to a reduced speed to execute a turn without 
impeding the main flow of traffic. This section evaluates the need for right turn deceleration lanes. 
The City of Chandler Engineering & Design Standards Manual (EDSM), 2023 Edition, was utilized to 
determine the need for right turn deceleration lanes at the proposed site driveways. 
 
Per Section 4.2.10.1 Right Turn Deceleration Lanes, right turn deceleration lanes are required at all 
cross streets and driveways when projected right turn volume exceeds 40 vehicles per hour. As 
shown in the year 2032 build traffic volumes (Figure 13), right turn volumes do not exceed 40 
vehicles per hour. Therefore, right turn deceleration lanes are not required per City of Chandler 
standards. 
  



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

 

37 

 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS AND CONCLUSIONS 

The proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development is generally located on the southeast corner of 
Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard in the City of Chandler, Arizona. 
 
The proposed development will be comprised of 423 dwelling units. Of which, there will be 40 
studio units, 208 one-bedroom units, 137 two-bedroom units, and 38 three-bedroom units.  
 
The proposed Toll Brothers Uptown development is anticipated to be completed and open in the 
year 2027. 
 
The following are the recommendations with the build out of the proposed Toll Brothers 
Uptown development: 
 

• Arizona Avenue and Grace Boulevard/Driveway A (1)  
o Buildout of full-access point on the east leg of the intersection 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway B (2)  
o Buildout of full-access point on the east leg of the intersection 

 

• Arizona Avenue and Driveway C (3)  
o Buildout of an emergency access only driveway.  

 



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

A 

 
 
 

Appendix A – Proposed Site Plan 
  





Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

B 

 
 
 

Appendix B – Parcel Information 
  



���

����������� 	
�������������

������������������� �!���� � ���"�#��"�$%$%�&�'()*+&'�',-��.'&/0-(�12$$23������4���5"��65�����

-'(&.'(/��'()*+&'�7(+7-(�)-8�00�3�)"���4���5"�9����:4  ������;� 4�����<=>?@=>A@=3

BCDE�F GC�H	IJD�IKL MCNH�O P�EL�IEQ

RHSS

TCU��U

V CJO W�K X CNESYEIHJWF Z CEUUHIHJWES

HW[J

\CDE��[�KK�I

] CFHDHSEK

�EK	�SF

^ CK�_HFI�K

K�WIES

` C�KHWI�U�IEHSF

T $%$%�&�'()*+&'�',-��.'&/0-(�12$$2

D	K�a

U�b��cd�
e 8�22fg�+g�&�%%ffg�+g�8�$f22g�+g�h�%f22g�8h=�8-��%2�-i�-�%@%311g��.j+g�k�-i

h�22g�(/

S�dPS
el m

S
d�F�n� =@f>?2$��o�:"3

p
e�el �qr

S
d�a

s�lt�F�t

��U�bd��d u)0v-(��w&)g)-/�x=%

�����ed�y�F�t

�

U�bd��d

u)0v-(��w&)g)-/�8�.++0�/)8�()��

S
����z{�b|��d�
e �.'&/0-(

FPIPKC} %2�%8�2-

D�~�d

E��PW��lt�
t

|

f%jf%$

F{�|���b�
e���

�����b�

V -'(&.'(/��'()*+&'�7(+7-(�)-8�00�

�KJ��KIL�HW[JKDEIHJW

JOW�K�HW[JKDEIHJW



���

�������	
����� ������������������������������� !""#

$�	%&'(�

)��*	$�	$�*

+��	$�* ,-.

+��	/��0 ,-.

1 �2�3456782�6.9:.;75,�7,<54=.;75,�<54�;>2�3.?;�!�@2.4?A�B54�=5C792�87?39.@��D2�5,9@�?>5D�E

@2.4�5<�6.9:.;75,�7,<54=.;75,A�F>5:98�@5:�,228�=542�8.;.��392.?2�955G�.;�5:4�8.;.�?.92?A

H>2�I.9:.;75,��,<54=.;75,�87?39.@28�C295D�=.@�,5;�42<92J;�;>2�;.K.C92�6.9:2�:?28�5,�;>2

;.K�C799�8:2�;5�.,@�?32J7.9�6.9:.;75,�42972<�345L4.=A�����M������H��N�O�O�P��H�Q�F����I���

O�P��H�Q�R���ST

U�V	W�� "�"X "�"� "�"" "�"E

Y&��	Z��[

\��&]̂

_X�̀#X��#X _#��̀ �̀X�� _!� �E� �� _!� !"�E��

)�'�*�

\��&]̂

_X�̀#X��#X _!���̀��X� _X� ���E  _X�#�#� X#

)���	Z���� EAE" EAE" EAE" EAE"

$�0��a*�b� ��cc������

-��H�����-N

��cc������

-��H�����-N

��cc������

-��H�����-N

��cc������

-��H�����-N


����'�*

d�*�b

E#A!e E�e E�A!e E e


�����

)/\

_ È�E # _ #��X� _ X#�!� _ "̀�"�"

/�ba�*f	g�

Zb�

E "� E "� E "� E "�

/g

$�0��a*�b�

�:;5�F.92?

.,8�F2467J2

�:;5�F.92?

.,8�F2467J2

�:;5�F.92?

.,8�F2467J2

�:;5�F.92?

.,8�F2467J2

U�V	
��

Zb�

XE���� XE���� XE���� XE����

\��&�*�b�

+b&�0

�5;7J2 �5;7J2 �5;7J2 �5;7J2

h �887;75,.9�345324;@�8.;.A

$�0��a*�b� i'a	j k00&a��0f d��l ZZi 
� +m	Y*n

�:;5=5C792�F>5D455= ���E�E ��� " � X� E �"#�

�<<7J2�R:7987,L ���E�" �XX " � �� "��"�

F2467J2��23.74�o.4.L2 ���E�� !" " F �# E��̀"�

F2467J2��23.74�o.4.L2 ���"�E !" " F X� !�!# 

F2467J2��23.74�o.4.L2 ���"�" !" " F "� �� �X

\
)g
Uik%	i%Ykd�
Uik%


$$iUik%
)	/dk/pdUW	i%Ykd�
Uik%



���

�������	�
� ���� ��������� ���� ��� ��� ����	�

��� !"�#$�%&!�#'&�&(� )))*)+ ,-. - � */ -)01))

2&�#3&45#6#7�! �#85�9 )))*)- :*, - 2 -: +01))

;9<=>=?!@�#�5=A�==> ))):)+ *)* - 2 *, *0-.B

�!<�#C>%�= �>�D<4 ))),)+ +1* - 7 */ +

��� !"�#$�%&!�#'&�&(� )))1)+ ,-. - � -+ ,0+:.

'=@E#�<&�<��#F==<5 )))/)+ +.* - � :) +-)

G H&%E����<#>&%40#&@4=#ID=AD#&4#H&%CJ#>&%40#%JE#>&%40#=�#=9<%9<#>&%4#&��#D=A#& &!@&?@�

5���#A!<5=9<#5& !D(#<=#4�&�"5K

LMMN����O�P����QRS

LMMT

�UP���P����QVWS

��XY��Z[�X�\����]�X̂���Z�\N\Z�\ZŶ_��\�\���]��Z��̀\���_��Z���P�Y��Z��Z

Y]���a\T��Y\�T\���\��\̂_�Zb��Z��Y�

85�#;44�44=�c4#dEE!"�#5&4#"=>%!@�J#!DE=�>&<!=D#=D#<5!4#A�?4!<�#<5&<#!<#94�4#<=#!J�D<!Ee0#"@&44!Ee0#&DJ# &@9�

��&@#&DJ#%��4=D&@#%�=%��<eK#f@�&4�#"=D<&"<#<5�#H&�!"=%&#2=9D<e#�K8K;K$K#2�D<��#&<#g1)-h#,)16*:)1#!E#e=9

?�@!� �#&De#!DE=�>&<!=D#!4#!D"=>%@�<�0#=9<#=E#J&<�0#=�#!D"=���"<#4=#<5&<#&%%�=%�!&<�#"=���"<!=D4#"&D#?�

&JJ��44�JK#f@�&4�#D=<�#<5&<#&#4<&<9<=�e#%�="�44#!4#&@4=#& &!@&?@�#<=#"=���"<#���=�4#%9�49&D<#<=#;�!i=D&

$� !4�J#�<&<9<�4#:-6+1-,:K

85�#;44�44=�#J=�4#D=<#(9&�&D<��#<5&<#&De#!DE=�>&<!=D#%�= !J�J#=D#<5!4#A�?4!<�#!4#&""9�&<�0#"=>%@�<�0#=�

"9���D<K#CD#>&De#!D4<&D"�40#<5�#;44�44=�#5&4#(&<5���J#!DE=�>&<!=D#E�=>#!DJ�%�DJ�D<#4=9�"�4#&DJ#>&J�#!<

& &!@&?@�#=D#<5!4#4!<�0#&DJ#<5�#=�!(!D&@#!DE=�>&<!=D#>&e#5& �#"=D<&!D�J#���=�4#&DJ#=>!44!=D4K#j��=�4#&DJ

=>!44!=D4#>&e#&@4=#5& �#=""9���J#!D#<5�#%�="�44#=E#(&<5��!D(0#!D<��%��<!D(0#&DJ#��%=�<!D(#<5�#!DE=�>&<!=DK

CDE=�>&<!=D#=D#<5�#A�?4!<�#!4#D=<#9%J&<�J#!D#k��&@#<!>�kK#CD#&JJ!<!=D0#94��4#&��#"&9<!=D�J#<5&<#<5�#%�="�44

94�J#=D#<5!4#4!<�#<=#!@@94<�&<�#<5�#?=9DJ&�!�4#=E#<5�#&Jl&"�D<#%&�"�@4#!4#D=<#&@A&e4#"=D4!4<�D<#A!<5#<5�

��"=�J�J#J="9>�D<4#E=�#49"5#%&�"�@4K#85�#%&�"�@#?=9DJ&�!�4#J�%!"<�J#=D#<5!4#4!<�#&��#E=�#!@@94<�&<! �

%9�%=4�4#=D@e0#&DJ#<5�#�m&"<#��@&<!=D45!%#=E#&Jl&"�D<#%&�"�@4#45=9@J#?�#!DJ�%�DJ�D<@e#��4�&�"5�J#&DJ

 ��!E!�JK#85�#!DE=�>&<!=D#%�= !J�J#=D#<5!4#4!<�#!4#D=<#<5�#�n9! &@�D<#=E#&#<!<@�#��%=�<#=�#&#��&@#�4<&<�#49� �eK

o4��4#45=9@J#!DJ�%�DJ�D<@e#��4�&�"50#!D �4<!(&<�#&DJ# ��!Ee#&@@#!DE=�>&<!=D#?�E=��#��@e!D(#=D#!<#=�#!D#<5�

%��%&�&<!=D#=E#@�(&@#J="9>�D<4K

Fe#94!D(#<5!4#A�?4!<�0#e=9#&"ID=A@�J(�#5& !D(#��&J#<5�#&?= �#&DJ#A&! �#&De#�!(5<#e=9#>&e#5& �#<=#"@&!>

&(&!D4<#H&�!"=%&#2=9D<e0#!<4#=EE!"��40#�>%@=e��40#&DJ#"=D<�&"<=�4#&�!4!D(#=9<#=E#>e#��@!&D"�#=D#=�#<5�#94�

=E#<5�#!DE=�>&<!=D#%�= !J�J#=D#<5!4#A�?4!<�K

P�N��\��\Y�P�N�



���

����������� 	
�������������

������������������� �!���� � ���"�#��"�$%$%�&�'()*+&'�',-��.'&/0-��.'&/0-(�12$$23������4���5"

�65������-'(&.'(/��'()*+&'�7(+7-(�)-8�00�3�)"���4���5"�9����:4  ������;� 4�����<$=3

>?@A�B C?�D	EF@GEHI J?KDGL M�AI�EAN

ODPP

Q?RGGR

S ?FL TGH U ?KAPVAEDFTB W?@A��XGHHGE Y ?BD@DPAH

�AH	GPB

Z ?HG�DBEGH

HGTEAP

[ ?�HDTE�RGEADPB

Q $%$%�&�'()*+&'�',-��.'&/0-��.'&/0-(�12$$2

@	H�\

R�]��̂_�
̀ -�%=%311a�+a�8�22ba�+a�&�%%bba�+a�8�$b22a�+a�c�%b22a�8cd�8-��%2

P�_MP
̀ e f

P
_�B�g� 1%hid%��j�:"3

k
̀ �̀e �lm

P
_�\

n�eo�B�o

��R�]_��_ p)0q-(��r&)a)-/�sd%

G����̀ _�t�B�o

�

R�]_��_

p)0q-(��r&)a)-/�8�.++0�/)8�()��

P
����uv�]w��_�
̀ �.'&/0-(

BMEMH?x %2�%8�2-

@�y�_

A��MT��eoz
o

w

b%{b%$

Bvzw�|�]�
̀ �}�

�����]~

S -'(&.'(/��'()*+&'�7(+7-(�)-8�00�

@����̀e�Aww�]] �mbb�c�+(�.)/�0&h��.'&/0-(h�'*�12$$=

�HF�GHEI�DTXFH@AEDFT

FLTGH�DTXFH@AEDFT



���

�������	
��

������������

������� ���

��������� ���

� ������� !����"#�$ ��� �%��&�$ ���%���$'����($�)�*���(+�,���&�- "��! (�"�*.�/����"*�('�/�0

*�����%���"#�$ ��� �%��&�$ ��+�1'�#"!�*�#����!�&����!�$�.��"��(��"��2��$��#��!�$��(�"�(+

3'��4�"#�$ ���5�%��&�$ ���! (�"�*�!�-�"�/�&�*���$���%"�6$�$'��$�7�-"����"#��#(�!����$'�

$�7�- ""�!#��$����*�(��6 �"���"#�$ �����" �%����8��&+�9:59;�<=>=�3?�@AB�B?C>�3AD=1�?>�45=�

B?C>�3AD�E5::FG

HI�J�� KLKM KLKN KLKK KLK0

O����P�Q

R���ST

UKV UM)W.MLL UNMV.0LL UNMV.0LL

��	����

R���ST

UKV UKKV.W0V UK0V.L0) UKL).XKY

��Z��P��� 0+0K 0+0K 0+0K 0+0K

������[��\] 9?̂ ^=>95A:

��?3<=>�>�@

9?̂ ^=>95A:

��?3<=>�>�@

9?̂ ^=>95A:

��?3<=>�>�@

9?̂ ^=>95A:

��?3<=>�>�@

_�����	�]�

̀��\

0V+)a 0Xa 0X+)a 0Wa

_�������

��R

UM UNW.))Y UNX.WLN UNX.LN0

��\[���b�c��

P\��

0LXM 0LXM 0LXM 0LXM

�c

������[��\]

^ (6+

9�&&��6 �"

^ (6+

9�&&��6 �"

^ (6+

9�&&��6 �"

^ (6+

9�&&��6 �"

HI�_��

P\��

M0LNLL M0LNLL M0LNLL M0LNLL

R����\]

�\����

d�$ 6� d�$ 6� d�$ 6� d�$ 6�

e ^��%����$�&��(.��"(��2��/���(�̂��5!�&��(.��!%�&��(.�����#$�#$�&��(�������/���� "�-"�

'����/ $'�#$�'�� �8�$��(���6'+

fSS������g[��hij

fSSk\\lmg[�g[��hnoj

R_�c_Hpq��p�Oq g̀_Hpq�

g_��Or̀ r̀H�g_��



���

�������	
����
������
�������������
������
���
�����
����������
��

����
�������
�����
������
��
���

���������� !"��#$$%&���'��& ()%*�+�%,$ !('-% ,� ,�-�%��.�/�%-��-�'-�%-�0����- �%+�,-%$12�&*'��%$12�',+�3'*0�

!�'*�',+�)�!� ,'*�)! )�!-14�5*�'���& ,-'&-�-���6'!%& )'�7 0,-1�84�4�494�7�,-�!�'-�:;<=>�?<;@AB<;�%$�1 0

/�*%�3��',1�%,$ !('-% ,�%��%,& ()*�-�2� 0-� $�+'-�2� !�%,& !!�&-�� �-�'-�'))! )!%'-��& !!�&-% ,��&',�/�

'++!����+4�5*�'���, -��-�'-�'��-'-0- !1�)! &����%��'*� �'3'%*'/*��- �& !!�&-��!! !��)0!�0',-�- ��!%C ,'

9�3%��+�8-'-0-���B=@D;=?B4

���������� !�+ ���, -�E0'!',-���-�'-�',1�%,$ !('-% ,�)! 3%+�+� ,�-�%��.�/�%-��%��'&&0!'-�2�& ()*�-�2� !

&0!!�,-4�F,�(',1�%,�-',&��2�-��������� !��'��E'-��!�+�%,$ !('-% ,�$! (�%,+�)�,+�,-�� 0!&���',+�('+��%-

'3'%*'/*�� ,�-�%���%-�2�',+�-��� !%E%,'*�%,$ !('-% ,�('1��'3��& ,-'%,�+��!! !��',+� (%��% ,�4�G!! !��',+

 (%��% ,��('1�'*� ��'3�� &&0!!�+�%,�-���)! &���� $�E'-��!%,E2�%,-�!)!�-%,E2�',+�!�) !-%,E�-���%,$ !('-% ,4

F,$ !('-% ,� ,�-���.�/�%-��%��, -�0)+'-�+�%,�H!�'*�-%(�H4�F,�'++%-% ,2�0��!��'!��&'0-% ,�+�-�'-�-���)! &���

0��+� ,�-�%���%-��- �%**0�-!'-��-���/ 0,+'!%��� $�-���'+I'&�,-�)'!&�*��%��, -�'*.'1��& ,�%�-�,-�.%-��-��

!�& !+�+�+ &0(�,-��$ !��0&��)'!&�*�4�����)'!&�*�/ 0,+'!%���+�)%&-�+� ,�-�%���%-��'!��$ !�%**0�-!'-%3�

)0!) ���� ,*12�',+�-����J'&-�!�*'-% ,��%)� $�'+I'&�,-�)'!&�*���� 0*+�/��%,+�)�,+�,-*1�!���'!&��+�',+

3�!%$%�+4�����%,$ !('-% ,�)! 3%+�+� ,�-�%���%-��%��, -�-����K0%3'*�,-� $�'�-%-*��!�) !-� !�'�!�'*���-'-���0!3�14

L��!���� 0*+�%,+�)�,+�,-*1�!���'!&�2�%,3��-%E'-��',+�3�!%$1�'**�%,$ !('-% ,�/�$ !��!�*1%,E� ,�%-� !�%,�-��

)!�)'!'-% ,� $�*�E'*�+ &0(�,-�4

M1�0�%,E�-�%��.�/�%-�2�1 0�'&N, .*�+E���'3%,E�!�'+�-���'/ 3��',+�.'%3��',1�!%E�-�1 0�('1��'3��- �&*'%(

'E'%,�-�6'!%& )'�7 0,-12�%-�� $$%&�!�2��()* 1���2�',+�& ,-!'&- !��'!%�%,E� 0-� $�(1�!�*%',&�� ,� !�-���0��

 $�-���%,$ !('-% ,�)! 3%+�+� ,�-�%��.�/�%-�4



���

����������� 	
�������������

������������������� �!���� ������"���#$��%#������&'()*'(+��'(,-.)'�/(./&(�,&0�11�2�,$���"���#$

3����4"  ������5� "�����6789:;<<2

=>?@�A B>�C	DE?FDGH I>JCFK L�@H�D@M

NC��

O>PFFP

Q >EK RFG S >J@�T@DCERA U>?@��VFGGFD W >AC?C�@G

�@G	F�A

X >GFYCADFG

GFRD@�

Z >�GCRD�PFD@C�A

O
?	G�[

P�\��]̂�
_ )�̀8<28;a�.a�0�̀88b28;a�.a�&�̀<cca�.a�d�̀<bba�.a�0de�0&��̀b�/fa�̀8g<ee9̀ 8̀

&h�d�cca�(+�/fa�9bg7̀i8;<�')+�&h�/.(�0de�0&��̀b�+'a��.j�0d��.(�0+

0&���*�)�̀87̀2<7a��*�&�bba�/.k��*�)�7ì2<̀a��*�&�̀<<<2<ca��*�0�b<c2<̀a��*�d

bee2ea��*�)�̀̀ à�d�ebba�/fa�ccg<i<ieie�/&(�l&0�,)m�̀8g<ee9̀ 8̀

��̂L�
_n o

�
̂�A�p� <̀̀:b89��q�4$2

r
_�_n �g7

�
̂�[

s�nt�A�t

��P�\̂��̂ m,1k&(��u),a,&+�vè

F����_̂�w�A�t

�

P�\̂��̂

m,1k&(��u),a,&+�0�*..1�+,0�(,��

�
����xy�\z��̂�
_ �*')+1&(

ALDLG>{ b̀�̀0�b&

?�|�̂

@��LR��nt}
t

z

<̀f<̀c

Ay}z�~�\�
_���

�����\�

�GE�FGDH�CRVEG?@DCER

EKRFG�CRVEG?@DCER



���

� �������	
��������������
�������

��������������� � !!�"������	���#�����	���#���$%&&'

(����)*+,��

-��.�(����(�.�

/����(�.� 012

/����3��4� 012

5 "6�789:;<6�:2=>2?;90�;0@98A2?;90�@98�?B6�72C?�%�D628CE�F98�A9G;=6�<;C7=2D#�H6�90=D�CB9H�I

D628�9@�:2=>2?;90�;0@98A2?;90E��B9>=<�D9>�066<�A986�<2?2#�7=62C6�=99J�2?�9>8�<2?2�C2=6CE


B6�K2=>2?;90��0@98A2?;90�<;C7=2D6<�G6=9H�A2D�09?�86@=6L?�?B6�?2M2G=6�:2=>6�>C6<�90�?B6

?2M�G;==�<>6�?9�20D�C76L;2=�:2=>2?;90�86=;6@�789N82AE�����O������
����P�P�Q��
�R������K��"

P�Q��
�R�S���TU

V�W�X��� &!&Y &!& 

Z*���[��\

]��*�̂_

 ̀'$#�!! &̀a&#Y Y

-�+�.��

]��*�̂_

&̀!&#�$% Ì� #IYY

-�����[���� IEI& IEI&

(��4��b.�c� ��dd������

1��
�����1�

��dd������

1��
�����1�

������+��.

e�.�c

I'E%f I�f

��������

-3]

 ̀ #Y%a &̀a#Y Y

3�cb��.g�h��

[c��

I!�Y I!�Y

3h

(��4��b.�c�

d;CLE

�9AA68L;2=

d;CLE

�9AA68L;2=

V�W�����

[c��

YI! !! YI! !!

]��*�.�c�

/c*�4�

�9?;L6 �9?;L6

i d27@6886?�A27C#�2=C9�J09H0�2C�d27�<�A27C#�7<@�A27C#�98�9>?7>?�A27C�286�09H�2:2;=2G=6

B686�H;?B9>?�B2:;0N�?9�C628LBE

ĵ̂3��4�����b��klm

]�-h�Vno)�n)Zoe��Vno)

��3�ZpeepV���3/



���

���������	
��	
�����

���������������������������������� ��������������!���" ���"�����������

�����#���������"������� ��$������%

&'()*++(++,-.+)/0012()'3+)2,4516(7)180,-4391,8),8)9'1+):(;+19()9'39)19)<+(+)9,)17(8910=>)263++10=>)387)?36<(

-(36)387)5(-+,836)5-,5(-9=@)A6(3+()2,89329)9'()B3-12,53)C,<89=)D@&@*@E@)C(89(-)39)FGHIJ)KHGLMNHG)10)=,<

;(61(?()38=)180,-4391,8)1+)182,456(9(>),<9),0)739(>),-)182,--(29)+,)9'39)355-,5-139()2,--(291,8+)238);(

377-(++(7@)A6(3+()8,9()9'39)3)+939<9,-=)5-,2(++)1+)36+,)3?3163;6()9,)2,--(29)(--,-+)5<-+<389)9,)*-1O,83

E(?1+(7)D939<9(+)NILPGIKN@

&'()*++(++,-)7,(+)8,9)Q<3-389(()9'39)38=)180,-4391,8)5-,?17(7),8)9'1+):(;+19()1+)322<-39(>)2,456(9(>),-

2<--(89@)R8)438=)18+9382(+>)9'()*++(++,-)'3+)Q39'(-(7)180,-4391,8)0-,4)187(5(87(89)+,<-2(+)387)437()19

3?3163;6(),8)9'1+)+19(>)387)9'(),-1Q1836)180,-4391,8)43=)'3?()2,89318(7)(--,-+)387),41++1,8+@)S--,-+)387

,41++1,8+)43=)36+,)'3?(),22<--(7)18)9'()5-,2(++),0)Q39'(-18Q>)189(-5-(918Q>)387)-(5,-918Q)9'()180,-4391,8@

R80,-4391,8),8)9'():(;+19()1+)8,9)<5739(7)18)T-(36)914(T@)R8)377191,8>)<+(-+)3-()23<91,8(7)9'39)9'()5-,2(++

<+(7),8)9'1+)+19()9,)166<+9-39()9'();,<873-1(+),0)9'()37U32(89)53-2(6+)1+)8,9)36:3=+)2,8+1+9(89):19')9'(

-(2,-7(7)7,2<4(89+)0,-)+<2')53-2(6+@)&'()53-2(6);,<873-1(+)7(5129(7),8)9'1+)+19()3-()0,-)166<+9-391?(

5<-5,+(+),86=>)387)9'()(V329)-(6391,8+'15),0)37U32(89)53-2(6+)+',<67);()187(5(87(896=)-(+(3-2'(7)387

?(-101(7@)&'()180,-4391,8)5-,?17(7),8)9'1+)+19()1+)8,9)9'()(W<1?36(89),0)3)9196()-(5,-9),-)3)-(36)(+939()+<-?(=@

X+(-+)+',<67)187(5(87(896=)-(+(3-2'>)18?(+91Q39()387)?(-10=)366)180,-4391,8);(0,-()-(6=18Q),8)19),-)18)9'(

5-(53-391,8),0)6(Q36)7,2<4(89+@

Y=)<+18Q)9'1+):(;+19(>)=,<)32Z8,:6(7Q()'3?18Q)-(37)9'()3;,?()387):31?()38=)-1Q'9)=,<)43=)'3?()9,)26314

3Q318+9)B3-12,53)C,<89=>)19+),0012(-+>)(456,=((+>)387)2,89-329,-+)3-1+18Q),<9),0)4=)-(61382(),8),-)9'()<+(

,0)9'()180,-4391,8)5-,?17(7),8)9'1+):(;+19(@



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

C 

 
 
 

Appendix C – Traffic Count Data 
  



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEGRACE BLVD GRACE BLVD 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 1  ARIZONA AVE & GRACE BLVD  AM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 07:15 AM - 08:15 AM

Peak 15-Minutes: 07:45 AM - 08:00 AM

1,055 1,716

0

0

1,6891,034

79

73

0.89
N

S

EW

0.92

0.00

0.89

0.84

(2,831)(1,919)

()

()

(137)

(148)

(2,782)(1,881)

46 00

0

0

0

25

0

54

0

0

1,009
27 1,662

00

GRACE BLVD 

GRACE BLVD 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

2

0

2
N

S

EW

2
0

00

0 0

1
1

0

0 0 0

1

0

0

0

000

1

0

0

0

2

N

S

EW

0 0

0 1

0
1

1
1

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

7:00 AM 0 8 242 0 0 2100 21 0 0 0 0 492 0 1 0 02,6076 0 0 5

7:15 AM 0 3 360 0 0 2340 10 0 0 0 0 627 1 0 0 02,8235 0 0 15

7:30 AM 0 9 396 0 0 2650 16 0 0 0 0 698 0 2 0 02,7316 0 0 6

7:45 AM 0 6 469 0 0 2830 20 0 0 0 0 790 0 0 0 02,5667 0 0 5

8:00 AM 0 9 437 0 0 2270 8 0 0 0 0 708 1 0 0 02,2427 0 0 20

8:15 AM 0 4 315 0 0 1920 13 0 0 0 0 535 0 1 0 03 0 0 8

8:30 AM 0 9 268 0 0 2300 10 0 0 0 0 533 0 3 0 08 0 0 8

8:45 AM 0 6 241 0 0 1950 5 0 0 0 0 466 0 1 0 03 0 0 16

Count Total 830045 4,8491,836002,72854000001030 002 8

Peak Hour 0 54 0 0 0 0 0 27 1,662 0 0 1,009 2,82325 0 0 46 2 2 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEDWY 1 DWY 1 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 2  ARIZONA AVE & DWY 1  AM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 07:15 AM - 08:15 AM

Peak 15-Minutes: 07:45 AM - 08:00 AM

1,016 1,699

1

6

1,6961,008

11

11

0.88
N

S

EW

0.90

0.25

0.88

0.60

(2,799)(1,854)

(1)

(15)

(11)

(13)

(2,801)(1,844)

6 14

1

0

0

3

0

8

0

0

1,005
5 1,689

20

DWY 1 

DWY 1 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

2

0

1
N

S

EW

2
0

00

0 0

1
0

0

0 0 0

0

0

0

0

000

0

0

0

0

1

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
0

1
0

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

7:00 AM 0 0 254 0 0 2140 0 0 0 0 0 468 0 1 0 02,5150 0 0 0

7:15 AM 0 1 371 1 0 2340 0 0 0 0 0 609 0 0 0 02,7240 0 0 2

7:30 AM 0 2 396 0 1 2630 3 0 0 0 0 666 0 1 0 02,6350 0 1 0

7:45 AM 0 1 482 0 1 2800 4 0 0 0 0 772 0 1 0 02,4801 0 1 2

8:00 AM 0 1 440 0 2 2280 1 0 0 0 0 677 1 0 0 02,1542 1 0 2

8:15 AM 0 0 320 0 2 1950 0 0 0 0 0 520 0 0 0 01 0 2 0

8:30 AM 0 0 275 0 1 2330 1 0 0 0 0 511 0 2 0 00 0 1 0

8:45 AM 0 0 250 0 0 1930 0 0 0 0 0 446 0 0 0 00 0 3 0

Count Total 6814 4,6691,840712,78850000090 001 5

Peak Hour 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 5 1,689 1 4 1,005 2,7243 1 2 6 1 2 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEDWY 2 DWY 2 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 3  ARIZONA AVE & DWY 2  AM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 07:15 AM - 08:15 AM

Peak 15-Minutes: 07:45 AM - 08:00 AM

1,008 1,684

7

6

1,6791,005

2

1

0.87
N

S

EW

0.89

0.88

0.86

0.50

(2,783)(1,844)

(12)

(9)

(2)

(2)

(2,776)(1,840)

1 06

4

0

3

1

0

1

0

0

1,001
0 1,679

00

DWY 2 

DWY 2 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

3

0

1
N

S

EW

3
0

00

0 0

1
0

0

0 0 0

0

0

0

0

000

0

0

0

0

1

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
0

1
0

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

7:00 AM 0 0 254 0 0 2080 0 0 0 1 0 464 0 2 0 02,5070 1 0 0

7:15 AM 0 0 373 0 0 2350 0 0 0 0 0 610 0 0 0 02,6961 1 0 0

7:30 AM 0 0 393 0 1 2660 0 0 0 1 0 662 0 2 0 02,6050 1 0 0

7:45 AM 0 0 487 0 5 2760 0 0 0 1 0 771 0 1 0 02,4510 1 0 1

8:00 AM 0 0 426 0 0 2240 1 0 0 1 0 653 1 0 0 02,1270 1 0 0

8:15 AM 0 1 316 0 1 2000 0 0 0 0 0 519 0 0 0 00 1 0 0

8:30 AM 0 0 275 0 2 2300 0 0 0 0 0 508 0 0 0 00 1 0 0

8:45 AM 0 0 251 0 0 1950 0 0 0 1 0 447 0 0 0 00 0 0 0

Count Total 1071 4,6341,834902,77510050010 001 5

Peak Hour 0 1 0 0 3 0 0 0 1,679 0 6 1,001 2,6961 4 0 1 1 3 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEDWY 3 DWY 3 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 4  ARIZONA AVE & DWY 3  AM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 07:15 AM - 08:15 AM

Peak 15-Minutes: 07:45 AM - 08:00 AM

1,001 1,687

17

30

1,706975

62

94

0.87
N

S

EW

0.90

0.85

0.85

0.67

(2,794)(1,838)

(27)

(55)

(123)

(77)

(2,834)(1,804)

52 015

15

0

2

38

2

22

0

0

934
42 1,650

131

DWY 3 

DWY 3 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

0

0

0
N

S

EW

0
0

00

0 0

0
0

0

0 0 0

1

0

0

0

100

0

0

0

0

0

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
1

0
0

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

7:00 AM 0 2 247 0 3 2030 0 0 0 0 0 467 0 1 0 02,5872 3 3 4

7:15 AM 0 6 366 0 3 2250 2 0 0 1 0 626 0 0 0 02,7866 3 4 10

7:30 AM 0 14 381 0 5 2470 7 1 0 0 0 690 0 0 0 02,69815 5 2 13

7:45 AM 1 17 481 0 4 2550 9 1 0 1 0 804 0 0 0 02,52610 2 5 18

8:00 AM 0 5 422 0 3 2070 4 0 0 0 0 666 0 0 0 02,1897 5 2 11

8:15 AM 0 6 323 0 5 1930 1 0 0 0 0 538 0 0 0 04 1 1 4

8:30 AM 0 3 272 0 0 2290 0 0 0 0 0 518 0 0 0 04 2 5 3

8:45 AM 0 4 256 0 2 1880 0 0 0 2 0 467 0 0 0 04 2 6 3

Count Total 66282352 4,7761,7472502,7485710402230 000 1

Peak Hour 0 22 2 0 2 0 1 42 1,650 0 15 934 2,78638 15 13 52 0 0 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEGRACE BLVD GRACE BLVD 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 1  ARIZONA AVE & GRACE BLVD  PM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 04:45 PM - 05:45 PM

Peak 15-Minutes: 05:15 PM - 05:30 PM

1,633 1,194

0

0

1,1841,629

80

74

0.95
N

S

EW

0.91

0.00

0.94

0.94

(2,345)(3,126)

()

()

(143)

(171)

(2,311)(3,120)

50 00

0

0

0

46

0

34

0

0

1,583
24 1,160

00

GRACE BLVD 

GRACE BLVD 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

0

0

1
N

S

EW

0
0

00

0 0

1
0

0

0 1 0

0

0

0

0

000

0

0

0

0

2

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
0

1
1

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

4:00 PM 1 4 277 0 0 4000 13 0 0 0 0 718 0 3 0 02,78411 0 0 12

4:15 PM 0 7 288 0 0 3900 10 0 0 0 0 714 0 1 0 02,8169 0 0 10

4:30 PM 0 2 277 0 0 3500 9 0 0 0 0 667 1 1 0 02,86415 0 0 14

4:45 PM 0 5 312 0 0 3400 10 0 0 0 0 685 0 0 0 02,8974 0 0 14

5:00 PM 0 4 295 0 0 4190 10 0 0 0 0 750 0 0 0 02,82414 0 0 8

5:15 PM 0 8 287 0 0 4340 8 0 0 0 0 762 0 0 0 012 0 0 13

5:30 PM 0 7 266 0 0 3900 6 0 0 0 0 700 1 0 0 016 0 0 15

5:45 PM 0 8 263 0 0 3050 14 0 0 0 0 612 0 0 0 010 0 0 12

Count Total 980091 5,6083,028002,2654510000800 002 5

Peak Hour 0 34 0 0 0 0 0 24 1,160 0 0 1,583 2,89746 0 0 50 1 0 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEDWY 1 DWY 1 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 2  ARIZONA AVE & DWY 1  PM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 04:45 PM - 05:45 PM

Peak 15-Minutes: 05:15 PM - 05:30 PM

1,642 1,173

2

5

1,1681,645

20

9

0.95
N

S

EW

0.91

0.58

0.94

0.66

(2,287)(3,146)

(8)

(11)

(16)

(28)

(2,286)(3,154)

7 03

0

0

2

11

0

9

0

0

1,632
2 1,164

20

DWY 1 

DWY 1 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

0

0

0
N

S

EW

0
0

00

0 0

0
0

0

1 0 0

0

0

0

0

000

0

0

0

0

2

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
0

1
1

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

4:00 PM 0 0 277 0 0 4070 0 0 0 1 0 689 0 0 0 02,7060 1 2 1

4:15 PM 1 1 291 0 0 4100 1 0 0 2 0 710 0 0 0 02,7572 1 0 1

4:30 PM 0 0 276 0 1 3610 0 0 0 1 0 645 1 1 0 02,7892 0 3 1

4:45 PM 0 0 314 0 1 3430 0 0 0 1 0 662 0 0 0 02,8322 0 0 1

5:00 PM 0 2 294 0 1 4320 3 0 0 0 0 740 0 0 0 02,7625 0 1 2

5:15 PM 0 0 285 0 0 4470 4 0 0 1 0 742 0 0 0 02 0 0 3

5:30 PM 0 0 271 0 1 4100 2 0 0 0 0 688 0 0 0 02 0 1 1

5:45 PM 0 1 266 0 0 3200 1 0 0 0 0 592 0 0 0 02 0 0 2

Count Total 127217 5,4683,130402,274410600110 001 1

Peak Hour 0 9 0 0 2 0 0 2 1,164 0 3 1,632 2,83211 0 2 7 0 0 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEDWY 2 DWY 2 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 3  ARIZONA AVE & DWY 2  PM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 04:45 PM - 05:45 PM

Peak 15-Minutes: 05:15 PM - 05:30 PM

1,648 1,156

7

8

1,1561,646

4

5

0.96
N

S

EW

0.91

0.46

0.92

0.75

(2,264)(3,161)

(16)

(15)

(11)

(14)

(2,258)(3,159)

0 05

5

0

2

1

0

3

0

0

1,643
5 1,148

30

DWY 2 

DWY 2 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

0

0

0
N

S

EW

0
0

00

0 0

0
0

0

0 0 0

0

0

0

0

000

0

0

0

0

1

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
0

1
0

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

4:00 PM 0 1 269 0 1 4080 1 0 0 3 0 689 0 0 0 02,7061 3 1 1

4:15 PM 0 0 286 1 2 4130 0 0 0 1 0 707 1 0 0 02,7423 1 0 0

4:30 PM 0 0 276 0 3 3590 2 0 0 0 0 644 0 1 0 02,7711 1 0 2

4:45 PM 0 1 314 0 1 3460 1 0 0 0 0 666 0 0 0 02,8150 2 1 0

5:00 PM 0 0 284 0 1 4360 2 0 0 0 0 725 0 0 0 02,7430 2 0 0

5:15 PM 0 1 279 0 2 4510 0 0 0 0 0 736 0 0 0 01 1 1 0

5:30 PM 0 3 271 0 1 4100 0 0 0 2 0 688 0 0 0 00 0 1 0

5:45 PM 0 2 267 0 0 3230 1 0 0 0 0 594 0 0 0 01 0 0 0

Count Total 34107 5,4493,1461112,24680060070 001 1

Peak Hour 0 3 0 0 2 0 0 5 1,148 0 5 1,643 2,8151 5 3 0 0 0 0 0



ARIZONA AVE ARIZONA AVEDWY 3 DWY 3 

(303) 216-2439
www.alltrafficdata.net

Location: 4  ARIZONA AVE & DWY 3  PM

Thursday, September 7, 2023Date:

Peak Hour - Motorized Vehicles Peak Hour - Bicycles Peak Hour - Pedestrians

Traffic Counts - Motorized Vehicles

Note: Total study counts contained in parentheses.

Peak Hour: 04:45 PM - 05:45 PM

Peak 15-Minutes: 05:00 PM - 05:15 PM

1,649 1,172

29

29

1,1701,636

42

53

0.96
N

S

EW

0.93

0.53

0.95

0.73

(2,289)(3,162)

(51)

(64)

(102)

(79)

(2,300)(3,137)

28 018

26

0

3

30

1

11

0

0

1,603
25 1,135

100

DWY 3 

DWY 3 

ARIZONA AVE

ARIZONA AVE

0

0

0

0
N

S

EW

0
0

00

0 0

0
0

0

0 0 0

0

0

0

0

000

0

0

0

0

1

N

S

EW

0 0

0 0

0
0

1
0

0

0

0

0

Left Thru Right Total
EastboundInterval

Start Time
Rolling
Hour West East South North

Pedestrian Crossings
U-Turn

Westbound Northbound Southbound
Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn Left Thru RightU-Turn

4:00 PM 2 5 268 0 3 4000 3 1 0 2 0 701 0 0 0 02,7753 3 6 5

4:15 PM 0 5 278 0 4 4030 6 0 0 3 0 725 1 0 0 02,8298 4 3 11

4:30 PM 1 10 278 0 3 3520 2 1 0 1 0 670 0 1 0 02,8546 3 6 7

4:45 PM 0 8 302 0 3 3380 5 0 0 1 0 679 0 0 0 02,8906 5 4 7

5:00 PM 0 10 278 0 5 4240 2 0 0 2 0 755 0 0 0 02,8177 13 4 10

5:15 PM 0 3 281 0 5 4370 1 1 0 0 0 750 0 0 0 013 6 0 3

5:30 PM 0 4 274 0 5 4040 3 0 0 0 0 706 0 0 0 04 2 2 8

5:45 PM 0 1 266 0 7 3130 2 0 0 2 0 606 0 0 0 05 4 1 5

Count Total 56264052 5,5923,0713502,22546301103240 001 1

Peak Hour 0 11 1 0 3 0 0 25 1,135 0 18 1,603 2,89030 26 10 28 0 0 0 0



Page 1 
  
 
 

 
Site Code: 5

ARIZONA AVE S.O GRACE BLVD
 
 
 

All Traffic Data Services, LLC
www.alltrafficdata.net

 
Start 07-Sep-23          
Time Thu NB SB       Total
12:00 AM 75 85 160

01:00 62 70 132
02:00 62 76 138
03:00 81 85 166
04:00 233 190 423
05:00 430 319 749
06:00 663 502 1165
07:00 1504 998 2502
08:00 1288 856 2144
09:00 813 706 1519
10:00 717 753 1470
11:00 869 888 1757

12:00 PM 931 974 1905
01:00 845 946 1791
02:00 910 1103 2013
03:00 956 1152 2108
04:00 1161 1527 2688
05:00 1126 1619 2745
06:00 884 952 1836
07:00 627 692 1319
08:00 507 472 979
09:00 369 367 736
10:00 230 194 424
11:00 133 120 253
Total  15476 15646       31122

Percent  49.7% 50.3%        
AM Peak - 07:00 07:00 - - - - - - 07:00

Vol. - 1504 998 - - - - - - 2502
PM Peak - 16:00 17:00 - - - - - - 17:00

Vol. - 1161 1619 - - - - - - 2745
Grand Total  15476 15646       31122

Percent  49.7% 50.3%        
  

ADT ADT 31,122 AADT 31,122



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

D 

 
 
 

Appendix D – Existing Capacity Analysis  
  



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 54 25 27 1662 1009 46
Future Vol, veh/h 54 25 27 1662 1009 46
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 0 50 - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 89 89 89 89 89 89
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 61 28 30 1867 1134 52

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1941 567 1185 0 - 0
          Stage 1 1134 - - - - -
          Stage 2 808 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 5.74 7.14 5.34 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.64 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.04 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 3.92 3.12 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *399 *793 492 - - -
          Stage 1 *364 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *374 *793 492 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *308 - - - - -
          Stage 1 *341 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v16.41 0.2 0
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 EBLn2 SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 492 - 308 793 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.062 - 0.197 0.035 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.8 - 19.5 9.7 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - C A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - 0.7 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 0 3 0 0 1 5 1689 2 5 1005 6
Future Vol, veh/h 8 0 3 0 0 1 5 1689 2 5 1005 6
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 0 3 0 0 1 6 1919 2 6 1142 7

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1933 3086 571 2400 3092 961 1149 0 0 1922 0 0
          Stage 1 1153 1153 - 1932 1932 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 779 1933 - 468 1160 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *494 31 *786 *173 31 *666 528 - - 302 - -
          Stage 1 *325 422 - *154 242 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *683 242 - *807 418 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *479 30 *786 *167 30 *666 528 - - 302 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *479 30 - *167 30 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *319 414 - *153 240 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *675 239 - *788 410 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v11.88 10.42 0.04 0.08
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 528 - - 536 666 302 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.011 - - 0.023 0.002 0.019 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 11.9 - - 11.9 10.4 17.1 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - B B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1679 0 6 1001 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1679 0 6 1001 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 0 1 3 0 5 0 1930 0 7 1151 1

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1936 3094 575 2404 3095 965 1152 0 0 1930 0 0
          Stage 1 1164 1164 - 1930 1930 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 772 1930 - 474 1166 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *432 29 *793 *154 28 *674 513 - - 287 - -
          Stage 1 *306 406 - *146 234 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 234 - *813 406 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *419 28 *793 *151 28 *674 513 - - 287 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *419 28 - *151 28 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *299 396 - *146 234 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *687 234 - *793 396 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v 11.6 18.7 0 0.11
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 513 - - 548 271 287 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.004 0.03 0.024 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 0 - - 11.6 18.7 17.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 0.1 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 22 2 38 2 0 15 43 1650 13 15 934 52
Future Vol, veh/h 22 2 38 2 0 15 43 1650 13 15 934 52
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87 87
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 25 2 44 2 0 17 49 1897 15 17 1074 60

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1966 3118 537 2460 3163 948 1133 0 0 1911 0 0
          Stage 1 1108 1108 - 1995 1995 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 857 2010 - 465 1168 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *406 27 *793 *136 24 *674 525 - - 295 - -
          Stage 1 *339 435 - *127 213 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 208 - *813 404 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *337 23 *793 *100 21 *674 525 - - 295 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *337 23 - *100 21 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *319 409 - *115 193 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *611 188 - *720 381 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v20.07 14.4 0.32 0.27
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 525 - - 310 403 295 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.094 - - 0.23 0.049 0.058 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.6 - - 20.1 14.4 17.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0.9 0.2 0.2 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 34 46 24 1160 1583 50
Future Vol, veh/h 34 46 24 1160 1583 50
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 0 50 - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 95 95 95 95 95 95
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 36 48 25 1221 1666 53

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2205 833 1719 0 - 0
          Stage 1 1666 - - - - -
          Stage 2 539 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 5.74 7.14 5.34 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.64 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.04 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 3.92 3.12 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *166 *674 394 - - -
          Stage 1 *292 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *156 *674 394 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *232 - - - - -
          Stage 1 *274 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v16.08 0.3 0
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 EBLn2 SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 394 - 232 674 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.064 - 0.154 0.072 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 14.8 - 23.3 10.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - C B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - 0.5 0.2 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 0 11 2 0 0 2 1164 2 3 1632 7
Future Vol, veh/h 9 0 11 2 0 0 2 1164 2 3 1632 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95 95
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 0 12 2 0 0 2 1225 2 3 1718 7

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2219 2956 859 1924 2962 614 1725 0 0 1227 0 0
          Stage 1 1724 1724 - 1231 1231 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 494 1232 - 693 1732 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *367 54 *666 *506 53 *746 407 - - 567 - -
          Stage 1 *243 328 - *370 451 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *766 450 - *683 325 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *363 54 *666 *492 53 *746 407 - - 567 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *363 54 - *492 53 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *242 327 - *368 449 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *762 448 - *668 323 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v12.78 12.34 0.02 0.02
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 407 - - 484 492 567 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.005 - - 0.044 0.004 0.006 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 13.9 - - 12.8 12.3 11.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - B B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1148 3 5 1643 0
Future Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1148 3 5 1643 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1196 3 5 1711 0

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2211 2931 856 1903 2930 599 1711 0 0 1199 0 0
          Stage 1 1722 1722 - 1208 1208 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 489 1209 - 695 1722 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *325 53 *674 *523 53 *753 399 - - 571 - -
          Stage 1 *229 317 - *367 451 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 450 - *692 317 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *316 51 *674 *510 52 *753 399 - - 571 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *316 51 - *510 52 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *227 314 - *363 445 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *758 444 - *685 314 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v 15 10.49 0.06 0.03
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 399 - - 364 663 571 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.013 - - 0.011 0.011 0.009 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 14.1 - - 15 10.5 11.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - B B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 0 0 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Existing PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 1 30 3 0 26 25 1135 10 18 1603 52
Future Vol, veh/h 11 1 30 3 0 26 25 1135 10 18 1603 52
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96 96
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 11 1 31 3 0 27 26 1182 10 19 1670 54

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2232 2952 835 1940 2996 591 1724 0 0 1193 0 0
          Stage 1 1707 1707 - 1234 1234 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 525 1245 - 706 1761 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *309 50 *674 *523 45 *753 391 - - 575 - -
          Stage 1 *236 324 - *349 436 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 430 - *692 299 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *269 45 *674 *441 40 *753 391 - - 575 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *269 45 - *441 40 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *229 313 - *326 407 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *696 401 - *636 290 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v15.38 10.36 0.32 0.12
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 391 - - 391 702 575 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.067 - - 0.112 0.043 0.033 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 14.8 - - 15.4 10.4 11.5 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - 0.4 0.1 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

E 

 
 
 

Appendix E – Trip Generation  
  



Completed:

Checked:

Trip Generation Calculations

Rate % In % Out Rate % In % Out Rate % In % Out Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
4.54 50% 50% 0.37 23% 77% 0.39 63% 37% 1,920 960 960 157 36 121 165 104 61 Average

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
3.76 50% 50% 0.15 23% 77% 0.19 63% 37% 1,590 795 795 63 14 49 80 50 30 Minimum

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
5.40 50% 50% 0.53 23% 77% 0.57 63% 37% 2,284 1,142 1,142 224 52 172 241 152 89 Maximum

Equation % In % Out Equation % In % Out Equation % In % Out Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out

221 423
Dwelling 

Units
T=4.77(X)-46.46 50% 50% T=.44(X)-11.61 23% 77% T=.39(X)+0.34 63% 37% 1,971 986 985 175 40 135 165 104 61 Equation

0.51 0.09 0.08

11 30 31

201 173 169

0.93 0.91 0.91

LU - 221 - Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Average Size

AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit

Weekday AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour Weekday

Land Use
PM Peak HourITE 

Code
Qty Unit

Weekday AM Peak Hour

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Multifamily Housing (Mid-Rise)

Standard Deviation

PM Peak Hour

R2

Number of Studies

Weekday AM Peak Hour



Completed:

Checked:

Trip Generation Calculations

840 Automobile Sales (New)

Rate % In % Out Rate % In % Out Rate % In % Out Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
27.84 50% 50% 1.86 73% 27% 2.42 40% 60% 1,993 997 996 133 97 36 173 69 104 Average

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
14.98 50% 50% 0.59 73% 27% 0.94 40% 60% 1,072 536 536 42 31 11 67 27 40 Minimum

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
41.78 50% 50% 6.17 73% 27% 5.81 40% 60% 2,991 1,496 1,495 442 323 119 416 166 250 Maximum

Equation % In % Out Equation % In % Out Equation % In % Out Total In Out Total In Out Total In Out

840 71.6
1000 SF 

GFA
T=28.65(X)-29.45 50% 50% N/A N/A N/A T=1.81(X)+20.91 40% 60% 2,021 1,011 1,010 N/A N/A N/A 150 60 90 Equation

7.01 0.94 0.98

18 35 50

36 30 34

0.80 N/A 0.57

PM Peak Hour Weekday AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Automobile Sales (New)

Unit
Weekday AM Peak Hour

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty Unit

Weekday AM Peak Hour

Automobile Sales (New)

Automobile Sales (New)

Land Use
ITE 

Code
Qty

Number of Studies

Average Size

Automobile Sales (New)

Automobile Sales (New)

Standard Deviation

R2

PM Peak Hour Weekday AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

F 

 
 
 

Appendix F – MAG Socioeconomic 
Projections 

  



Socioeconomic  

Projections 

 

302 North 1st Avenue, Suite 300 

Phoenix, Arizona 85003 

(602) 254-6300 

www.azmag.gov 





Maricopa Association of Governments

Table 1: Total Population by Municipal Planning Area 

July 1, 2020, 2022 and Projections July 1, 2030 to July 1, 2060

Municipal Planning Area 2020 2022 2030 2040

Total Population

20602050

Apache Junction 52,700 53,700 67,100 84,200 100,800 127,600

Avondale 91,100 94,000 117,800 130,900 135,400 137,700

Buckeye 109,700 124,400 194,400 296,200 397,800 491,000

Carefree 3,700 3,700 4,100 4,100 4,200 4,200

Cave Creek 5,000 5,300 5,600 5,900 6,100 6,200

Chandler 286,100 292,000 304,300 315,900 336,500 337,600

El Mirage 35,900 36,300 37,800 38,400 38,500 38,600

Florence 76,600 78,100 106,700 154,000 197,500 242,900

Fort McDowell Yavapai Native Nation 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200

Fountain Hills 23,900 24,000 25,200 25,700 26,000 26,100

Gila Bend 2,100 2,100 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

Gila River Indian Native Nation 14,100 14,100 14,100 14,100 14,100 14,100

Gilbert 272,400 281,200 301,600 311,600 323,900 325,100

Glendale 282,200 291,000 323,600 345,300 353,200 354,900

Goodyear 99,900 109,200 165,100 210,000 241,200 276,700

Guadalupe 5,300 5,300 5,400 5,600 5,700 5,700

Litchfield Park 13,300 13,400 14,200 14,300 14,300 14,300

Maricopa 64,800 71,500 100,500 122,200 141,400 159,800

Mesa 550,300 561,500 589,900 624,200 645,500 661,200

Paradise Valley 12,700 12,700 13,300 13,300 13,400 13,400

Peoria 207,400 215,600 244,500 288,900 318,100 346,800

Phoenix 1,665,200 1,711,800 1,867,300 2,007,800 2,101,500 2,184,600

Queen Creek 72,700 84,700 121,000 135,700 149,400 154,900

Salt River Pima-Maricopa Native Nation 6,300 6,400 5,500 5,900 6,000 6,000

Scottsdale 241,800 245,100 275,700 286,700 301,300 307,300

Surprise 155,600 167,500 255,700 342,300 402,900 446,500

Tempe 181,600 187,400 219,300 247,500 258,000 269,700

Tolleson 7,300 7,300 8,100 8,900 9,600 10,300

Unincorporated Maricopa County 99,700 101,600 107,100 110,800 120,400 136,200

Unincorporated Pinal County 66,400 69,100 76,500 87,500 99,600 117,900

Wickenburg 7,800 8,000 8,600 8,600 8,700 8,700

Youngtown 7,100 7,100 7,500 7,700 7,800 7,800

Source: Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Socioeconomic Projections of Population and Employment by Municipal Planning Area 

(MPA) and Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ), June 2023

For explanation of variables and complete notation on this series,  please refer to the Notes and Caveats in Appendix A.

3

Notes: Numbers rounded to the nearest 100. These projections include both the Maricopa County and Pinal County portions for Apache Junction, 

Queen Creek, and the Gila River Indian Community. Peoria and Wickenburg include only the Maricopa County portion. Unincorporated Pinal 

County only includes portions in the MAG planning area.

For data on jurisdictions outside of the MAG planning area, please contact Central Arizona Governments.



Maricopa Association of Governments

Table 2: Total Employment by Municipal Planning Area 

July 1, 2020, 2022 and Projections July 1, 2030 to July 1, 2060

Municipal Planning Area 2020 2022 2030 2040

Total Employment

20602050

Apache Junction 7,900 9,200 15,600 19,000 22,800 27,500

Avondale 24,900 28,100 33,600 39,600 42,400 46,800

Buckeye 25,900 26,200 50,100 92,400 126,800 183,600

Carefree 1,600 1,600 1,700 1,700 1,800 1,900

Cave Creek 2,400 2,600 2,800 3,000 3,300 3,500

Chandler 157,400 166,400 189,400 204,500 216,000 224,700

El Mirage 5,700 6,300 10,200 13,600 15,300 16,400

Florence 9,700 9,900 12,100 18,500 26,600 35,500

Fort McDowell Yavapai Native Nation 900 900 900 900 900 900

Fountain Hills 7,800 8,200 9,200 10,100 10,700 11,200

Gila Bend 1,000 1,000 1,100 1,200 1,300 2,000

Gila River Indian Native Nation 9,000 9,000 12,300 14,000 14,800 17,500

Gilbert 98,100 108,000 122,700 136,400 143,900 151,300

Glendale 103,300 111,900 136,400 155,800 171,900 183,900

Goodyear 46,000 59,200 87,200 110,600 124,100 142,800

Guadalupe 1,200 1,100 1,200 1,300 1,300 1,400

Litchfield Park 3,700 3,500 4,900 5,300 5,600 6,000

Maricopa 7,400 8,400 11,100 17,700 24,700 32,700

Mesa 197,400 208,200 237,500 277,300 308,900 331,500

Paradise Valley 4,700 4,700 5,100 5,500 5,500 5,800

Peoria 60,400 62,700 71,700 89,200 98,200 109,600

Phoenix 881,000 933,700 1,048,500 1,149,000 1,216,700 1,272,600

Queen Creek 21,100 22,300 30,700 35,000 39,700 42,900

Salt River Pima-Maricopa Native Nation 18,100 21,900 31,200 34,800 36,600 38,600

Scottsdale 188,900 207,100 230,500 246,500 255,000 264,000

Surprise 38,600 43,500 74,200 92,600 108,800 130,000

Tempe 192,400 207,900 233,700 253,400 264,400 273,000

Tolleson 17,600 19,000 20,600 21,500 22,000 22,400

Unincorporated Maricopa County 28,800 31,100 36,300 41,000 48,100 56,100

Unincorporated Pinal County 4,500 5,000 6,000 8,200 11,900 17,700

Wickenburg 4,300 4,200 4,400 4,500 4,500 4,600

Youngtown 1,600 1,600 1,700 2,200 2,300 2,500

Source: Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Socioeconomic Projections of Population and Employment by Municipal Planning Area 

(MPA) and Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ), June 2023

For explanation of variables and complete notation on this series,  please refer to the Notes and Caveats in Appendix A.

4

Notes: Numbers rounded to the nearest 100. These projections include both the Maricopa County and Pinal County portions for Apache Junction, 

Queen Creek, and the Gila River Indian Community. Peoria and Wickenburg include only the Maricopa County portion. Unincorporated Pinal 

County only includes portions in the MAG planning area.

For data on jurisdictions outside of the MAG planning area, please contact Central Arizona Governments.





Total Population

2022 2030 2040 2050RAZ County

Maricopa Association of Governments
Table 4: Population by Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ) by MPA

July 1, 2020, 2022 and Projections July 1, 2030 to July 1, 2060

20602020

Chandler MPA

Maricopa 67,30453,151 53,951 55,245310 68,08052,605

Maricopa 42,48641,024 41,126 42,128315 42,62040,816

Maricopa 48,68937,366 42,624 46,383316 48,73037,089

Maricopa 43,78733,627 34,815 38,544317 43,81833,314

Maricopa 51,79649,471 50,721 51,342325 51,86047,238

Maricopa 30,25328,146 29,766 30,180327 30,25327,143

Maricopa 52,21249,184 51,261 52,110328 52,23747,865

336,527291,969 304,264 315,932 337,598     Total 286,070

El Mirage MPA

Maricopa 38,53936,275 37,825 38,412235 38,64935,927

38,53936,275 37,825 38,412 38,649     Total 35,927

Florence MPA

Pinal 76,83824,585 40,293 60,963394 94,45024,189

Pinal 20,5789,895 10,092 13,181395 30,31511,112

Pinal 100,04443,666 56,358 79,855396 118,09541,252

197,46078,146 106,743 153,999 242,860     Total 76,553

Fort McDowell Yavapai Native Nation MPA

Maricopa 1,1541,153 1,154 1,154251 1,1541,152

1,1541,153 1,154 1,154 1,154     Total 1,152

Fountain Hills MPA

Maricopa 25,96723,972 25,185 25,739250 26,07623,857

25,96723,972 25,185 25,739 26,076     Total 23,857

Gila Bend MPA

Maricopa 2,5132,134 2,501 2,501331 2,5132,133

2,5132,134 2,501 2,501 2,513     Total 2,133

Gila River Indian Native Nation MPA

Maricopa 3,5903,585 3,588 3,589324 3,5913,583

Pinal 10,47210,472 10,472 10,472397 10,47210,471

14,06214,057 14,060 14,061 14,063     Total 14,054

17

Source: Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Socioeconomic Projections of Population and Employment by Municipal Planning Area 

(MPA) and Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ), June 2023

For explanation of variables and complete notation on this series,  please refer to the Notes and Caveats in Appendix A.

Notes: These projections include both the Maricopa County and Pinal County portions for Apache Junction, Queen Creek, and the Gila River 

Indian Community. Peoria and Wickenburg include only the Maricopa County portion. Unincorporated Pinal County only includes portions in the 

MAG planning area.

For data on jurisdictions outside of the MAG planning area, please contact Central Arizona Governments.



Total Employment

2022 2030 2040 2050RAZ County

Maricopa Association of Governments
Table 5: Employment by Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ) by MPA

July 1, 2020, 2022 and Projections July 1, 2030 to July 1, 2060

20602020

Chandler MPA

Maricopa 29,16521,647 22,852 24,773310 31,40221,336

Maricopa 47,57042,057 44,289 46,475315 48,43040,905

Maricopa 35,13128,354 31,693 34,155316 36,13028,818

Maricopa 12,5718,590 9,707 11,486317 14,0448,446

Maricopa 53,78538,276 48,197 51,538325 55,24433,588

Maricopa 25,76217,261 21,978 24,436327 26,98514,410

Maricopa 12,02210,249 10,702 11,589328 12,4889,898

216,006166,434 189,418 204,452 224,723     Total 157,401

El Mirage MPA

Maricopa 15,3186,338 10,238 13,573235 16,4505,664

15,3186,338 10,238 13,573 16,450     Total 5,664

Florence MPA

Pinal 12,5885,022 6,089 8,847394 16,6754,953

Pinal 4,2701,575 1,901 3,038395 5,5511,953

Pinal 9,7763,279 4,148 6,616396 13,2512,747

26,6349,876 12,138 18,501 35,477     Total 9,653

Fort McDowell Yavapai Native Nation MPA

Maricopa 881881 879 879251 874917

881881 879 879 874     Total 917

Fountain Hills MPA

Maricopa 10,7068,248 9,206 10,083250 11,2177,850

10,7068,248 9,206 10,083 11,217     Total 7,850

Gila Bend MPA

Maricopa 1,3041,047 1,107 1,224331 2,016952

1,3041,047 1,107 1,224 2,016     Total 952

Gila River Indian Native Nation MPA

Maricopa 11,7856,956 9,476 11,136324 14,3106,857

Pinal 3,0382,011 2,801 2,910397 3,1742,115

14,8238,967 12,277 14,046 17,484     Total 8,972

25

Source: Maricopa Association of Governments (MAG) Socioeconomic Projections of Population and Employment by Municipal Planning Area 

(MPA) and Regional Analysis Zone (RAZ), June 2023

For explanation of variables and complete notation on this series,  please refer to the Notes and Caveats in Appendix A.

Notes: These projections include both the Maricopa County and Pinal County portions for Apache Junction, Queen Creek, and the Gila River 

Indian Community. Peoria and Wickenburg include only the Maricopa County portion. Unincorporated Pinal County only includes portions in the 

MAG planning area.

For data on jurisdictions outside of the MAG planning area, please contact Central Arizona Governments.



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

G 

 
 
 

Appendix G – Surrounding 
Development(s) 

  



   
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
Alta Uptown 
Wood Partners 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
  

 
Wood Partners 
8777 E. Via Ventura, Suite 201 
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 
 

Prepared by: 
 
Project Number: 21.5261 
December 1, 2021 

 

 

Lōkahi, LLC 
4657 E. Cotton Gin Loop, Suite 102 
Phoenix, AZ 85040 
 

12/01/21



FIGURE 7 | SITE TRAFFIC VOLUMES

Legend
Peak Hour Traffic Volumes

Intersection

AM(PM)
X

1

2

Driveway A

A
ri

zo
na

 A
ve

nu
e PROPOSED

SITE

Corporate Place3 4 5

D
ri

ve
w

ay
 B

D
ri

ve
w

ay
 C

D
ri

ve
w

ay
 D

2

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
e

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
e

10
 (5

5)

70 (25)

44 (49)

30
 (6

0)

Corporate Pl

1Driveway A

70
 (2

5)

30
 (6

0)

3

D
riv

ew
ay

 B
D

riv
ew

ay
 B

Corporate Pl

80
 (5

5)10 (29)
30 (86)

29 (19)

Corporate Pl 4Corporate Pl
Corporate Pl 5Corporate Pl

29
 (1

9)

Corporate Pl

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
e

Ar
iz

on
a 

Av
e

D
riv

ew
ay

 C

D
riv

ew
ay

 D
D

riv
ew

ay
 D

10 (29)

29 (19)

10 (29)



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

H 

 
 
 

Appendix H – Year 2027 No Build Capacity 
Analysis 

  



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 56 26 28 1739 1094 48
Future Vol, veh/h 56 26 28 1739 1094 48
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 0 50 - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 61 28 30 1890 1189 52

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2006 595 1241 0 - 0
          Stage 1 1189 - - - - -
          Stage 2 817 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 5.74 7.14 5.34 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.64 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.04 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 3.92 3.12 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *355 *753 540 - - -
          Stage 1 *416 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *335 *753 540 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *351 - - - - -
          Stage 1 *393 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v15.03 0.19 0
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 EBLn2 SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 540 - 351 753 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.056 - 0.173 0.038 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.1 - 17.4 10 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - C A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - 0.6 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 0 3 0 0 1 5 1768 2 5 1090 6
Future Vol, veh/h 8 0 3 0 0 1 5 1768 2 5 1090 6
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 0 3 0 0 1 5 1922 2 5 1185 7

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1975 3130 592 2418 3136 962 1191 0 0 1924 0 0
          Stage 1 1196 1196 - 1934 1934 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 780 1935 - 485 1202 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *506 34 *746 *226 34 *666 595 - - 301 - -
          Stage 1 *395 471 - *154 242 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *683 241 - *766 468 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *492 33 *746 *219 33 *666 595 - - 301 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *492 33 - *219 33 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *388 463 - *152 239 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *676 239 - *749 459 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v11.79 10.42 0.03 0.08
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 595 - - 542 666 301 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.009 - - 0.022 0.002 0.018 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 11.1 - - 11.8 10.4 17.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - B B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1757 0 6 1086 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1757 0 6 1086 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1910 0 7 1180 1

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1957 3103 590 2395 3104 955 1182 0 0 1910 0 0
          Stage 1 1193 1193 - 1910 1910 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 764 1910 - 485 1195 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *523 34 *753 *211 34 *674 584 - - 296 - -
          Stage 1 *377 459 - *153 241 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 241 - *773 458 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *508 33 *753 *206 33 *674 584 - - 296 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *508 33 - *206 33 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *369 449 - *153 241 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *688 241 - *755 448 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v10.96 15.79 0 0.1
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 584 - - 607 341 296 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.004 0.022 0.022 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 0 - - 11 15.8 17.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 0.1 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 23 2 40 2 0 16 45 1727 14 16 1016 54
Future Vol, veh/h 23 2 40 2 0 16 45 1727 14 16 1016 54
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 25 2 43 2 0 17 49 1877 15 17 1104 59

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 1988 3129 552 2453 3173 939 1163 0 0 1892 0 0
          Stage 1 1139 1139 - 1975 1975 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 849 1990 - 478 1198 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *387 26 *793 *138 24 *674 506 - - 304 - -
          Stage 1 *321 419 - *132 219 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 214 - *813 390 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *321 22 *793 *102 20 *674 506 - - 304 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *321 22 - *102 20 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *302 395 - *120 198 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *609 194 - *721 368 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v 20.2 14.09 0.32 0.26
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 506 - - 307 415 304 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.097 - - 0.23 0.047 0.057 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.9 - - 20.2 14.1 17.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0.9 0.1 0.2 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 35 48 25 1262 1696 52
Future Vol, veh/h 35 48 25 1262 1696 52
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 0 50 - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 38 52 27 1372 1843 57

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2447 922 1900 0 - 0
          Stage 1 1843 - - - - -
          Stage 2 603 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 5.74 7.14 5.34 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.64 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.04 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 3.92 3.12 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *111 *674 301 - - -
          Stage 1 *209 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *101 *674 301 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *164 - - - - -
          Stage 1 *190 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v20.34 0.35 0
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 EBLn2 SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 301 - 164 674 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.09 - 0.232 0.077 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 18.2 - 33.4 10.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - D B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - 0.9 0.3 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 0 11 2 0 0 2 1266 2 3 1747 7
Future Vol, veh/h 9 0 11 2 0 0 2 1266 2 3 1747 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 10 0 12 2 0 0 2 1376 2 3 1899 8

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2460 3288 949 2148 3295 689 1907 0 0 1378 0 0
          Stage 1 1905 1905 - 1382 1382 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 555 1383 - 766 1913 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *204 22 *666 *434 22 *746 309 - - 464 - -
          Stage 1 *164 252 - *277 372 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *766 371 - *683 249 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *201 22 *666 *420 22 *746 309 - - 464 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *201 22 - *420 22 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *163 250 - *275 369 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *760 369 - *666 247 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v16.81 13.61 0.03 0.02
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 309 - - 326 420 464 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.007 - - 0.067 0.005 0.007 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 16.7 - - 16.8 13.6 12.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.2 0 0 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1250 3 5 1759 0
Future Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1250 3 5 1759 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1359 3 5 1912 0

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2477 3296 956 2147 3294 681 1912 0 0 1362 0 0
          Stage 1 1923 1923 - 1371 1371 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 554 1373 - 776 1923 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *173 20 *674 *377 20 *753 295 - - 460 - -
          Stage 1 *148 237 - *269 366 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 365 - *692 237 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *166 20 *674 *365 20 *753 295 - - 460 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *166 20 - *365 20 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *147 234 - *264 359 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *753 359 - *683 234 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v22.93 11.31 0.07 0.04
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 295 - - 205 578 460 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.018 - - 0.021 0.013 0.012 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 17.4 - - 22.9 11.3 12.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2027 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 1 31 3 0 27 26 1236 10 19 1717 29
Future Vol, veh/h 11 1 31 3 0 27 26 1236 10 19 1717 29
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 12 1 34 3 0 29 28 1343 11 21 1866 32

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2502 3318 933 2188 3339 672 1898 0 0 1354 0 0
          Stage 1 1908 1908 - 1400 1400 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 594 1411 - 788 1939 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *163 19 *674 *343 18 *753 302 - - 465 - -
          Stage 1 *153 242 - *255 353 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 348 - *692 231 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *136 17 *674 *266 16 *753 302 - - 465 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *136 17 - *266 16 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *147 231 - *231 320 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *673 315 - *625 221 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v24.67 10.96 0.37 0.14
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 302 - - 229 636 465 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.094 - - 0.204 0.051 0.044 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 18.2 - - 24.7 11 13.1 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0.7 0.2 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

I 

 
 
 

Appendix I – Year 2027 Build Capacity 
Analysis 

  



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard/Driveway A 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 56 0 26 13 0 28 28 1803 4 9 1110 48
Future Vol, veh/h 56 0 26 13 0 28 28 1803 4 9 1110 48
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length 150 - 0 - - - 50 - - - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 61 0 28 14 0 30 30 1960 4 10 1207 52

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2071 - 603 2523 3299 980 1259 0 0 1964 0 0
          Stage 1 1226 - - 2021 2021 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 845 - - 502 1278 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 - 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 - - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 - - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 - 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *481 0 *753 *164 21 *635 527 - - 326 - -
          Stage 1 *355 0 - *158 242 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 0 - *773 412 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *418 - *753 *144 19 *635 527 - - 326 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *418 - - *144 19 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *344 - - *149 228 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *585 - - *722 400 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v13.45 18.8 0.19 0.13
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 EBLn2WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 527 - - 418 753 305 326 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.058 - - 0.146 0.038 0.146 0.03 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.2 - - 15.1 10 18.8 16.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C A C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - 0.5 0.1 0.5 0.1 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 8 0 3 30 0 64 5 1772 11 16 1103 6
Future Vol, veh/h 8 0 3 30 0 64 5 1772 11 16 1103 6
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 9 0 3 33 0 70 5 1926 12 17 1199 7

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2015 3183 599 2457 3183 969 1205 0 0 1938 0 0
          Stage 1 1234 1234 - 1943 1943 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 781 1949 - 514 1240 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *455 26 *746 *165 26 *666 584 - - 295 - -
          Stage 1 *367 449 - *151 238 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *683 236 - *766 446 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *380 24 *746 *153 24 *666 584 - - 295 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *380 24 - *153 24 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *346 423 - *149 236 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *606 234 - *717 419 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v13.43 18.63 0.03 0.26
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 584 - - 439 153 666 295 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.009 - - 0.027 0.213 0.104 0.059 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 11.2 - - 13.4 34.8 11 18 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - B D B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0.8 0.3 0.2 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1772 0 6 1129 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1772 0 6 1129 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1926 0 7 1227 1

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2011 3166 614 2430 3167 963 1228 0 0 1926 0 0
          Stage 1 1240 1240 - 1926 1926 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 770 1926 - 504 1241 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *515 29 *753 *194 29 *674 549 - - 289 - -
          Stage 1 *345 433 - *147 236 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 236 - *773 432 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *501 28 *753 *189 28 *674 549 - - 289 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *501 28 - *189 28 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *338 423 - *147 236 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *688 236 - *754 422 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v11.01 16.49 0 0.09
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 549 - - 601 321 289 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.004 0.024 0.023 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 0 - - 11 16.5 17.7 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 0.1 0.1 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 23 2 40 2 0 16 45 1742 14 16 1059 54
Future Vol, veh/h 23 2 40 2 0 16 45 1742 14 16 1059 54
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 25 2 43 2 0 17 49 1893 15 17 1151 59

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2041 3192 576 2488 3236 947 1210 0 0 1909 0 0
          Stage 1 1186 1186 - 1991 1991 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 855 2007 - 496 1245 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *345 22 *793 *128 20 *674 477 - - 297 - -
          Stage 1 *295 396 - *128 214 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *692 209 - *813 368 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *284 19 *793 *92 17 *674 477 - - 297 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *284 19 - *92 17 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *277 372 - *115 192 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *605 188 - *719 347 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v22.63 14.57 0.34 0.25
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 477 - - 274 396 297 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.103 - - 0.258 0.049 0.059 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 13.4 - - 22.6 14.6 17.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 1 0.2 0.2 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard/Driveway A 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 35 0 48 11 0 8 25 1280 8 25 1742 52
Future Vol, veh/h 35 0 48 11 0 8 25 1280 8 25 1742 52
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length 150 - 0 - - - 50 - - - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 38 0 52 12 0 9 27 1391 9 27 1893 57

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2559 - 947 2262 3454 700 1950 0 0 1400 0 0
          Stage 1 1948 - - 1450 1450 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 611 - - 812 2004 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 - 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 - - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 - - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 - 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *77 0 *674 *143 10 *753 279 - - 437 - -
          Stage 1 *140 0 - *231 331 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 0 - *692 210 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *62 - *674 *108 8 *753 279 - - 437 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *62 - - *108 8 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *127 - - *209 299 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *689 - - *577 189 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v60.79 29.36 0.37 0.19
HCM LOS F D

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 EBLn2WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 279 - - 62 674 168 437 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.098 - - 0.613 0.077 0.123 0.062 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 19.3 - - 129.4 10.8 29.4 13.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - F B D B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 2.6 0.3 0.4 0.2 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 0 11 24 0 18 2 1274 25 46 1758 7
Future Vol, veh/h 9 0 11 24 0 18 2 1274 25 46 1758 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 10 0 12 26 0 20 2 1385 27 50 1911 8

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2569 3427 955 2267 3421 706 1918 0 0 1412 0 0
          Stage 1 2011 2011 - 1403 1403 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 558 1416 - 864 2018 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *156 15 *666 *326 15 *746 304 - - 443 - -
          Stage 1 *130 215 - *265 362 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *766 355 - *683 213 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *134 13 *666 *282 14 *746 304 - - 443 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *134 13 - *282 14 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *115 191 - *264 359 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *740 353 - *595 189 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v21.61 15.15 0.03 0.36
HCM LOS C C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 304 - - 238 282 746 443 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.007 - - 0.091 0.092 0.026 0.113 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 16.9 - - 21.6 19 10 14.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C C A B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.3 0.3 0.1 0.4 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1283 3 5 1794 0
Future Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1283 3 5 1794 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1395 3 5 1950 0

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2530 3370 975 2198 3368 699 1950 0 0 1398 0 0
          Stage 1 1961 1961 - 1407 1407 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 569 1409 - 791 1961 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *152 17 *674 *335 17 *753 279 - - 438 - -
          Stage 1 *137 224 - *251 350 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 349 - *692 224 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *146 16 *674 *324 16 *753 279 - - 438 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *146 16 - *324 16 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *135 221 - *246 343 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *752 342 - *682 221 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v25.26 11.68 0.07 0.04
HCM LOS D B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 279 - - 182 546 438 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.02 - - 0.024 0.014 0.012 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 18.2 - - 25.3 11.7 13.3 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - D B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2027 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 11 1 31 3 0 27 26 1269 10 19 1752 29
Future Vol, veh/h 11 1 31 3 0 27 26 1269 10 19 1752 29
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 12 1 34 3 0 29 28 1379 11 21 1904 32

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2554 3392 952 2239 3413 690 1936 0 0 1390 0 0
          Stage 1 1946 1946 - 1436 1436 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 608 1447 - 804 1977 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *144 16 *674 *304 15 *753 285 - - 443 - -
          Stage 1 *141 229 - *238 337 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 332 - *692 218 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *118 13 *674 *231 13 *753 285 - - 443 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *118 13 - *231 13 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *135 218 - *214 304 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *669 299 - *624 208 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v28.14 11.19 0.38 0.14
HCM LOS D B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 285 - - 202 614 443 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.099 - - 0.232 0.053 0.047 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 19 - - 28.1 11.2 13.5 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - D B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0.9 0.2 0.1 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

J 

 
 
 

Appendix J – Year 2032 No Build Capacity 
Analysis 

  



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.6

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 59 27 30 1828 1148 50
Future Vol, veh/h 59 27 30 1828 1148 50
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 0 50 - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 64 29 33 1987 1248 54

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2108 624 1302 0 - 0
          Stage 1 1248 - - - - -
          Stage 2 860 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 5.74 7.14 5.34 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.64 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.04 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 3.92 3.12 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *379 *753 498 - - -
          Stage 1 *378 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *354 *753 498 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *322 - - - - -
          Stage 1 *353 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v16.11 0.21 0
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 EBLn2 SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 498 - 322 753 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.065 - 0.199 0.039 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.7 - 18.9 10 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - C A - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - 0.7 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 0 3 0 0 1 5 1857 2 5 1143 7
Future Vol, veh/h 9 0 3 0 0 1 5 1857 2 5 1143 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 10 0 3 0 0 1 5 2018 2 5 1242 8

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2072 3285 621 2538 3291 1010 1250 0 0 2021 0 0
          Stage 1 1253 1253 - 2030 2030 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 818 2032 - 508 1261 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *498 23 *746 *180 23 *626 550 - - 311 - -
          Stage 1 *354 438 - *166 249 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *642 248 - *766 434 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *483 23 *746 *174 22 *626 550 - - 311 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *483 23 - *174 22 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *348 431 - *164 246 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *635 246 - *749 426 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v11.96 10.76 0.03 0.07
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 550 - - 530 626 311 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.01 - - 0.025 0.002 0.017 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 11.6 - - 12 10.8 16.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - B B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 0 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1846 0 7 1139 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1846 0 7 1139 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 2007 0 8 1238 1

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2056 3260 619 2517 3261 1003 1239 0 0 2007 0 0
          Stage 1 1253 1253 - 2007 2007 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 803 2007 - 510 1254 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *482 27 *753 *216 27 *635 541 - - 304 - -
          Stage 1 *337 425 - *163 247 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 247 - *773 425 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *467 26 *753 *210 26 *635 541 - - 304 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *467 26 - *210 26 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *329 415 - *163 247 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *647 247 - *752 414 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v11.27 15.82 0 0.1
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 541 - - 576 340 304 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.004 0.022 0.025 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 0 - - 11.3 15.8 17.1 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 0.1 0.1 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 24 2 42 2 0 16 47 1815 14 16 1066 57
Future Vol, veh/h 24 2 42 2 0 16 47 1815 14 16 1066 57
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 26 2 46 2 0 17 51 1973 15 17 1159 62

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2085 3284 579 2574 3330 986 1221 0 0 1988 0 0
          Stage 1 1193 1193 - 2075 2075 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 891 2090 - 499 1255 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *435 21 *793 *137 19 *635 470 - - 313 - -
          Stage 1 *291 392 - *139 222 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 217 - *813 364 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *356 18 *793 *97 16 *635 470 - - 313 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *356 18 - *97 16 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *274 370 - *124 198 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *565 193 - *720 343 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v21.53 14.65 0.34 0.24
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 470 - - 291 393 313 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.109 - - 0.254 0.05 0.055 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 13.6 - - 21.5 14.6 17.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.4 - - 1 0.2 0.2 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBR NBL NBT SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 37 50 26 1324 1780 55
Future Vol, veh/h 37 50 26 1324 1780 55
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - None - None - None
Storage Length 150 0 50 - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # 0 - - 0 0 -
Grade, % 0 - - 0 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 40 54 28 1439 1935 60

Major/Minor Minor2 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2567 967 1995 0 - 0
          Stage 1 1935 - - - - -
          Stage 2 632 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 5.74 7.14 5.34 - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 6.64 - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.04 - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 3.92 3.12 - - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *105 *674 260 - - -
          Stage 1 *176 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *733 - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 - - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *93 *674 260 - - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *138 - - - - -
          Stage 1 *157 - - - - -
          Stage 2 *733 - - - - -

Approach EB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v23.87 0.39 0
HCM LOS C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT EBLn1 EBLn2 SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 260 - 138 674 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.109 - 0.292 0.081 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 20.5 - 41.5 10.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - E B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.4 - 1.1 0.3 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 0 12 2 0 0 2 1328 2 3 1834 8
Future Vol, veh/h 10 0 12 2 0 0 2 1328 2 3 1834 8
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 11 0 13 2 0 0 2 1443 2 3 1993 9

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2582 3450 997 2253 3458 723 2002 0 0 1446 0 0
          Stage 1 2000 2000 - 1449 1449 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 582 1450 - 804 2009 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *314 21 *626 *424 20 *706 321 - - 506 - -
          Stage 1 *178 261 - *321 403 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *724 403 - *642 257 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *310 21 *626 *410 20 *706 321 - - 506 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *310 21 - *410 20 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *177 259 - *319 400 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *720 400 - *625 256 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v13.92 13.83 0.02 0.02
HCM LOS B B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 321 - - 428 410 506 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.007 - - 0.056 0.005 0.006 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 16.3 - - 13.9 13.8 12.2 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - B B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.2 0 0 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1311 3 5 1846 0
Future Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1311 3 5 1846 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1425 3 5 2007 0

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2598 3457 1003 2251 3455 714 2007 0 0 1428 0 0
          Stage 1 2017 2017 - 1438 1438 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 581 1439 - 813 2017 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *175 15 *635 *422 15 *753 304 - - 421 - -
          Stage 1 *159 243 - *237 336 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 336 - *652 243 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *168 15 *635 *409 15 *753 304 - - 421 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *168 15 - *409 15 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *157 240 - *233 330 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *754 330 - *642 240 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v22.84 11 0.06 0.04
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 304 - - 206 607 421 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.018 - - 0.021 0.013 0.013 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 17 - - 22.8 11 13.7 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 09/28/2023

Corporate Place - Year 2032 No Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection

Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR

Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 12 1 33 3 0 28 27 1296 11 20 1802 31
Future Vol, veh/h 12 1 33 3 0 28 27 1296 11 20 1802 31
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 13 1 36 3 0 30 29 1409 12 22 1959 34

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2

Conflicting Flow All 2624 3482 979 2295 3503 704 1992 0 0 1421 0 0
          Stage 1 2002 2002 - 1467 1467 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 622 1479 - 828 2036 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *163 14 *635 *379 13 *753 311 - - 425 - -
          Stage 1 *165 249 - *224 323 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *773 319 - *652 236 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *135 12 *635 *284 12 *753 311 - - 425 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *135 12 - *284 12 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *156 236 - *203 293 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *672 288 - *581 224 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB

HCM Control Delay, s/v27.85 10.85 0.36 0.15
HCM LOS D B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR

Capacity (veh/h) 311 - - 207 649 425 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.094 - - 0.242 0.052 0.051 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 17.8 - - 27.9 10.8 13.9 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - D B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0.9 0.2 0.2 - -

Notes

~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



Toll Brothers Uptown 
Toll Brothers Apartment Living 

K 

 
 
 

Appendix K – Year 2032 Build Capacity 
Analysis 



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard/Driveway A 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 59 0 27 13 0 28 30 1892 4 9 1164 50
Future Vol, veh/h 59 0 27 13 0 28 30 1892 4 9 1164 50
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length 150 - 0 - - - 50 - - - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 64 0 29 14 0 30 33 2057 4 10 1265 54

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2173 - 633 2650 3463 1030 1320 0 0 2061 0 0
          Stage 1 1285 - - 2124 2124 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 888 - - 526 1339 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 - 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 - - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 - - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 - 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *379 0 *753 *120 13 *635 487 - - 279 - -
          Stage 1 *317 0 - *124 206 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 0 - *773 382 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *321 - *753 *102 12 *635 487 - - 279 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *321 - - *102 12 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *303 - - *116 192 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *579 - - *708 364 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v16.15 23.42 0.2 0.14
HCM LOS C C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 EBLn2WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 487 - - 321 753 240 279 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.067 - - 0.2 0.039 0.186 0.035 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.9 - - 19 10 23.4 18.4 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C A C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.2 - - 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.1 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.9

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 9 0 3 30 0 64 5 1861 11 16 1156 7
Future Vol, veh/h 9 0 3 30 0 64 5 1861 11 16 1156 7
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 10 0 3 33 0 70 5 2023 12 17 1257 8

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2111 3337 628 2577 3339 1017 1264 0 0 2035 0 0
          Stage 1 1291 1291 - 2040 2040 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 820 2046 - 537 1299 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *367 17 *746 *124 17 *626 540 - - 304 - -
          Stage 1 *329 417 - *162 245 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *642 243 - *766 413 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *304 16 *746 *115 16 *626 540 - - 304 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *304 16 - *115 16 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *310 394 - *160 243 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *565 240 - *719 390 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v15.47 23.19 0.03 0.24
HCM LOS C C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 540 - - 357 115 626 304 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.01 - - 0.037 0.283 0.111 0.057 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 11.7 - - 15.5 48.2 11.5 17.6 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C E B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.1 1.1 0.4 0.2 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1861 0 7 1182 1
Future Vol, veh/h 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 1861 0 7 1182 1
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 1 0 1 3 0 4 0 2023 0 8 1285 1

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2109 3323 642 2552 3324 1011 1286 0 0 2023 0 0
          Stage 1 1300 1300 - 2023 2023 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 809 2023 - 529 1301 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *482 23 *753 *197 23 *635 509 - - 296 - -
          Stage 1 *308 401 - *157 241 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 241 - *773 400 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *467 22 *753 *192 22 *635 509 - - 296 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *467 22 - *192 22 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *300 391 - *157 241 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *647 241 - *752 390 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v11.27 16.56 0 0.1
HCM LOS B C

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 509 - - 576 319 296 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio - - - 0.004 0.024 0.026 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 0 - - 11.3 16.6 17.5 - -
HCM Lane LOS A - - B C C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0 0.1 0.1 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build AM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.8

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 24 2 42 2 0 16 47 1830 14 16 1109 57
Future Vol, veh/h 24 2 42 2 0 16 47 1830 14 16 1109 57
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 26 2 46 2 0 17 51 1989 15 17 1205 62

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2138 3347 603 2609 3393 995 1267 0 0 2004 0 0
          Stage 1 1240 1240 - 2091 2091 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 898 2107 - 518 1302 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *482 21 *753 *170 18 *635 521 - - 305 - -
          Stage 1 *345 433 - *134 217 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 212 - *773 400 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *399 18 *753 *122 16 *635 521 - - 305 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *399 18 - *122 16 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *326 408 - *121 195 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *572 191 - *681 377 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v20.92 13.72 0.31 0.24
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 521 - - 299 432 305 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.098 - - 0.247 0.045 0.057 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 12.7 - - 20.9 13.7 17.5 - -
HCM Lane LOS B - - C B C - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 1 0.1 0.2 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



1: Arizona Avenue & Grace Boulevard/Driveway A 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 2.4

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 37 0 50 11 0 8 26 1342 8 25 1826 55
Future Vol, veh/h 37 0 50 11 0 8 26 1342 8 25 1826 55
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length 150 - 0 - - - 50 - - - - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 40 0 54 12 0 9 28 1459 9 27 1985 60

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2679 - 992 2368 3618 734 2045 0 0 1467 0 0
          Stage 1 2039 - - 1520 1520 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 640 - - 848 2099 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 - 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 - - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 - - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 - 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *69 0 *635 *136 7 *714 286 - - 473 - -
          Stage 1 *151 0 - *263 354 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *733 0 - *652 214 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *56 - *635 *102 6 *714 286 - - 473 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *56 - - *102 6 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *137 - - *237 319 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *652 - - *541 194 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v76.73 30.95 0.36 0.17
HCM LOS F D

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1 EBLn2WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 286 - - 56 635 159 473 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.099 - - 0.723 0.086 0.13 0.057 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 18.9 - - 165.3 11.2 30.9 13.1 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - F B D B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 3 0.3 0.4 0.2 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



2: Arizona Avenue & Driveway B 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.5

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 10 0 12 24 0 18 2 1336 25 46 1845 8
Future Vol, veh/h 10 0 12 24 0 18 2 1336 25 46 1845 8
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 195
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 11 0 13 26 0 20 2 1452 27 50 2005 9

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2691 3589 1003 2372 3584 740 2014 0 0 1479 0 0
          Stage 1 2105 2105 - 1470 1470 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 585 1484 - 902 2114 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *230 13 *626 *424 13 *706 315 - - 482 - -
          Stage 1 *139 221 - *308 392 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *724 385 - *642 218 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *199 12 *626 *370 12 *706 315 - - 482 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *199 12 - *370 12 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *125 198 - *305 389 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *699 382 - *563 195 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v17.29 13.24 0.02 0.32
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1WBLn2 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 315 - - 317 370 706 482 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.007 - - 0.076 0.071 0.028 0.104 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 16.5 - - 17.3 15.5 10.2 13.3 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0 - - 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



4: Arizona Avenue & Driveway D 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.1

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1344 3 5 1881 0
Future Vol, veh/h 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1344 3 5 1881 0
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - - 50 - 265
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 3 0 1 2 0 5 5 1461 3 5 2045 0

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2651 3530 1022 2302 3529 732 2045 0 0 1464 0 0
          Stage 1 2055 2055 - 1473 1473 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 595 1475 - 829 2055 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *217 15 *635 *442 15 *714 286 - - 475 - -
          Stage 1 *146 229 - *289 377 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *733 376 - *652 229 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *208 14 *635 *428 14 *714 286 - - 475 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *208 14 - *428 14 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *144 227 - *283 370 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *713 369 - *643 227 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v19.63 11.08 0.07 0.03
HCM LOS C B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 286 - - 250 599 475 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.019 - - 0.017 0.013 0.011 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 17.8 - - 19.6 11.1 12.7 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - C B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.1 - - 0.1 0 0 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



5: Arizona Avenue & Driveway E 01/10/2024

Corporate Place - Year 2032 Build PM Peak Hour Synchro 12 Report
Lokahi, LLC HCM 7th TWSC

Intersection
Int Delay, s/veh 0.7

Movement EBL EBT EBR WBL WBT WBR NBL NBT NBR SBL SBT SBR
Lane Configurations
Traffic Vol, veh/h 12 1 33 3 0 28 27 1329 11 20 1837 31
Future Vol, veh/h 12 1 33 3 0 28 27 1329 11 20 1837 31
Conflicting Peds, #/hr 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Sign Control Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Stop Free Free Free Free Free Free
RT Channelized - - None - - None - - None - - None
Storage Length - - - - - - 50 - 160 50 - 200
Veh in Median Storage, # - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Grade, % - 0 - - 0 - - 0 - - 0 -
Peak Hour Factor 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92
Heavy Vehicles, % 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Mvmt Flow 13 1 36 3 0 30 29 1445 12 22 1997 34

Major/Minor Minor2 Minor1 Major1 Major2
Conflicting Flow All 2677 3555 998 2346 3577 722 2030 0 0 1457 0 0
          Stage 1 2040 2040 - 1503 1503 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 637 1515 - 843 2074 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy 6.44 6.54 7.14 6.44 6.54 7.14 5.34 - - 5.34 - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 1 7.34 5.54 - 7.34 5.54 - - - - - - -
Critical Hdwy Stg 2 6.74 5.54 - 6.74 5.54 - - - - - - -
Follow-up Hdwy 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.82 4.02 3.92 3.12 - - 3.12 - -
Pot Cap-1 Maneuver *201 14 *635 *442 13 *714 293 - - 480 - -
          Stage 1 *151 235 - *272 362 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *733 356 - *652 223 - - - - - - -
Platoon blocked, % 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 - - 0 - -
Mov Cap-1 Maneuver *166 12 *635 *329 11 *714 293 - - 480 - -
Mov Cap-2 Maneuver *166 12 - *329 11 - - - - - - -
          Stage 1 *144 224 - *245 326 - - - - - - -
          Stage 2 *631 321 - *584 213 - - - - - - -

Approach EB WB NB SB
HCM Control Delay, s/v26.23 10.92 0.37 0.14
HCM LOS D B

Minor Lane/Major Mvmt NBL NBT NBR EBLn1WBLn1 SBL SBT SBR
Capacity (veh/h) 293 - - 219 641 480 - -
HCM Lane V/C Ratio 0.1 - - 0.228 0.053 0.045 - -
HCM Control Delay (s/veh) 18.7 - - 26.2 10.9 12.8 - -
HCM Lane LOS C - - D B B - -
HCM 95th %tile Q(veh) 0.3 - - 0.9 0.2 0.1 - -

Notes
~: Volume exceeds capacity       $: Delay exceeds 300s      +: Computation Not Defined      *: All major volume in platoon



ITEM  4 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. 24-053
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator 

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
 

From: Mikayela Liburd, Associate Planner
Subject: PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Storage
Request: Use Permit approval to allow a self-storage facility on a property zoned

Community Commercial District (C-2)
Location: Southeast corner of Pecos and McQueen roads
Applicant:George Pasquel III, Withey Morris Baugh, PLC

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Use Permit
PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Storage to allow a self-storage facility on a
property zoned Community Commercial District (C-2), subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
The subject site is zoned Community Commercial District (C-2). 
Zoning Code requires a Use Permit for self-storage facilities within the C-2
zoning district.
The proposed self-storage facility will be completely internalized, meaning no
exterior access will be provided to individual storage units.
The subject site is approximately 2.8 acres.

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Pecos road, then commercial
center

South Single-family residential 

East Single-family residential West McQueen Road, then vacant
parcel

Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development
(for PDP)
Building Square Footage 118,005 square feet
Max Building Height 31'
Parking Spaces Required 4 parking spaces
Parking Spaces Provided 12 parking spaces, plus 2 loading spaces
Hours of Operation Sunday-Saturday:

Office Hours: 9:00am-6:00pm
Customers with security access: 7:00am -10:00pm

Required Setbacks Pecos Road: 50 feet
McQueen Road: 50 feet
South: 56 feet
East: 56 feet

Setbacks Provided Pecos Road: 50 feet
McQueen Road: 107 feet
South Setback: 56 feet
East Setback: 73 feet

Review and Recommendation:
Staff finds the land-use to be compatible with the surrounding land-uses as
the storage-facility is internalized and provides a low-intensity commercial use that
is not expected to produce noise, odor or late night deliveries. If the site were to
be developed as a convenience store, retail shops, car wash or other uses
permitted by right in the C-2 zoning district, it would be more likely to negatively
impact adjacent residential properties.  A 26-feet wide driveway and a 25-feet
landscape buffer is positioned along the southern portion of the site providing a
total building setback of 56 feet from the abutting residential lots. 

The proposed building has two drive-in loading areas, one at the northeast corner
and the other at the southeast corner of the building, make it possible for
customers to load and unload items inside the building without impacting adjacent
properties. For the privacy of nearby residents, the east and south elevations have
very few glazing locations and site lighting is also limited on these facades.
Additionally, there will be cameras on the south side of the building. These



Additionally, there will be cameras on the south side of the building. These
cameras will monitor the drive aisle and building and will not be directed onto
adjacent properties. 

The proposed building architecture consists of split-face charcoal gray concrete
block, stucco and metal paneling and utilizes a color palette of rust as well as a
light and dark desert gray, which anchors the building to its surroundings. The
south elevation, which is adjacent to residential, employs concrete block
bump-outs, which increase in width at each iteration while the metal panel accents
maintain their size. The sense of motion created by the architecture creates a
neighborhood-friendly scale with minimal use of windows. The proposed building
architecture is aesthetically pleasing and compliments the surrounding commercial
corners at the intersection. 

Planning staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General
Plan and Zoning Code regulations. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on August 13, 2024. Six residents were in
attendance. Those in attendance had general questions and were in support
of the proposal.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition
to the request.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Use Permit, subject to the following conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with exhibits entitled
"PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Exhibits" kept on file in the City of
Chandler's Planning Division, modified by such conditions included at the
time the exhibits were approved by the City Council and/or as thereafter
amended, modified or supplemented by the City Council. 

1.

Use Permit approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval;
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of
the City of Chandler and this Use Permit apply.

2.

All mechanical equipment shall be screened from view by material(s) that are3.



architecturally integrated and consistent with the proposed buildings.
The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner. 4.
The landscaping shall be in compliance with current Commercial
Development Standards. 

5.

The applicant shall provide a contact phone number for a responsible person
to any interested neighbors or property owners to resolve any disturbances
that may occur quickly and directly. 

6.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Storage Exhibits 



E PECOS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERONIMO PL

E GUNSTOCK RD

E MORELOS ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

E BROWNING PL

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S C
RO

SS
CR

EE
K P

L

S W
ILL

IAM
S P

L

E SPRINGFIELD PL

E DERRINGER WYS B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S M
ON

TE
 VI

ST
A S

T E SARAGOSA ST

E LONGHORN CR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Use Permit to allow a self-storage facility
in Community Commercial (C-2) District

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Monterey Vista

PAD
Nantucket Village

Unit 1

PLH24-0018 Pecos and McQueen Storage ´

^

C-2

SF-33
Ranchos de Chandler

Unit 2

PAD

AG-1

PAD
Maracay

at
Pecos Unit 1

PAD
Willis Ranch

Unit II

PAD

Project Site



E PECOS RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E GERONIMO PL

E GUNSTOCK RD

E MORELOS ST

S J
ES

SE
 P

L

S B
ED

FO
RD

 PL

E BROWNING PL

S J
ES

SE
 S

T

S C
RO

SS
CR

EE
K P

L

S W
ILL

IAM
S P

L

E SPRINGFIELD PL

E DERRINGER WYS B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

S M
ON

TE
 VI

ST
A S

T E SARAGOSA ST

E LONGHORN CR

S B
ED

FO
RD

 D
R

City of Chandler Planning Division

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Use Permit to allow a self-storage facility
in Community Commercial (C-2) District

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Pecos Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Monterey Vista

PAD
Nantucket Village

Unit 1

PLH24-0018 Pecos and McQueen Storage ´

^

C-2

SF-33
Ranchos de Chandler

Unit 2

PAD

AG-1

PAD
Maracay

at
Pecos Unit 1

PAD
Willis Ranch

Unit II

PAD

Project Site



9/12/24



Pecos & McQueen Storage 
 

Southeast Corner of Pecos and McQueen 
Chandler, Arizona, APN No. 303-29-019P 

 
 

Request & Background 
 

The Applicant is requesting a Use Permit to allow for the development of this long-vacant 
parcel with a new, Class-A, internalized self-storage facility with associated 
improvements.   
 
For years, the Property has been owned by the Circle K Corporation, who envisioned 
developing a convenience market on site.  Their plans have since changed, providing the 
opportunity for this more compatible development.  The project provides an ideal 
transition between two (2) heavily traversed arterials and the adjacent residential 
neighborhood.  The proposed use will act as a buffer from these arterials, while also 
providing a low-intensity commercial use with predictable hours of operations without the 
negative aspects many other “by-right,” commercial uses contain (noise, odor, late night 
deliveries, etc.). 
 
 

Property & Background 
 

The site in question is roughly 2.8-acres of vacant land located at the southeast corner of 
Pecos Road and McQueen Road.  See aerials attached at TAB A.  The Property has a 
General Plan designation of “Neighborhoods” and is zoned Community Commercial (C-
2).  See General Plan and Zoning Maps attached at TAB B.  The C-2 district specifically 
permits “self-storage, mini-warehousing” with the acquisition of a Use Permit.   
 
 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses 
 

As noted above, the Property is zoned C-2 and undeveloped.  The Property is at the 
intersection of two (2) major arterials (Pecos and McQueen), but also abuts single-family 
residential to the east and south.  The proposed use creates a perfect buffer from the 
major roadways to the adjacent residential.  Self-storage has predictable hours of 
operation, minimal traffic generation, and lacks most of the negative aspects produced by 
many other commercial uses (noise, odors, traffic, off-hour deliveries, etc.).  The adjacent 
zoning and land uses include:  
 

• North:  Pecos Road.  PAD with a developed commercial center    

• East:   PAD for single family residential.   

• South:  PAD for single family residential.   

• West:   McQueen Road.  AG-1 undeveloped corner parcel, followed by SF- 
33 zoned single family residential.   

 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

Project Details  
 

 Site Design & Summary 
 

The project consists of roughly 118,000 square feet of new, Class-A, internalized self-
storage and associated improvements.  A copy of the preliminary site plan is attached 
at TAB C.  The project is custom designed for this unique site, providing large, 
landscaped setbacks along the south and east property lines.  No outdoor storage is 
permitted, and the building is specifically designed with only interior accessed units 
(no exterior roll-up door units).   
 
The building features one (1) basement level and two (2) above grad levels, topping 
out at 33’-4” in height, well below the permitted height.  The site is accessed from 
either Pecos or McQueen with the office located closest to the intersection.  Visitor 
parking is provided at two locations, but no parking occurs along the south property 
line.  The internal drive aisle is positioned along the south portion of the site (along 
with a large landscape setback), providing additional buffer to the adjacent residential.  
The project will also complete the long lacking sidewalks along Pecos while also 
making significant pedestrian and landscaping improvements along both road 
frontages. 

 
The project is in complete conformance with the required development standards of 
the C-2 zoning district.  Preliminary development standards for the project include:  

  

Standard Provided 
 

Building Setback 

• North –  50’-0” 

• South – 56’-0” 

• East –   56’-0” 

• West –  50’-0” 
 

 

 

• 50’-0” minimum  

• 56’-0” minimum 

• 56’-0” minimum 

• 50’-0” minimum 

 

Landscape Setback 

• North –  50’-0” 

• South – 25’-0” 

• East –   20’-0” 

• West –  50’-0” 
 

 
 

• 50’-0” minimum  

• 25’-0” minimum  

• 20’-0” minimum 

• 50’-0” minimum 

 

Building Height – 45’-0” max. 
 

 

33’-4” feet (2 story) 

 

Lot Coverage 
 

 

33.6% (41,635/123,858) 

 

Parking 
 

 

12 spaces plus 2 loading spaces 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

 
 

Site Access  
 

Access is provided from both McQueen Road and from Pecos Road.  Both access 
points are limited to right-in / right-out only.   
 
The proposed Pecos Road access driveway is located over 258’ west of the existing 
Bedford Drive – exceeding the minimum separation requirement of 150’.  This 
placement does not align with the existing median cut in Pecos Road, resulting in the 
limited right-in / right-out maneuvers as well as avoiding any conflicts with traffic 
maneuvers on the north side of Pecos Road. 
 
The proposed McQueen Road access driveway is located just over 165’ south of the 
intersection with Pecos Road.  This driveway location is within an existing right turn 
lane on McQueen Road.  We propose to extend the existing right turn lane to provide 
adequate space for vehicle stacking south of the new driveway into the storage site.  
The existing tapper will be adjusted as needed to accommodate lengthening of the 
turn lane.  What we propose is the maximum vehicle stacking we can provide south 
of the driveway, while maintaining the ability to reconstruct the lane tapper with 
sidewalk and remain clear of the existing power poles in this area.  

 
 

Building Architecture 
 

Aesthetically, the proposal focuses on two interconnected ideas: connection to the 
surrounding environment and sense of motion.  Situated on a narrow corner parcel 
immediately adjacent to residential on the south and east sides, it was important for 
the proposal to achieve program goals while respecting the privacy of the residents.  
As such, the southern and eastern façades have very few glazing locations, mostly 
limited to clerestory windows for natural lighting.  Site lighting is also limited on these 
façades.  
 
The palette of materials utilized includes a variety of concrete block, stucco and metal 
panels, which at the core feature a light and dark desert gray to anchor the building to 
its surroundings.  Split-face charcoal gray concrete block and metal paneling add a 
distinct contrast and tie the main building mass to colorful perforated metal panel 
accents, starting the idea of motion on the northern façade.  The color of these metal 
panels fluctuates, creating a sense of randomized motion.   
 
At the rental office, a rust-colored roof element picks up this motion and transfers it to 
the southern façade where the metal panel accents continue.  This time, however, the 
randomized colors are balanced by the steady growth of the surrounding concrete 
block bump-outs, which increase in width at each iteration while the metal panel 
accents maintain their size.  This “inchworm” pattern furthers the sense of motion and 
creates a neighborhood-friendly scale without the use of windows.  The idea of motion 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

creates variety at each façade, creating a bridge between visual interest and respect 
for our neighbors. 
 
 
Landscape Design 

 

Proposed landscaping consists of a variety of desert compatible trees, shrubs, 
accents, cacti with decomposed granite topping for dust control.  Tree, shrub and 
accent placement along the north and west street frontages follows a random/natural 
arrangement following the contoured retention basins in these areas.  The south and 
east landscape areas have a more linear arrangement to provide a uniform landscape 
buffer at all areas where this property abuts residential property.  Tree and shrub 
selections were made to be compatible with established landscaping in the 
surrounding neighborhood. 

 
 

Parking 
 

The primary customer parking area is located on the west side of the building directly 
adjacent to the rental office entry.  Five (5) regular parking spaces along with one (1) 
accessible space are provided at this location.  An additional seven (7) regular parking 
spaces are provided at the east side of the site near the east drive-in loading area.  
These additional spaces are provided for customer use while visiting the facility.  
Additionally, two interior loading areas are being provided – one at the northeast 
corner and one at the southwest corner.  These loading areas will provide a climate-
controlled environment as well as buffer all loading activities from adjacent properties. 
 
 
Hours of Operation 

 

Office hours are typically 9am to 6pm with extended access for existing customers 
with security access from 7am to 10pm.   

 
 

Contact Information 
 

Should adjacent resident wish to contact a development representative, they may do 
so at: 
 

David M. Brown 
Wentworth Property Company 
802 N. 3rd Avenue, Phoenix, AZ 85003 
602.875.5014 
dbrown@wentprop.com 
 

 
 
 
 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

Use Permit Criteria 
 

Ordinance Section 35-305 discusses the review and approval criteria for Use Permits.  To 
grant approval, two (2) conditions must be met: 
 

1. The request is in conformance with the general plan and its policies. 
 
Response: 
The request is in conformance with and promotes numerous policies outlined in 
the Chandler General Plan.  A sampling includes: 
 

 1.1.1 Land Use & Development 
(f)  Encourage compatible infill projects.  
 

• The project fills a long-vacant infill site with an appropriate, low-intensity use 
which will help to buffer the adjacent residential from these two (2) arterial 
roads.  

 
(h) Emphasize pedestrian and bicycle connectivity to transit facilities.  
 

• The project will complete a long missing segment of sidewalk along Pecos 
Road, while vastly improving the pedestrian comfort along both road 
frontages.  New sidewalks, street lighting, and landscaping will be 
incorporated on both frontages.  A new bus bay will also be constructed with 
this project.  

 
(l) Ensure compatible transition between residential areas and incompatible 

land uses as well as between intensity of land uses (e.g., between 
employment and residential). 

 

• The project provides an ideal transition between two (2) heavily traversed 
arterials and the adjacent residential neighborhood.  The proposed use will 
act as a buffer from these arterials, while also providing a low-intensity 
commercial use with predictable hours of operations and void of the 
negative aspects many other commercial uses contain (noise, odor, late 
night deliveries, etc.).  

 
 
 1.1.3 Design & Aesthetics 

(b)  Consider a more diverse building façade and color palette for the built 
environment.  

(f)    Continue to promote excellence in building and site design. 
 

• The project provides a diverse and interesting façade for the built 
environment.  As noted above, the palette of materials includes a variety of 
concrete block, stucco and metal panels.  Split-face charcoal gray concrete 
block and metal paneling add a distinct contrast and tie the main building 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

mass to colorful perforated metal panel accents, starting the idea of motion 
on the northern façade.  The color of these metal panels fluctuates, creating 
a sense of randomized motion. 

 
 

 1.1.4 Streets  
(e)  Discourage through-traffic in neighborhoods.   

 

• No cut-through traffic will occur with this development.  The site is fully 
contained with access provided directly onto Pecos Road and McQueen 
Road.  The use is also renowned for its lack of traffic generation.  

 
 

2. The request will not be detrimental to persons residing or working in the vicinity, to 
adjacent property, to the neighborhood or to the public welfare in general, and that 
the use will be in full conformity with the conditions, requirements or standards 
prescribed by this Code or higher as may be deemed necessary by City Council in 
any one (1) situation. 

 
Response: 
This criterion is at the heart of this request.  This is a commercial zoned site and, 
as such, could permit a variety uses that could be viewed as detrimental to the 
adjacent neighborhood.  In fact, the site was previously planned for a convenience 
store.  Many other commercial uses (permitted by right) with their associated noise, 
traffic, deliveries, and back of house activity would not be appropriate given the 
close proximity to residential.  This proposal recognizes the existing conditions and 
provides a low-impact, non-invasive use that can help to buffer the adjacent 
residential from the arterial roads.  The use is ideal and appropriate for the location.  

 
 
In considering the application, the ordinance provides several factors for examination 
including, but not limited to:  
 

1. Consistency with general plan. 
 

Response:  
As noted above, the project is in conformance with the General Plan 
“Neighborhood” designation and advances the stated goals of the General Plan.  

 
 

2. Ingress and egress to property and proposed structures, pedestrian and vehicular 
circulation with particular reference to fire protection. 
 
Response:   
Access is provided from both McQueen Road and from Pecos Road.  Both access 
points are limited to right-in / right-out only and designed to accommodate access 
for customers, emergency vehicles and refuse vehicles.  Turn templates are shown 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

on the site plan to demonstrate maneuvering clearance is provided.  A 31’ wide 
drive lane along the south face of building provides a through site connection of 
the two access driveways.  No gated access control is proposed on this site. 

 
 

3. Off-street parking and loading. 
 

Response:  
The project is in complete compliance with parking requirements.  All parking is 
provided on site.  Parking and loading areas are located in convenient and 
functional locations and are screened appropriately  

 
 

4. General compatibility of use with adjacent property and property in the district. 
 

Response:   
Self-storage is an ideal use for this location.  It creates a perfect buffer from the 
major roadways to the adjacent residential.  Self-storage has predictable hours of 
operation, minimal traffic generation, and lacks most of the negative aspects 
produced by many other commercial uses (noise, odors, traffic, off-hour deliveries, 
etc.).   

 
 

5. Impact on public services, including schools, recreation and utilities. 
 

Response:  
The project will have minimal, if any, impact on public services.  Self-storage is a 
low intensity use requiring minimal water, sewer or utilities.  No additional burden 
is placed upon the school system as a result of the use.     
 
 

6. Screening and buffering of uses. 
 

Response: 
Customer activity at this facility will be concentrated around the two loading areas 
provided – one at the northeast corner of the building and one at the southwest 
corner of the building.  Due to the proximity of single-family residential properties 
to the east and south of the Property, it was deemed best to internalize all loading 
activities within the building – eliminating any impact to these neighborhoods.  
Additionally, all vehicle circulation, parking areas and refuse enclosure are 
buffered from the residential properties with a minimum 20’ (east) and 25’ (south) 
landscape area with densely spaced trees.  The building is even further away from 
these property lines as the drive-aisle creates additional separation.  Lastly, there 
is an existing 6’ tall masonry screen wall separating this property from the 
residential neighborhoods at both the east and south boundaries. 

 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

 
7. Signage. 

 
Response: 
A proposed monument sign and building signage will be a separate submittal. 

 
 

8. Exterior lighting with reference to adjacent properties. 
 

Response: 
Exterior lighting will be provided with a combination of fully shielded pole mounted 
fixtures and building mounted fixtures.  Pole mounted fixtures will be limited to a 
maximum height of 15’ and be utilized exclusively at the parking areas and 
driveways near the public streets.  Building mounted fixtures will be provided on 
the north, east and south sides.  Lights will be mounted at a maximum height of 
14’.  All fixtures will be placed and specified to achieve zero-foot candle readings 
at the east and south property boundaries adjacent to residential. 

 
 

9. Stormwater retention and landscaping. 
 

Response: 
Storm water from the building, parking and driveways will surface flow to a series 
of connected surface retention basins located around the perimeter of the site.  
Retention basins within the street front setbacks are sized to utilize no more than 
50% of that setback area and are nicely contoured to a natural appearance. 
 
Proposed landscaping consists of a variety of desert compatible trees, shrubs, 
accents, cacti with decomposed granite topping for dust control.  Tree, shrub and 
accent placement along the north and west street frontages follows a 
random/natural arrangement following the contoured retention basins in these 
areas.  The south and east landscape areas have a more linear arrangement to 
provide a uniform landscape buffer at all areas where this property abuts 
residential property. 
 
Tree and shrub selections were made to be compatible with established 
landscaping in the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
 

10. Site and building design for conformance with the general plan and policies and 
City standards. 

 
Response: 
As noted in the Use Permit Criteria above, the project adheres to the design 
recommendations of the General Plan.  The project provides a diverse building 
façade and color palette.  This includes a variety of concrete block, stucco and 



Pecos / McQueen Storage – Use Permit Narrative – v3 

metal panels.  Split-face charcoal gray concrete block and metal paneling add a 
distinct contrast and tie the main building mass to colorful perforated metal panel 
accents, starting the idea of motion on the northern façade.  The color of these 
metal panels fluctuates, creating a sense of randomized motion. 

 
 
 
We look forward to working further with the City to complete this exciting project.   
 
Thank you 



8/24/27



ITEM  5 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. 24-054
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator 

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Mikayela Liburd, Associate Planner
Subject: PLH24-0022 The Mexicano
Request: Entertainment Use Permit approval for live indoor and outdoor

entertainment, speakers and tv screens
Location: 3095 W Chandler Boulevard, generally located at the southwest corner of

Chandler Boulevard and Price Road.
Applicant:George Cantone, Reset Studios

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Entertainment
Use Permit PLH24-0022 The Mexicano to allow live indoor and outdoor
entertainment, speakers and tv screens, subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for Regional Mall
Zoning Code requires Entertainment Use Permit Approval for live indoor
entertainment within 600 feet of the nearest residentially zoned property and
for live outdoor entertainment, tv and speakers within 1,320 feet of a
residentially zoned property
The nearest residential property is located approximately 940 feet away
Due to the restaurant's request to offer live outdoor entertainment, an
Entertainment Use Permit is required

Surrounding Land Use Data:



North Commercial  South Commercial 
East Commercial  West Commercial

Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development
(for PDP)
Building Square Footage 9,560 Square feet
Seats  414 Seats
Hours of Operation/Entertainment Sunday-Saturday: 10:00am -11:00pm 

Review and Recommendation:
The site is located in a regional commercial area on the edge of the Chandler
Fashion Center Mall, near the intersection of the 101 freeway and Chandler
Boulevard. The Mexicano will provide patrons with entertainment activities such as
disc jockeys, recorded music and TV screens.  An Entertainment Use Permit
(EUP) is required for entertainment provided outdoors with the property being
located within 1,320 feet of a residentially zoned property and if there is
entertainment indoors with the property being located 600 feet or less from a
residentially zoned property. The nearest residentially zoned property is
approximately 940 feet from The Mexicano.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on August 20, 2024. No one attended
other than the applicant and City staff.
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition
to the request.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Entertainment Use Permit, subject to the following
conditions: 

Substantial expansion or modification beyond the approved exhibits
(PLH24-0022 The Mexicano Exhibits) shall void the Entertainment Use
Permit and require new Entertainment Use Permit application and approval. 

1.

The Entertainment Use Permit is not-transferable to any other location.2.



The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.3.
The hours of outdoor live entertainment shall be limited to the following days
and times: 
Hours of Entertainment (outdoor)  Sunday to Saturday 10:00am - 11:00am 

4.

Entertainment uses shall be controlled so as to not unreasonably disturb area
residents.

5.

The establishment will provide a contact phone number for a responsible
person (i.e restaurant owner and/or manager) to any interested neighbors or
property owners to resolve noise complaints quickly and directly.

6.

The Entertainment Use Permit shall remain in effect for one (1) year from the
date of City Council approval. Continuation of the Entertainment Use Permit
beyond the expiration date shall require reapplication and approval by the City
of Chandler. 

7.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
PLH24-0022 The Mexicano Exhibits 



W CHANDLER BL

N 
PR

IC
E 

RD

N METRO BL

S P
RI

CE
 R

D

N 
FE

DE
RA

L S
T

N 
PR

IC
E 

- S
R1

01
L F

WW STEPHENS PL

S P
RI

CE
 - S

R1
01

L F
W

W TYSON PL
W TYSON ST

W DETROIT ST

W BOSTON ST

S C
HA

ND
LE

R 
VI

LL
AG

E D
R

N 
CO

RS
IC

A P
L

N METRO BL

N 
PR

IC
E 

RD

S P
RI

CE
 R

D

City of Chandler Planning Division

10
1/P

ric
e F

wy
.

Proposed Project Details
3095 W. Chandler Blvd.
Entertainment Use Permit to allow for
indoor live entertainment, speakers and
TV screens

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0022 The Mexicano ´

^

PAD
San Cervantes

ApartmentsPAD
Club Cancun

AG-1

I-1

PAD
Sunset Cove

SCHOOL

PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD

Project Site

I-1



W CHANDLER BL

N 
PR

IC
E 

RD

N METRO BL

S P
RI

CE
 R

D

N 
FE

DE
RA

L S
T

N 
PR

IC
E 

- S
R1

01
L F

WW STEPHENS PL

S P
RI

CE
 - S

R1
01

L F
W

W TYSON PL
W TYSON ST

W DETROIT ST

W BOSTON ST

S C
HA

ND
LE

R 
VI

LL
AG

E D
R

N 
CO

RS
IC

A P
L

N METRO BL

N 
PR

IC
E 

RD

S P
RI

CE
 R

D

City of Chandler Planning Division

10
1/P

ric
e F

wy
.

Proposed Project Details
3095 W. Chandler Blvd.
Entertainment Use Permit to allow for
indoor live entertainment, speakers and
TV screens

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH24-0022 The Mexicano ´

^

PAD
San Cervantes

ApartmentsPAD
Club Cancun

AG-1

I-1

PAD
Sunset Cove

SCHOOL

PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD

Project Site

I-1



E:\reset\2024\2401 Mexicano Chandler\postings\22 Entertainment Use Permit App\archive\000 Entertainment Use Permit Narrative.doc 

 

           
221 East Indianola Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 885012 
602.899.1099 
 
 
PROJECT: Mexicano Chandler – Tenant Improvement 
PROJECT NO:   2401  
CASE #  PLH24-0022 The Mexicano     
DATE:  12 JUL 2024 
 

Entertainment Use Permit Narrative 
 

Emergency Contact
Maggiore Group
14747 N Northsight Blvd., Ste 106 
Scottsdale, AZ 85260 
Maggioregroup.com
 

Seth Widdes 
Vice President of Operations 
O. 480.476.8730 
D. 480.977.1818 
seth@maggioregroup.com 

 
 

Introduction 
 
This project submission is for the remodel of a former restaurant space into the new location of the The 
Mexicano restaurant by The Maggiore Group. The interior of the restaurant will be modernized and the 
kitchen will modified to accommodate The Maggiore Group throughput standards. The exterior will receive 
visual upgrades, including newer painted steel shade structures over both patios to replace the deteriorating 
wooden ones, extended patio areas, and general finish upgrades. Parking numbers were compliant with the 
previous restaurant use, and will be unchanged and compliant with this use. 
 
The areas of the new work are: 

Existing restaurant (unchanged) 5,045 SF 
North Patio 
 Existing   1,894 SF 
 Extended  1,200 SF 
East Patio 
 Existing     570 SF 
 Extended    280 SF 
Outdoor Utility     571 SF 

     9,560 SF 
 

Contact person for any neighbors or interested residents in the event of any disturbances:



E:\reset\2024\2401 Mexicano Chandler\postings\22 Entertainment Use Permit App\archive\000 Entertainment Use Permit Narrative.doc 

 
 
 
The North Patio is to be extended 1,200 SF by extending 12’-0” from the current edge of patio, and will 
extend up to the revised retention area (see updated civil drawings). The new painted shade structure will 
utilize the existing column bases to receive new steel column groupings. Existing bases will be wrapped in a 
new painted steel facing (black) to be more related to the new design. The window wall under the North 
canopy will be slightly expanded to introduce more glass into this wall – the large bar opening as shown in 
the drawings for the North Patio is a Crown  SST-II Bi-Fold system. 
 
The East Patio is much smaller than the North, but will receive the same painted steel structure and 
treatment to the existing column bases. The patio flatwork will extend 6’-0” into the existing landscape area, 
which will be slightly regraded to establish the same retention capacity as the original design. The 3 
openings in the East patio are larger multiglide sliders – Fleetwood and the configutaion shown below.  
 

 
 
Proposed exterior materials are shown on sheet G5 Exterior Finishes 
 
General Scope of work: 

 Remodel – Old existing Majerle’s Sports Grille 
 New interior construction scope 

o Kitchen would add a hot line in front of the current hot line. The existing hot line would 
become the back prep line. This would push the kitchen food pass forward where they are 
currently showing a server area. 

o The bar area would adjust slightly. As we will add the BYO Margarita area to the bar 
facing the new entrance. 

o No change at bathrooms 
 New Exterior scope 

o Enlarge Patio space (see red one on attached image below) 
o Exterior Facelift – TBD, no structural anticipated 
o Kitchen equipment layout / cutsheets will be provided by kitchen designer 

 
 
APN:   301-65-891B 
OWNER:   
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  3095 West Chandler Blvd, Chandler, AZ 85226 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  



6'
 - 

0"

EXISTING RESTAURANT
5,045 SF

EXISTING 
OUTDOOR 

UTILITY
571 SF

EXISTING PATIO
570 SF

EXISTING PATIO
1,894 SF

NEW PATIO
280 SF

NEW PATIO
1,200 SF

12' - 0"

RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C.
221 East Indianola Avenue

Phoenix, AZ 85012
p. 602.899.1099

www.resetstudios.com

These drawings, an unpublished instrument of service of Reset Studios, LLC, and associated authors, is for use on this Project only and is prepared for use in conjunction with the authors' interpretations, observations, decisions, and administration as described in AIA Doc A201, without which desired results can not be obtained.  Alteration, reproduction, or use in part or in whole, for other purposes without the authors' expressed written consent may violate Act 17 U.S.C. par. 301 (1991).  All rights reserved. 2024 ©   

02/29/24Plan Review

stamp

PERMIT REVIEW

This drawing is an instrument and property of 
RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C., and may not be reproduced without 

written permission

N
ew

 T
en

an
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

t: 

03/01/24Plan Review
03/06/24Plan Review
03/08/24ADMIN DR
03/12/24PATIO EXTEN
03/15/24WALK IN
04/19/24DEMO
05/24/24PERMIT
05/29/24ADR REV1

G4

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
M

ex
ic

an
o 

C
ha

nd
le

r
TE

N
AN

T 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T

Th
e 

M
ag

gi
or

e 
G

ro
up

30
95

 W
es

t C
ha

nd
le

r B
lv

d,
C

ha
nd

le
r, 

AZ
 8

52
26

KEYNOTES
1

2

VICINITY

0 5 10 20 40

SITE INFORMATION
APN: 301-65-891B
OWNER:
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 3095 West Chandler Blvd, Chandler, AZ 85226
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

ZONING: PAD (PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT)
LOT SIZE: 342,538 SF (7.862 AC)
SUBDIVISION: 
CONSTRUCTION YEAR

RESTAURANT 

BUILDING HEIGHT:
ALLOWED: 36'-0"
PROVIDED: 24'-0"
CONSTRUCTION TYPE: V-B (FULLY SPRINKLERED)
OCCUPANCY: A-3 (RESTAURANT)

EXISTING PARKING DATA:
UNCHANGED

GENERAL NOTES
1 - INFORMATION TAKEN FROM FITCH ADD 
APPROVED SITE PLAN, 11/16/2001SITE STANDARD NOTES

1. ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING LANDSCAPE AND SITE 
CLEANUP, MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO  CERTIFICATE OF 
OCCUPANCY FOR ANY BUILDING WITHIN A PHASE. 

2. NO OBSTRUCTIONS TO VIEW SHALL BE ERECTED, CONSTRUCTED 
OR PARKED WITHIN THE SIGHT VISIBILITY AREA,  ALL TREES WITHIN 
THE LINE OF SIGHT WILL MAINTAIN A CANOPY HEIGHT ABOVE 6’ CURB 
ELEVATION, ALL SHRUBS  IN THIS AREA MAY NOT REACH A MATURE 
HEIGHT OVER 24”.

3. ALL PLANT MATERIALS ARE GUARANTEED FOR A MINIMUM PERIOD 
OF SIXTY (60) DAYS FROM THE DATE OF FINAL  APPROVAL BY THE 
CITY. ANY PLANT MATERIALS, WHICH ARE NOT APPROVED BY THE 
CITY PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1  OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH THEY 
ARE INSTALLED, SHALL BE FURTHER GUARANTEED UNTIL MAY 20 OF 
THE  FOLLOWING CALENDAR YEAR.

4. TREES, SHRUBS, VINES, GROUND COVER AND TURF THAT HAVE TO 
BE REPLACED UNDER TERMS OF THE  GUARANTEE, SHALL BE 
GUARANTEED FOR AN ADDITIONAL 60 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF 
REPLACEMENT.

5. ALL PLANT MATERIALS MUST BE MAINTAINED IN HEALTH AND 
VIGOR AND BE ALLOWED TO ATTAIN NATURAL SIZE  AND SHAPE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORIGINALLY APPROVED LANDSCAPE PLAN. 
SEE SECTION 1902 (6)(H).

6. PARKING LOT TREES MUST HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR CANOPY 
DISTANCE OF 5’. SEE SECTION 1903(6)(C)(4).

7. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE GRADED SO THAT FINISHED 
GRADE SURFACES OF ALL NONLIVING MATERIALS  (I.E. 
DECOMPOSED GRANITE, CRUSHED ROCK, MULCH, ETC.) ARE ONE 
AND ONE HALF (1 1/2) INCHES BELOW  CONCRETE OR OTHER PAVED 
SURFACES. SEE SECTION 1903(6)(C)(11), ZONING CODE.

8. TREES MUST BE PLACED A MINIMUM OF 5’ FROM SIDEWALKS AND 
PUBLIC ACCESS-WAYS. SHRUBS MUST BE, AT  MATURITY, 3’ FROM 
ALL SIDES OF A FIRE HYDRANT, PIV OR FDC. SEE SECTION 1903(6)(J)
(1), ZONING CODE. 

9. ALL LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE LANDOWNER OR 
THE LESSOR IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE ZONING  CODE. SEE 
SECTION 1903(6)(H), ZONING CODE.

10.THERE SHALL BE NO OBSTRUCTION OF SITE SIGNAGE BY 
LANDSCAPE PLANT MATERIAL AND THAT SUCH MUST BE 
RELOCATED AND/OR CORRECTED BEFORE THE FIELD INSPECTION 
WILL ACCEPT/PASS THE SIGN IN THE FIELD OR ISSUE A CERTIFICATE 
OF OCCUPANCY FOR A PROJECT.

11.ALL TRANSFORMER BOXES, METER PANELS AND ELECTRIC 
EQUIPMENT, BACKFLOW DEVICES OR ANY OTHER  UTILITY 
EQUIPMENT NOT ABLE OR REQUIRED TO BE SCREENED BY 
LANDSCAPE OR WALLS, SHALL BE PAINTED TO  MATCH THE 
ADJACENT BUILDING OR WALL COLOR.

12.ALL WALLS OVER 7’ IN HEIGHT, SITE LIGHTING, SIGNAGE, 
RAMADAS AND SHADE STRUCTURES REQUIRE SEPARATE 
SUBMITTAL AND PERMITS.

13.  ALL EXTERNAL LIGHTING SHALL BE LOCATED AND DESIGNED TO 
PREVENT RAYS FROM BEING DIRECTED OFF  OF THE PROPERTY 
UPON WHICH THE LIGHTING IS LOCATED

3

4

1" = 10'-0"G4
1 SITE PLAN

3095 West Chandler Blvd, 
Chandler, AZ 85226

MODIFY EXISTING RETENTION AREA AS 
REQUIRED TO PROVIDE SAME LEVEL OF 
RETENTION AS ORIGINAL DESIGN AFTER 
EXTENSION OF PATIO HARDSCAPE.

1

NEW SIDEWALK

2

EXISTING DRAINAGE GRATE AND RIP RAP -
EXISTING TO REMAIN.

3

EXTENDED DECK TO NORTH TO BE 
CREATED AS SLAB ON GRADE (ADA 
ACCESSIBLE, SEE G5 FOR MORE 
INFORMATION) - SEE G&D FOR MORE 
INFORMATION

4

5 EXTERIOR WALK IN - SCREEN WALL 
PROVIDED, SEE ELEVATION SHEETS FOR 
MORE INFORMATION

5

FIRE NOTES
1. New and existing buildings shall be provided with 

approved address identification. The address 
identification shall be legible and placed in a position 
that is visible from the street or road fronting the 
property. (IFC 505.1) 

2. Addressing shall be in accordance with City 
Standards. (FD151) 

3. Address numbers shall contrast with their background. 
4. Where required by the fire code official, address 

numbers shall be provided in additional approved 
locations to facilitate emergency response. 

5. Where access is by means of a private road and the 
building cannot be viewed from the public way, a 
monument, pole, or other means shall be used to 
identify the structure. 

6. Address numbers shall be maintained at all times.
7. Trees, when fully mature, shall not encroach on the fire 

lanes or cover any required addressing.
8. Where access to or within a structure or an area is 

restricted because of secured openings or where 
immediate access is necessary for life-saving or 
firefighting purposes, the fire code official is authorized 
to require a key box to be installed in an approved 
location. The key box shall contain keys to gain 
necessary access as required by the fire code official.
A. Buildings designed to use a “key fob” system 

shall also install a numeric keypad at the 
entrance of at least one door. 

9. The key box is to be visible and readily accessible 
from the front entrance of the building. 

10. A 2nd key box shall be installed at the riser room door 
if it is remote form the front door. 

11. Additional key box(s) may be required for large 
buildings. 

12. The top of the key box to be located no more than six 
(6) feet high on the wall and no lower than four (4) feet 
from the finished grade. 

13. Chandler Fire Department requires one grand master 
key for the building that will open all the doors, 
including the Fire Sprinkler Riser Room and the Fire 
Alarm Room. If there are multiple tenants, multiple 
grand master keys are required. 

14. The key box shall be large enough to hold the number 
of keys required for the building. Where electronic 
swipe fobs/cards are used in addition to the required 
grand master key, the key box shall be large enough to 
hold all key swipe fobs/cards and keys for the building 
or multiple boxes at the entrance may be required. 

15. A red identification sticker will be applied to the main 
entrance door. 

16. The Operator of the building shall immediately notify 
the Chandler Fire Department at 480-782-2120 and 
provide the new key when a lock is changed or 
rekeyed. 

17. Key box(s) may be obtained by going to 
www.knoxbox.com (enter Chandler when asked for the 
city). 

Revision Schedule

Description Date
Revision 1 Date 1

1

1



3'
 - 

0"
3'

 - 
1 

1/
2"

3'
 - 

0"

3'
 - 

0"

3'
 - 

0"
3'

 - 
0"

3' - 0"3' - 0"

4' - 0"

3'
 - 

0"

6' - 6"

6'
 - 

0"

1
A41

2
A41

1'
 - 

10
"

14' - 7 3/32" 3' - 10"

VIF

48' - 9 7/16"

VI
F

6'
 - 

0"

16' - 6 21/32"

1' - 0"1' - 0"

2' - 0" 2' - 0"44' - 10 7/16"

VIF

48' - 6 21/32"

002B 002A

13' - 4 15/16" EQ 13' - 4 15/16"

3' - 10" 3' - 10"

DECK EXTENSION

12' - 0"

5' - 0"

5'
 - 

0"

EQ.13' - 4 15/16"

002C

001A

C6

C6C4

C4

8'
 - 

5"

7'
 - 

6 
1/

2"

10' - 0"

7' - 5 1/4" 3' - 0"

15
' -

 5
"

C4

3'
 - 

5"
4' - 0"

28
' -

 4
"

160 SF

ENTRY
001

1919 SF

INTERIOR
SEATING

005

255 SF

BAR
003

207 SF

WAITING
002

92 SF

SERVICE
STATION

004

1289 SF

KITCHEN
006

48 SF

OFFICE
007

96 SF

HALL
008

133 SF

WOMENS (E)
009

156 SF

MENS (E)
010

803 SF

EAST PATIO
011

2948 SF

NORTH PATIO
012

120 SF

OUTDOOR BAR
013

007A

008A

C4

2'
 - 

6"
4'

 - 
6"

4' - 3"

5' - 4"

V.I.F.

16' - 8"

V.
I.F

.

11
' -

 4
 1

/2
"

V.
I.F

.

15
' -

 2
 1

/4
"

V.
I.F

.

15
' -

 2
 2

3/
32

"

V.
I.F

.

15
' -

 0
 1

/1
6"

3
A41

24
' -

 0
"

A

001B

RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C.
221 East Indianola Avenue

Phoenix, AZ 85012
p. 602.899.1099

www.resetstudios.com

These drawings, an unpublished instrument of service of Reset Studios, LLC, and associated authors, is for use on this Project only and is prepared for use in conjunction with the authors' interpretations, observations, decisions, and administration as described in AIA Doc A201, without which desired results can not be obtained.  Alteration, reproduction, or use in part or in whole, for other purposes without the authors' expressed written consent may violate Act 17 U.S.C. par. 301 (1991).  All rights reserved. 2024 ©   

02/29/24Plan Review

stamp

PERMIT REVIEW

This drawing is an instrument and property of 
RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C., and may not be reproduced without 

written permission

N
ew

 T
en

an
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

t: 

03/01/24Plan Review
03/06/24Plan Review
03/08/24ADMIN DR
03/12/24PATIO EXTEN
03/15/24WALK IN
04/19/24DEMO
05/24/24PERMIT

A10

FL
O

O
R

 P
LA

N
M

ex
ic

an
o 

C
ha

nd
le

r
TE

N
AN

T 
IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
T

Th
e 

M
ag

gi
or

e 
G

ro
up

30
95

 W
es

t C
ha

nd
le

r B
lv

d,
C

ha
nd

le
r, 

AZ
 8

52
26

3/16" = 1'-0"A10
1 FIRST FLOOR PLAN

KEYNOTES
1

2

3

4

5

6

0' 2' 4' 8' 16'

GENERAL NOTES
1. PROVIDE SHOP DRAWINGS FOR BAR.  
OWNER / ARCHITECT APPROVAL OF BAR 
REQUIRED PRIOR TO FABRICATION

HEALTH DEPT.
1. FLOOR AND COVED BASE IN KITCHEN AREAS TO BE DURABLE, LIGHT COLORED, SMOOTH, NON-ABSORBENT AND 
EASILY CLEANABLE.

2. WALLS AND CEILING IN KITCHEN AREAS TO BE DURABLE, LIGHT COLORED, SMOOTH, NON-ABSORBENT AND EASILY 
CLEANABLE.

3. T-BAR CEILINGS IN KITCHEN AREAS TO BE 2 X 4 LAY-IN WITH WASHABLE MYLAR COATED PANELS.

4. ALL EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATIONS TO MEET NATIONAL SANITATION FOUNDATION (NSF) STANDARDS OR 
EQUIVALENT.

5. ALL EXTERIOR DOORS FROM KITCHEN AREAS TO OPEN OUTWARD AND BE SELF CLOSING.

6. A MINIMUM OF 20 FOOT CANDLES OF LIGHT MEASURES 30" ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR TO BE PROVIDED IN ALL 
KITCHEN AREAS, INCLUDING FOOD PREP, DISHWASHING, AND DURING GENERAL CLEANUP.

7. LIGHT FIXTURES IN FOOD PREP AREAS, STORAGE, AND CLEANUP AREAS TO BE OF SHATTERPROOF CONSTRUCTION 
OR PROTECTED WITH SHATTERPROOF SHIELDS.

8. ALL SINKS AND LAVATORIES IN KITCHEN AREAS TO BE SUPPLIED WITH HOT (MIN, 120 DEGREES FAHRENHEIT) AND 
COLD RUNNING WATER UNDER PRESSURE WITH A COMBINATION FAUCET.

NEW ENTRY LOCATION - UPDATED FACINGS

1

REUSE COLUMN BASES FOR NEW SHADE 
STRUCTURE, TYPICAL

2 2 2 2 2

2

2

2

2

NEW COLUMN BASE FOR NEW SHADE 
STRUCTURE, MATCH EXISTING HEIGHT, 
MATCH NEW FACNG

3

PERVIOUS DECK EXTENSION - STEEL 
GRATING ALLOWING DRAINAGE TO EXISTING 
SYSTEMS - NO ADDITIONAL LOAD TO BASIN.

4

LINE OF EXISTING DECK

5

5

NEW CONCRETE POUR - DECK EXTENSION. 
FINAL FINISH TBD, MATCH EXISTING 
FINISHES.

6

6

5

7 INFIL EXISTING WALL - MATCH THICKNESS

7

7

PROVIDE FULL HEIGHT STANLESS STEEL WALL 
PANELS AT ENTIRE DISHWASH AREA, TYP.

8

8

PROVIDE FULL WOOD BACKING AT ALL 
KITCHEN WALL, TYP.

9

EXISTING SES10

10

NEW PATIO GATE.11

11

11

12 LED LIGHTS - 2700K TAPE LIGHT 2.2W/FT 
IN EXTRUSION. COORDINATE FINAL 
PLACEMENT IN FIELD WITH OWNER

12

13 OUTDOOR WALK IN COOLER - CUSTOM 
SCREEN

13

9
TYP @ 
KITCHEN

Revision Schedule

Description Date

14 4" DOWNSPOUT - RUN TO DRAINAGE 
RETENTION AREA

14

14



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2
A41

22' - 1"

5'
 - 

0"

21' - 1"20' - 10 11/16"
21' - 6 7/16"21' - 6 3/4"21' - 6 1/32"

22' - 0 9/32"22' - 0 9/32"22' - 1"

5'
 - 

0 
19

/3
2"

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

1
A41

3
A41

CONSTRUCTION EXTENSION

12' - 0" NEW EXISTING CONSTRUCTION 22' - 1"22' - 1"

5'
 - 

2 
1/

2"

4'
 - 

6 
3/

4"

22' - 0 9/32"
21' - 6 5/16"

20' - 7 1/2"

RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C.
221 East Indianola Avenue

Phoenix, AZ 85012
p. 602.899.1099

www.resetstudios.com

These drawings, an unpublished instrument of service of Reset Studios, LLC, and associated authors, is for use on this Project only and is prepared for use in conjunction with the authors' interpretations, observations, decisions, and administration as described in AIA Doc A201, without which desired results can not be obtained.  Alteration, reproduction, or use in part or in whole, for other purposes without the authors' expressed written consent may violate Act 17 U.S.C. par. 301 (1991).  All rights reserved. 2024 ©   

02/29/24Plan Review

stamp

PERMIT REVIEW

This drawing is an instrument and property of 
RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C., and may not be reproduced without 

written permission

N
ew

 T
en

an
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

t: 

03/01/24Plan Review
03/06/24Plan Review
03/08/24ADMIN DR
03/12/24PATIO EXTEN
03/15/24WALK IN
04/19/24DEMO
05/24/24PERMIT
05/29/24ADR REV1
06/28/24PERMIT REV1
06/28/24ADR REV2
07/19/24ADR REV3
09/04/24ADR REV4

A32C

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S 

-
C

O
LO

R
ED

M
ex

ic
an

o 
C

ha
nd

le
r

TE
N

AN
T 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T

Th
e 

M
ag

gi
or

e 
G

ro
up

30
95

 W
es

t C
ha

nd
le

r B
lv

d,
C

ha
nd

le
r, 

AZ
 8

52
26

KEYNOTES

3/16" = 1'-0"A32C
1 SOUTH ELEVATION - COLORED

3/16" = 1'-0"A32C
2 WEST ELEVATION - COLORED

1

2

3

4

CORTEN STEEL WRAPS AT EXISITNG 
COLUMN BASE

PATIO RAILING - PAINTED, PT-6, TYP

NEW STEEL SHADE PATIO STRUCTURE -
PAINTED, PT-6, TYP

STUCCO - SEE G5. REMOVE EXISTING 
FAILING FINISHES AND PREP FOR NEW 
FINISHES

5 PLANTER BOX

6

7 SIGNAGE - NIC

12 3 4 10 4 4 10

10 4

8 EXTERIOR WALK IN - (BEHIND SCREEN 
WALL)

9

9 SOLID SCREEN WALL - METAL PANEL 
WRAP

EXISTING METAL ROOFING - PAINT PT-5

CHANDLER NOTES
1. All roof mounted mechanical equipment shall be 
fully screened by parapet walls equal to, or greater 
than, the highest point on the mechanical equipment.

2. Solid masonry walls and gates equal to, or greater 
than, the highest point on the mechanical equipment 
shall screen all ground-mounted mechanical 
equipment.

3. Any roof access ladders shall be located inside the 
building. Roof drainage shall utilize interior roof drains 
or be architecturally integrated into the building 
design. Architecturally integrated roof drains shall 
require additional articulation beyond paint accents. 
Section 35-1902 (8)(e)(15), Zoning Code.

4. Screening shall be architecturally integrated for the 
Service Entrance Section (SES) and all utilities. All 
ground mounted equipment shall be screened from 
public view by a concrete or masonry wall with solid 
gates, equal to or greater In height than the 
mechanical equipment. Section 35-1902 (8)(e)13, 
Zoning Code.

5. Signs require a separate submittal and permit.

1 1

1

10 METAL PANEL - SEE G5 FOR COLOR AND 
FINISH. REMOVE EXISTING FAILING 
FINISHES AND PREP FOR NEW PANEL 
INSTALLATION

1 1

1
PT-6

PT-6

PT-6 PT-6 PT-6 PT-6

1

2

3

3

3

6 3

11 STUCCO COLOR 1

12 STUCCO COLOR 2
3

12 3

12 311 3

3

33

PT-5

PT-6

EXTERIOR STUCCO (OR EQUAL - PROVIDE SAMPLE)

AkroTique is a pigmented acrylic sealer designed to create a 
rustic, mottled finish similar to the timeless beauty of century 
old plaster. AkroTique offers an “Old World” look that does 
not take a lifetime to create.

AkroTique is used as an antique stain and/or sealer over 
acrylic-based, lime-based or cement-based finishes.

STUCCO: CEMENTITOUS
BRAND: STO POWERWALL CI (OR EQUAL)

COLOR: STO 16004
FINISH: STUCCO COLOR 1 - 31137, ENTRY AND 
NORTH PATIO WALL

STUCCO COLOR 2 -  31134, WEST SIDE AND 
KITCHEN

SEALER: OMEGA AKROTIQUE PIGMENTED ACRYLIC 
SEALER (OR EQUAL)

3

3

CORTEN STEEL SHEETS -SCREEN WALLEXTERIOR WOOD AT ENTRY FEATURE

TYPE: CEDAR SHIP LAP SIDING
MFR: BUFFALO LUMBER CO. 

OR EQUAL
SIZE: 1 X 6 
FINISH: SEALED

METAL WALL PANEL
3

TYPE: ASTM A588 OR A606 TYPE 4 FLAT STOCK
SIZE: TO BE DETERMINED PER SPECIFIC DETAIL
FINISH: UNFINISHED
SEALER: NONE SPECIFIED

ASTM A588 covers high-strength low-alloy structural steel shapes, plates, and bars for welded, riveted, or 
bolted construction but intended primarily for use in welded bridges and buildings where savings in weight or 
added durability are important. The atmospheric corrosion resistance of this steel in most environments is 
substantially better than that of carbon structural steels with or without copper addition.
When properly exposed to the atmosphere, this steel is suitable for many applications in the bare (unpainted) 
condition. A606-4 is a type of high strength low alloy steel that is known for its rusted appearance. It’s popular 
because it can be made into metal panels and has a rusted appearance. Corten flat sheets will not arrive pre-
rusted. Weathering steel will rust naturally when exposed to the weather.

2
EXTERIOR STEEL 
DETAILING

EXISTING METAL 
ROOFING3

PAINT COLORS

Revision Schedule

Description Date
Revision 1 Date 1

4

4



FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

1
A41

2'
 - 

6 
1/

2"

9'
 - 

0"
5"

3' - 7" 9' - 8" 3' - 3"

1' - 0" 7' - 8" 1' - 0"

EX
IS

TI
N

G

22
' -

 1
"

EX
IS

TI
N

G

20
' -

 0
"

EX
IS

TI
N

G

17
' -

 6
"

2'
 - 

4"
9'

 - 
8"

1'
 - 

9 
15

/3
2"

1'
 - 

6"
4"

13
' -

 1
1 

25
/3

2"

3
A41

CONSTRUCTION EXTENSION

12' - 0" NEW EXISTING CONSTRUCTION
4'

 - 
6 

3/
4"

22' - 1"22' - 1"

5'
 - 

2 
1/

2"

20' - 7 1/2"
21' - 6 5/16"

22' - 0 9/32"

FIRST FLOOR
0' - 0"

2'
 - 

4"

2
A41

EX
IS

TI
N

G

12
' -

 9
"

EX
IS

TI
N

G

20
' -

 0
"

EX
IS

TI
N

G

22
' -

 1
"

11
' -

 6
"

1'
 - 

10
 3

/8
"

6'
 - 

8"
2'

 - 
4"

RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C.
221 East Indianola Avenue

Phoenix, AZ 85012
p. 602.899.1099

www.resetstudios.com

These drawings, an unpublished instrument of service of Reset Studios, LLC, and associated authors, is for use on this Project only and is prepared for use in conjunction with the authors' interpretations, observations, decisions, and administration as described in AIA Doc A201, without which desired results can not be obtained.  Alteration, reproduction, or use in part or in whole, for other purposes without the authors' expressed written consent may violate Act 17 U.S.C. par. 301 (1991).  All rights reserved. 2024 ©   

02/29/24Plan Review

stamp

PERMIT REVIEW

This drawing is an instrument and property of 
RESET STUDIOS, L.L.C., and may not be reproduced without 

written permission

N
ew

 T
en

an
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t a

t: 

03/01/24Plan Review
03/06/24Plan Review
03/08/24ADMIN DR
03/12/24PATIO EXTEN
03/15/24WALK IN
04/19/24DEMO
05/24/24PERMIT
05/29/24ADR REV1
06/28/24PERMIT REV1
06/28/24ADR REV2
07/19/24ADR REV3
09/04/24ADR REV4

A31C

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
S 

-
C

O
LO

R
ED

M
ex

ic
an

o 
C

ha
nd

le
r

TE
N

AN
T 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T

Th
e 

M
ag

gi
or

e 
G

ro
up

30
95

 W
es

t C
ha

nd
le

r B
lv

d,
C

ha
nd

le
r, 

AZ
 8

52
26

KEYNOTES
1

2

3

4

3/16" = 1'-0"A31C
1 EAST ELEVATION - COLORED

3/16" = 1'-0"A31C
2 NORTH ELEVATION - COLORED

PAINTED EXISITNG COLUMN BASE, PT-6

11111

PATIO RAILING - PAINTED, PT-6, TYP

PT-5

PT-6

2

NEW STEEL SHADE PATIO STRUCTURE -
PAINTED, PT-6, TYP

3

STUCCO - SEE G5. REMOVE EXISTING 
FAILING FINISHES AND PREP FOR NEW 
FINISHES

4

1

111

5 PLANTER BOX

5 52 254 4 5

6 EXISTING METAL ROOFING - PAINT PT-5

6

4 33

5 4 4

7 SIGNAGE - NIC

7

8 EXTERIOR WALK IN - CUSTOM COLOR 
BLACK. SEE G5 FOR MORE INFO.

8

8

9 SOLID SCREEN WALL - METAL PANEL 
WRAP9

9

CHANDLER NOTES
1. All roof mounted mechanical equipment shall be 
fully screened by parapet walls equal to, or greater 
than, the highest point on the mechanical equipment.

2. Solid masonry walls and gates equal to, or greater 
than, the highest point on the mechanical equipment 
shall screen all ground-mounted mechanical 
equipment.

3. Any roof access ladders shall be located inside the 
building. Roof drainage shall utilize interior roof drains 
or be architecturally integrated into the building 
design. Architecturally integrated roof drains shall 
require additional articulation beyond paint accents. 
Section 35-1902 (8)(e)(15), Zoning Code.

4. Screening shall be architecturally integrated for the 
Service Entrance Section (SES) and all utilities. All 
ground mounted equipment shall be screened from 
public view by a concrete or masonry wall with solid 
gates, equal to or greater In height than the 
mechanical equipment. Section 35-1902 (8)(e)13, 
Zoning Code.

5. Signs require a separate submittal and permit.

1

11

PT-6

10 METAL PANEL - SEE G5 FOR COLOR AND 
FINISH. REMOVE EXISTING FAILING 
FINISHES AND PREP FOR NEW PANEL 
INSTALLATION

PT-6

10 1

PT-6

10

2

3

3

3

PT-5

3

11 STUCCO COLOR 1

12 STUCCO COLOR 2
3

1112

3

3

11

123

3

3

3

EXTERIOR STUCCO (OR EQUAL - PROVIDE SAMPLE)

AkroTique is a pigmented acrylic sealer designed to create a 
rustic, mottled finish similar to the timeless beauty of century 
old plaster. AkroTique offers an “Old World” look that does 
not take a lifetime to create.

AkroTique is used as an antique stain and/or sealer over 
acrylic-based, lime-based or cement-based finishes.

STUCCO: CEMENTITOUS
BRAND: STO POWERWALL CI (OR EQUAL)

COLOR: STO 16004
FINISH: STUCCO COLOR 1 - 31137, ENTRY AND 
NORTH PATIO WALL

STUCCO COLOR 2 -  31134, WEST SIDE AND 
KITCHEN

SEALER: OMEGA AKROTIQUE PIGMENTED ACRYLIC 
SEALER (OR EQUAL)

3

3

CORTEN STEEL SHEETS -SCREEN WALLEXTERIOR WOOD AT ENTRY FEATURE

TYPE: CEDAR SHIP LAP SIDING
MFR: BUFFALO LUMBER CO. 

OR EQUAL
SIZE: 1 X 6 
FINISH: SEALED

METAL WALL PANEL
3

TYPE: ASTM A588 OR A606 TYPE 4 FLAT STOCK
SIZE: TO BE DETERMINED PER SPECIFIC DETAIL
FINISH: UNFINISHED
SEALER: NONE SPECIFIED

ASTM A588 covers high-strength low-alloy structural steel shapes, plates, and bars for welded, riveted, or 
bolted construction but intended primarily for use in welded bridges and buildings where savings in weight or 
added durability are important. The atmospheric corrosion resistance of this steel in most environments is 
substantially better than that of carbon structural steels with or without copper addition.
When properly exposed to the atmosphere, this steel is suitable for many applications in the bare (unpainted) 
condition. A606-4 is a type of high strength low alloy steel that is known for its rusted appearance. It’s popular 
because it can be made into metal panels and has a rusted appearance. Corten flat sheets will not arrive pre-
rusted. Weathering steel will rust naturally when exposed to the weather.

2
EXTERIOR STEEL 
DETAILING

EXISTING METAL 
ROOFING3

PAINT COLORS

Revision Schedule

Description Date
Revision 1 Date 1

4

4



ITEM  6 

  

Planning & Zoning Commission Memorandum      Development Services 
Memo No. 24-050
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Zoning Administrator

David de la Torre, Planning Manager
From: Benjamin Cereceres, Planner
Subject: PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch
Request: Request Preliminary Development Plan approval for modification to existing

signage 
Location: 3999 S. Dobson Road, located at the northeast corner of Dobson Road and

Ocotillo Road
Applicant:Shirley Lam, Bootz and Duke Sign Company

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of Preliminary
Development Plan PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch for modifications to existing
signage, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning staff.

Background Data:
Subject site is zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for multi-family
development.
The original signage was approved under the original zoning case in 1999.

Surrounding Land Use Data:
North PAD for Single-Family

Residential 
South Across Ocotillo Road: PAD for

Single-Family Residential
East PAD for Single-Family

Residential 
West Across Dobson Road: PAD for Intel

Campus



Proposed Business Operations (for Use Permit) or Proposed Development
(for PDP)
  Proposed 
Type of Signage  (1)  Freestanding Sign
Sign
Material/Finish 

Masonry base with stone and stucco with  mounted reverse
pan channel letters

Illumination  LED Halo-Illumination 

Review and Recommendation:
The site is currently built, and the originally approved signage has been modified
over the years. The current request is to add one additional freestanding sign to
replace an existing water feature at the intersection of Ocotillo Road and Dobson
Road.

In addition, the applicant is proposing an open air ramada and enhanced
landscaping to replace the existing water feature. The ramada and freestanding
sign will use materials and colors that tie back into the existing development. The
two existing monument signs will be enhanced with stacked stone to reflect the
development's architecture and to match the proposed sign.  The proposed
open-air ramada will also have the same design and colors to match another
existing ramada on the site.

Staff finds the proposed signage meets the intent of the sign code, is
architecturally integrated with the building, and provides an appearance
harmonious with the buildings and the other existing signage. For these reasons,
staff recommends approval.  

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the
Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via
NextDoor.
A neighborhood meeting was held on July 18, 2024, with no one in
attendance besides the applicant. 
As of the writing of this memo, Planning staff is not aware of any opposition
to th request. 

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to



Planning staff recommends Planning and Zoning Commission move to
recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions: 

Signage shall be in substantial conformance with the Comprehensive
Sign Plan kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, File No.
PLH22-0024, modified by such conditions included at the time the exhibit was
approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended,
modified or supplemented by the Chandler City Council. 
 

1.

Signs shall be designated in coordination with landscape plans, planting
materials, storm water retention requirements, and utility pedestals, so as not
to create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required
landscape materials. 

2.

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 
Narrative 
Comprehensive Sign Program 



S D
OB

SO
N 

RD

SW JACARANDA PW

W OCOTILLO RD

S P
EC

AN
 D

R

W OLIVE WY

S JOJOBA WY
S HOLLYHOCK PL

S BALBOA WY

W YOSEMITE PL

W PERIWINKLE WY

W MYRTLE DR
W REDWOOD DR

S CLUBHOUSE DR

W GLACIER WY

W KAIBAB DR

W PRESCOTT DR

S AMBROSIA DR

S GREYTHORNE WY

S ARCADIA WY

W ZION PL

W COCONINO DR

S SAGE DR

W GRAND CANYON DR

S PECAN DR

S A
MB

RO
SI

A D
R

S J
OJ

OB
A W

Y

S JOJOBA WYS A
RC

AD
IA 

W
Y

W PERIWINKLE WY

W OLIVE WY

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Do
bs

on
 R

d.

Project Details
3999 S. Dobson Rd.
Preliminary Development Plan to amend signage 

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch ´

^

Ocotillo
 Rd.

PAD
Montefino Village

PAD
Watermark
at Ocotillo

PAD
Catalina Shores

at Ocotillo

PAD
Balboa Point

at Ocotillo

PAD

PAD
Villa del Lago

PAD
Villa at Ocotillo

PAD
Embarcadero

at
Ocotillo

PAD
Crown PointPAD

Cypress Point

PAD
Waters Edge

at Ocotillo

PAD
Ocotillo

Parcels 18 &19

PAD
Cornerstone
Apartments



S D
OB

SO
N 

RD

SW JACARANDA PW

W OCOTILLO RD

S P
EC

AN
 D

R

W OLIVE WY

S JOJOBA WY
S HOLLYHOCK PL

S BALBOA WY

W YOSEMITE PL

W PERIWINKLE WY

W MYRTLE DR
W REDWOOD DR

S CLUBHOUSE DR

W GLACIER WY

W KAIBAB DR

W PRESCOTT DR

S AMBROSIA DR

S GREYTHORNE WY

S ARCADIA WY

W ZION PL

W COCONINO DR

S SAGE DR

W GRAND CANYON DR

S PECAN DR

S A
MB

RO
SI

A D
R

S J
OJ

OB
A W

Y

S JOJOBA WYS A
RC

AD
IA 

W
Y

W PERIWINKLE WY

W OLIVE WY

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Do
bs

on
 R

d.

Project Details
3999 S. Dobson Rd.
Preliminary Development Plan to amend signage 

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch ´

^

Ocotillo
 Rd.

PAD
Montefino Village

PAD
Watermark
at Ocotillo

PAD
Catalina Shores

at Ocotillo

PAD
Balboa Point

at Ocotillo

PAD

PAD
Villa del Lago

PAD
Villa at Ocotillo

PAD
Embarcadero

at
Ocotillo

PAD
Crown PointPAD

Cypress Point

PAD
Waters Edge

at Ocotillo

PAD
Ocotillo

Parcels 18 &19

PAD
Cornerstone
Apartments



CCornerstone Ranch Narrative 
 
Property:  Cornerstone Ranch 
Location:  3999 S. Dobson Rd.  
Property Size:  14.95 Acres    
Buildings:  42 multi-family/office buildings on site 
Total Frontage: 1,281’ along S. Dobson Road, 754’ along W. Ocotillo Road  
Total Driveways: 4 Driveways, 2 on S. Dobson Rd and 2 on W. Ocotillo Road 
 
Sign Request Details:   
 
The proposed sign is a standard reverse pan halo sign with white LED illuminated letters. There 
will be no face illumination and the signage will provide a subtle halo illuminated effect 
complimentary to residential communities.  See the attached sign details page 4 for night-time 
views.  We are requesting an identical set of letters for the permitted wall across the northward 
drive which is already in place on the site to match recently approved and installed entry signage 
to identify project for the public traveling north on Dobson. 
 
Code Review: 
 
The following Chandler Sign Code sections define and provide regulations and standards that 
would be relevant for our PDP submittal.  All project related comments are imbedded within the 
Sign Code Text below to demonstrate how this PDP request is appropriate for this project.   
 
39-7-6 Design and Integration.  All permanent signs shall be fully integrated with the design of 
the building and the site development, reflecting the architecture, building materials, and 
landscape elements of the project.   
 

A. Shall be achieved through replication of architectural embellishments, color, building 
materials, texture, and other elements. 
 

a. The proposed letters for the existing northward wall are the same as the existing 
letters and lighting for the southward wall sign. Both the wall structures and 
signage has been designed to complement the existing buildings and landscaping 
on site. * See the attached landscape plan.  

 
B. Integration shall also include the use of sign graphics that are consistent in terms of 

letting, style, color, and method of attachment as used for wall-mounted signage. 
 

a. Signage is consistent (exactly the same) as the other wall mounted signage.  
 

C. Each unused panel on a freestanding monument sign shall have an integrated or 
decorative cover until said panel is utilized.   
 

a. The current unused panel wall, once approved in this PDP process will be better 
integrated into the site’s overall plan than it currently stands as empty.  



 
D. Signs shall not exceed height standards set forth in Section 39.9.16. 

 
a. The total sign height for the lettering is 4.67 feet which meets Chandler’s Sign 

Code Section 39.9.16. 
 

E. Sign shall be located within the limits of the occupied space. 
 

a. The proposed sign will be mounted on an existing wall which is within the limits of 
the occupied space.  
 

F. Raceways shall be mounted behind letters only to match the building.  
 

a. The proposed sign is a Halo-Illuminated Reverse Pan Channel Letter sign.   
 

G. No wires can be visible –  a. No wires will be visible. 
 

H. Sign must coordinate with landscape plans, storm water, utilities, and not create 
problems with visibility.  
 

a. See attached landscape plan for the existing wall and proposed signage.  
 

I. Signs shall not exceed 80% of the length of the leased frontage or 80% of the length of 
the sign band  
 

a. The sign will not exceed 80% of the leased frontage or length of the sign band. 
 

339.7.8. Location restriction for all signs. 
A. Clearance from fire escapes, exits, standpipes.  No sign shall interfere with ingress or 

egress of any exit required by Building Code or Fire Department regulations.  
 

a. The existing wall locations have been approved by the City of Chandler and 
constructed.  
 

B. Vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety. No sign shall obstruct traffic by obstructing the 
vision of motorists as determined by the Traffic Engineer. No sign shall obstruct minimum 
pedestrian clearance required by Americans with Disabilities Act or as required by this 
chapter, whichever is greater.  

 
a. The proposed sign on the northward existing wall will not obstruct traffic or 

clearance for pedestrians.  
 

C. Signs on public property. No sign shall be erected on or over public property. 
 

a. Northward wall and sign are not on public property.  
 



339.9.2 Multiple-family development. 
A. The total permanent sign area allowed, including wall signs and freestanding signs, is one 

square foot for each dwelling unit.  However, in no instance shall the total sign area 
exceed 60 square feet, with no more than 32 square feet fronting on any 1 street.  
 

a. The owners of Cornerstone Apartments are requesting that their property be 
allowed to have two (2) 32 square foot signs both will face S. Dobson Road.   
 
The site is 14.95 acres is size. Has 42 total buildings with 1,281 linear feet of 
frontage on S. Dobson and 754’ linear feet along W. Ocotillo Road with only 4 
entrances/exits from the site.   
 
Given, the site’s odd triangular shaped parcel, density of buildings, and intensity 
(2-lane divided arterial) and limited turn lane access on and off S. Dobson Road, it 
is very important that proper signage been in place so that the public traveling 
north can safely identify the property turn into the development.   
 
It is for these reasons that we are requesting a PDP to allow both signs along S. 
Dobson Road.  Each sign is 32 square feet for a total of 64 square feet of signage 
along a frontage road length of 1,281 feet for the entire property.   

  
B. For other permitted buildings, the sign area permitted shall not exceed 32 square feet. 

 
a. We are not requesting building signage but would potentially have 10 buildings 

that could “face” S. Dobson Road.  
 

C. Sign shall not be illuminated, except by indirect lighting or halo lighting. 
 

a. Proposed signage is halo lighting only.  
 

D. A sign permit shall be required.  
 

a. A sign permit will be submitted prior to installation, if the PDP is approved. 
 



PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch 

Comprehensive Sign Program 



N

N

CORNERSTONE RANCH
DOBSON+OCOTILLLO CORNER SIGNAGE

08.28.2023

W
. O

co
till

o R
d

S Dobson Rd

Cornerstone Ranch
W1

W2

W3

Some changes have come back including
adding stone veneer onto the bases of the signs including the existing Dobson signs.
I have dropped in a PDF "3rd Revised Cornerstone Ranch Elevation and Corner Detail" showing the changes.

Please update our drawing package to reflect these changes.
See me with any questions.

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



W1

W2

Both Entry Wall Structures are
Already Permitted and Installed

Letters on this Wall Structure are
Already Permitted and Installed

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



W1W2

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



W1

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



2’-0”

4
”

8”4
”

3
’-
2
”

5
’-4

”
1
’-6

”

1
’-
6
”

21’-0”

3’-6” 3’-6”

7
’-2

”

Scale: 3/8”=1’-0”

17’-8 1/2”

New Letter Set for Existing Wall Structure

LED Halo-Illuminated Reverse Pan Channel Letters 

Block Structure
with Stucco Face

LED Transformer
120 Volt Primary to 
12 Volt Secondary

Rear Wire Way

Disconnect Switch

Primary Power in
1/2” Flex Conduit 

J-Box with Power Provided by
Customer Electrical Contractor

.063” Aluminum Returns 2” Deep

Clips to Secure Lexan Back

.177” White Lexan Backs

.090” Aluminum Face

LED Lights

6” Studs with Nuts Spaced 1”

Electrical Specifications

X
X

X
X

X
X

U.L. Required         Other                         Non U.L. Required 

120 Volts                277 Volts                    Other 

(  )1 20 Amp Circuits Necessary 2.5A            Actual Amp Load 

All Signs Fabricated as per 2014 N.E.C. Specifications

All Signs Fabricated per A.S.A. Specifications & 2018 I.B.C. 

This sign is intended to be installed in accordance with the requirements of
Article 600 of the National Electrical Code or Other Applicable Local Codes.

Sign(s) to be manufactured to U.L. specifications and will bear the U.L.
label(s). Install in accordance of the National Electrical Code.

The location of the disconnect switch after installation shall comply with
Article 600.6(A)(1) of the National Electrical Code.

Spalding Gray SW 6074 Light Texture 

Grizzle Gray SW 7068 Light Texture

Perfect Greige SW 6073 Light Texture

Adobe Integral Sand Finish

Centurion-Bucks County Drystack Stone

Cornerstone Ranch: 17.71 x 1.67 = 29.58 Sq. Ft.
Luxury Rentals: 5.81 x .5 = 2.91 Sq. Ft.  

Total: 32.49 Sq. Ft.

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



92

91
90

89

88

93

29'

2"

8"

7'-1"

21'
3'

3'

5'

27'

4"

2"

15'

9'

7'-3"

9'-8"
3'

18'

3'-6"

20'-4"

2'

SIGN WALL W/ COLUMNS

ALT. BID ITEM TRELLIS

EX. SIDEWALK

OCOTILLO RD.

EX. S
IDEWALK

DO
BSO

N RD.

NEW PLANTING, TYP.

REPLACE EX. SOD

REPLACE EX. SOD

REPLACE EX. SOD

NEW PLANTING, TYP.

NEW PLANTING, TYP.

NEW PLANTING, TYP.

93

94

N

CORNERSTONE RANCH
DOBSON+OCOTILLLO CORNER SIGNAGE

08.28.2023

W
. O

co
till

o R
d

S Dobson Rd

Cornerstone Ranch

W3

SECONDARY E.F.

PERGOLA

W3
1’-1” to Easement
18’-2” to Property Line
33’-9” to Curb

PERGOLA

13’-9” to DOBSON Easement
22’-1” to DOBSON Property Line
35’-9” to DOBSON Curb
15’-8” to OCOTILLO Easement
32’-9” to OCOTILLO Property Line
48’-5” to OCOTILLO Curb

SECONDARY E.F.
4’-10” to Easement
13’-4” to Property Line
27’-9“ to Curb

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



“Cornerstone Ranch”: 197.163” x 20.469”/144 = 28.03 Sq. Ft.
“Luxury Rentals”: 69.855” x 6.458”/144 = 3.13 Sq. Ft.  

Total: 31.16 Sq. Ft.

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.

Benjamin Cereceres
Stamp

Benjamin Cereceres
Stamp



“Cornerstone Ranch”: 197.163” x 20.469”/144 = 28.03 Sq. Ft.
“Luxury Rentals”: 69.855” x 6.458”/144 = 3.13 Sq. Ft.  

Total: 31.16 Sq. Ft.

LED Halo-Illuminated Reverse Pan Channel Letters 

Block Structure
with Stucco Face

LED Transformer
120 Volt Primary to 
12 Volt Secondary

Rear Wire Way

Disconnect Switch

Primary Power in
1/2” Flex Conduit 

J-Box with Power Provided by
Customer Electrical Contractor

.063” Aluminum Returns 2” Deep

Clips to Secure Lexan Back

.177” White Lexan Backs

.090” Aluminum Face

LED Lights

6” Studs with Nuts Spaced 1”

Electrical Specifications

X
X

X
X

X
X

U.L. Required         Other                         Non U.L. Required 

120 Volts                277 Volts                    Other 

(  )1 20 Amp Circuits Necessary 2.5A            Actual Amp Load 

All Signs Fabricated as per 2014 N.E.C. Specifications

All Signs Fabricated per A.S.A. Specifications & 2018 I.B.C. 

This sign is intended to be installed in accordance with the requirements of
Article 600 of the National Electrical Code or Other Applicable Local Codes.

Sign(s) to be manufactured to U.L. specifications and will bear the U.L.
label(s). Install in accordance of the National Electrical Code.

The location of the disconnect switch after installation shall comply with
Article 600.6(A)(1) of the National Electrical Code.

Spalding Gray SW 6074 Light Texture 

Grizzle Gray SW 7068 Light Texture

Perfect Greige SW 6073 Light Texture

Adobe Integral Sand Finish

Centurion-Bucks County Drystack Stone

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



Spalding Gray SW 6074 Light Texture 

Grizzle Gray SW 7068 Light Texture

Perfect Greige SW 6073 Light Texture

Adobe Integral Sand Finish

Centurion-Bucks County Drystack Stone

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.



Spalding Gray SW 6074 Light Texture 

Grizzle Gray SW 7068 Light Texture

Perfect Greige SW 6073 Light Texture

Adobe Integral Sand Finish

w
w

w
.b

o
o
tz

a
n
d
d
u
k
e
.c

o
m

2
8
3
1
 W

. 
W

e
ld

o
n
 A

ve
. 

|
 P

h
o
e
n
ix

, 
A
Z
  

8
5
0
1
7

(6
0
2
) 

2
7
2
-9

3
5
6

D
a
te

:
A
p
p
ro

ve
d
 b

y:

E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 a

s 
p
e
r 

2
0
1
7
 N

.E
.C

. 
Sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s

E
n
gi

n
e
e
ri

n
g 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s:

 A
ll
 S

ig
n
s 

F
a
b
ri

ca
te

d
 p

e
r 

A
.S

.A
. 

Sp
e
ci

fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 2

01
8 

I.
B
.C

.

T
h
is

 s
ig

n
 i
s 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
st

a
ll
e
d
 i
n
 a

cc
o
rd

a
n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

re
q
u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

T
h
e
 l
o
ca

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

is
co

n
n
e
ct

 s
w

it
ch

 a
ft

e
r 

in
st

a
ll
a
ti

o
n
 s

h
a
ll

co
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 A

rt
ic

le
 6

0
0
.6

(A
)(

1
) 

o
f 

th
e
 N

a
ti

o
n
a
l 
E
le

ct
ri

ca
l 
C
o
d
e
.

LI
S
TE

D

T
h
is

 c
u
st

o
m

 d
e
si

g
n
 i
s 

th
e
 e

x
cl

u
si

ve
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y 
o
f 

B
o
o
tz

 &
 D

u
k
e
 S

ig
n
 C

o
. 

o
f 

P
h
x
, 

A
Z
.

It
 m

a
y 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
ro

d
u
ce

d
, 

co
p
ie

d
, 

o
r 

e
x
h
ib

it
e
d
 i
n
 a

n
y 

fa
sh

io
n
.

Benjamin Cereceres
Stamp

Benjamin Cereceres
Stamp

Benjamin Cereceres
Stamp

Benjamin Cereceres
Stamp



10'-10"

6"

6"

4"

4"

10" 2" 5"

6'-8"
4'4"

2', TYP.

CORNERSTONE RANCH
LUXURY RENTALS

1'-8"

6"

SIGN BLADE BASE
CMU CAP
MASONRY BASE
WITH STONE
VENEER

METAL (3-D) LETTERS

8"

4'
1"

1'-8", TYP.

MASONRY BASE WITH
STUCCO FINISH (TO
MATCH EX. PERGOLA
@ SALES OFFICE)

WOOD BEAMS TO MATCH
MATERIAL & PAINT COLOR
OF EXISTING PERGOLA
BEAMS @ SALES OFFICE

3'-2", TYP.

3', TYP.

21'

3' TYP.

7'-1"

4"

EXTEND VENEER 4"
BELOW F.G.

STONE VENEER TO BE: CENTURION,
BUCKS COUNTY DRYSTACK STONE

4"
COLUMN CORNICE
WITH STUCCO FINISH
(TO MATCH EX.
PERGOLA @ SALES
OFFICE)

92

91
90

89

88

93

93

94

OCOTILL
O RD.EX. SIDEWALK

DOBSON RD.

65' R/W

22'-10"

38'-4"
38'-11"

34'-5"

8'
PUE

65' R/W

8' PUE

30'
30'

Concrete Header - match ex.

Trellis - see detail 1, this sheet

Sign Columns - see detail 2, this sheet

KEYNOTES

Sign Walls - see detail 2, this sheet

Ex. Concrete Header - protect in place or replace if damaged

Concrete Paving - integral color Davis 'Adobe', sand (acid-etch) finish

Planting Area - see L2

Site Visibility Triangle

8"

3'

9'

5'-1"

9'-8"
18'

3'-6"

20'-4"

2'
5'

3'-2"

3'
21'2"

4"

2"

29'

26'-11"

15'
7'-1"

t 480-991-3384                      
6115 N Cattletrack Rd  Scottsdale AZ 85250

gbtwo.com

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E 

RA
NC

H
39

99
 S

 D
OB

SO
N 

RD
CH

AN
DL

ER
, A

Z 
85

24
8

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

06/03/2024

06/03/24

0' 5' 10' 20' N

HARDSCAPE
KEYNOTE &

LAYOUT PLAN
- HARDSCAPE

DETAILS

L1
2 SIGN - ELEVATION

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"

1 TRELLIS - ELEVATION
SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"

NARRATIVE:
Goal: To create an updated corner monument for Cornerstone Ranch in keeping
with recent property upgrades.
· Replace aged water feature signage that blocks corner off from the

neighborhood
· Provide a destination for apartment residents when walking pets
· Upgrade the planting while maintaining mature existing trees
· Repeat architectural details from the sales center

Proposed trellis structure encroaches into Dobson Road and Ocotillo Road 50-foot
setback - we are asking for approval on this deviation since we are enhancing the
corner through landscaping, pedestrian features and signage.

3 LAYOUT PLAN
SCALE 3/16" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
36211

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAH M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANBECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Expires 06/30/25



PLANT LEGEND

TREES BOTANICAL NAME
COMMON NAME

SIZE QTY.

SHRUBS/GROUNDCOVERS

Existing Tree to Remain

White Iceberg Shrub Rose
5 Gal 9Rosa spp. 'Iceberg

Low-break multi

Eremophila hygrophana Blue Bells™
Blue Bells Eremophila 

5 Gal 23

Olneya tesota
Desert Ironwood

48" Box 1

W Wedelia trilobata (syn. Sphalgneticola)
Yellow Dot

5 Gal 64

ACCENTS

New Turf (Midiron Sod)

Decomposed granite, match color and size of
pool project - 2" deep  (all new planting areas)

OTHER

Irrigation: Adjust existing irrigation to ensure full coverage to all
new plant materials and turf extents

Lantana montevidensis 'New Gold'
New Gold Lantana

5 Gal 27

Agave angustifolia 'Marginata'
Caribbean Agave

5 Gal 7

Pachycereus schottii
Senita

24" Box 2

Muhlenbergia capillaris 'Regal Mist'
Regal Mist Pink Muhly Grass

5 Gal 37

3,200 sq. ft

6,095 sq. ft

DIMENSIONS APPROX. TONNAGEBOULDER

4' X 3' X 3' 2 TONSC 9

QUANTITY

92

91
90

89

88

93

93

94

C

C
C C

C

C

C

W
W

W
W W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W W
W

W
W

W

W W

W W
W W

W W
W W

W

W
W

W
W W

W
W

W
W

W
W W

W

W
W

W

W
C C

W

WW
WW

WW
W

WW
W

W

W

OCOTILLO RD.EX. SIDEWALK

DOBSON RD.

65' R/W

8'
PUE

65' R/W

8' PUE

USE BOULDERS TO RETAIN
GRADE AS NEEDED TO
PROTECT EX. PALM TO REMAIN

BOULDER
RETAINING WALL

CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

4" MIN.
6"

EX. GRADE

SURFACE SELECT GRANITE
BOULDERS

SET BOULDERS APPROXIMATELY
1
3 INTO EARTH TO RESEMBLE
NATURAL FORMATION

2" DECOMPOSED
GRANITE MULCH

FINISH GRADE

t 480-991-3384                      
6115 N Cattletrack Rd  Scottsdale AZ 85250

gbtwo.com

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E 

RA
NC

H
39

99
 S

 D
OB

SO
N 

RD
CH

AN
DL

ER
, A

Z 
85

24
8

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

06/03/2024

06/03/24

0' 5' 10' 20' N

PLANTING
PLAN

L2

1 BOULDER RETAINING WALL
SCALE 1/2" = 1'-0" 2 LANDSCAPE BOULDER INSTALLATION

SCALE 1/2" = 1'-0"



1/2" MAX.
PAVED
SURFACE

2"

FINISH GRADE

DECOMPOSED GRANITE

PRE-EMERGENT,
SEE SPECS

SOIL GRADE

NOTES
1.  PLANT IN SAME ORIENTATION AS ORIGINALLY GROWN.
2.  BARE ROOTS SHALL NOT BE OUT OF THE GROUND FOR MORE THAN FIVE DAYS BEFORE PLANTING.
3.  ROOT PRUNE ALL SHREDDED OR DAMAGED ROOTS.  ENSURE ALL WOUNDS TO THE ROOT SYSTEM ARE CLEAN CUT.

FINISH GRADE

SOIL GRADE - PROVIDE POSITIVE
DRAINAGE AWAY FROM BASE OF
PLANT (DO NOT BURY IN GRANITE)

MULCH PER SPECS

BACKFILL WITH NATIVE SOIL AND
AMENDMENTS PER SOIL REQUIREMENTS
AND/OR SPECS.  WATER AND TAMP TO
SETTLE SOIL AND REMOVE AIR POCKETS.

SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING
HOLE TO PREVENT GLAZING

EXISTING SUBSOIL

INTACT ROOT STRUCTURE

PLANT AT SAME DEPTH AS
ORIGINALLY GROWN

NOTES:
1.  SCORE THE ROOTBALL; MAKE FOUR EQUALLY SPACED VERTICAL CUTS 1/4 TO 1/2 THE HEIGHT OF THE ROOTBALL, AND

TWO ACROSS THE BOTTOM.
2.  POSITION PLANT FOR "BEST SIDE" VIEW AND ORIENT SUNBURN SUSCEPTIBLE PLANTS PER ORIGINAL ROTATION.
3. TOP OF ROOTBALL SHALL BE FLUSH WITH OR UP TO 1" ABOVE FINISH GRADE.

DEPTH OF
ROOTBALL

ROOTBALL

3X ROOTBALL

FINISH GRADE

SOIL GRADE

MULCH

BACKFILL WITH NATIVE
SOIL AND AMENDMENTS
PER SOIL REQUIREMENTS
AND/OR SPECS.  WATER
AND TAMP TO SETTLE SOIL
AND REMOVE AIR
POCKETS.

CONTROL RELEASE
FERTILIZER TABS PLACED
6" BELOW FINISH GRADE

SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING
HOLE TO PREVENT GLAZING

REMOVE BURLAP AROUND
SHRUB BASE BEFORE

PLANTING - IF ANY

COMPACT SUBSOIL TO
PREVENT SETTLING

DEPTH OF ROOTBALL

ROOTBALL

3X ROOTBALL

FORM SAUCER ON
LOWER SIDE OF SLOPE

TO RETAIN WATER

COMPACT SUBSOIL TO FORM
PEDESTAL TO PREVENT

SETTLING

TREE TIES

D.G.
SOIL GRADE

FINISH GRADE

BACKFILL

FERTILIZER

IF STEEPNESS OF SLOPE
CONSTRICTS SPECIFIED
PLANT PIT SIZE, VERIFY SIZE
WITH OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE

NOTE:
SEE TYPICAL TREE PLANTING AND STAKING DETAIL FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

NOTES:
1.  USE STAKING ONLY IF TREE IS UNSTABLE - SALVAGED TREES WILL NOT REQUIRE STAKING.

VERIFY ALL OTHERS WITH OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.
2.  SCORE THE ROOTBALL; MAKE FOUR VERTICAL CUTS 1/4 TO 1/2 THE HEIGHT OF THE ROOTBALL,

ONE AT EACH SIDE, AND TWO ACROSS THE BOTTOM.
3.  TOP OF ROOTBALL SHALL BE FLUSH WITH OR UP TO 1" ABOVE SOIL GRADE.
4.  POSITION PLANT FOR "BEST SIDE" VIEW AND ORIENT SUNBURN SUSCEPTIBLE PLANTS PER

ORIGINAL ROTATION.
5.  ARRANGE THE STAKES AROUND TREE CANOPY TO PREVENT ABRASION WOUNDS TO

BRANCHES.
6.  INSTALL TREE GUARD ON ALL TREES LOCATED IN TURF - SEE SPECS OR PLANTING NOTES.

DEPTH OF ROOTBALL

 1/2% SLOPE
AWAY TYP.

ROOTBALL

3X ROOTBALL

TREE TRUNKS (TYP.)

TREE TIES - SEE ABOVE

PLANT ROOTBALL

LODGEPOLE STAKE, LOCATE OUTSIDE
OF PLANT ROOTBALL, TYP. (2 STAKES

MIN. PER SINGLE TRUNK, 3 STAKES
MIN. PER MULTI-TRUNK, ADD STAKES

AS NECESSARY TO PROPERLY
SUPPORT TREE)

TIE WIRES - SEE ABOVE

TREE TIES: INSTALL ABOVE FIRST
BRANCHES AND AS NECESSARY FOR FIRM
SUPPORT (TYP.)

MULCH PER SPECS OR
PLANTING NOTES
SOIL GRADE
FINISH GRADE

BACKFILL WITH NATIVE SOIL AND
AMENDMENTS PER SOIL REQUIREMENTS
AND/OR SPECS.  WATER AND TAMP TO
SETTLE SOIL AND REMOVE AIR POCKETS.

CONTROL-RELEASE FERTILIZER TABS
PLACED 6" BELOW FINISH GRADE

DRIVE STAKE INTO SOLID SOIL 12"
MINIMUM PAST BOTTOM OF
PLANTING HOLE

BREAK UP AND LOOSEN
SOIL 1/2 THE DEPTH AND

FIVE TIMES THE WIDTH OF
THE ROOTBALL

(NOT REQUIRED FOR
HARDPAN OR SLOPE

PLANTING CONDITION)

SCARIFY SIDES OF PLATING
HOLE TO PREVENT GLAZING

COMPACT SUBSOIL TO
PREVENT TREE FROM

SETTLING

REMOVE BURLAP
AROUND TREE BASE
BEFORE PLANTING -

IF ANY

TREE TIES (1 PER STAKE):
2-STRAND TWISTED 12 GA.
GALV. WIRE ENCASED IN 1"
DIA. 2-PLY RUBBER GARDEN
HOSE

PLANT ROOTBALL

TIE WIRE TO INSIDE OF STAKES,
GROOVE STAKE OR STAPLE WIRE TO

STAKE.  CRIMP ENDS OF WIRE TO
PREVENT INJURY.

2" CLEAR
TYP.

SINGLE TRUNK STAKING

MULTI-TRUNK STAKING

NOTE:
ONE TEST TREE PIT IS TO BE DUG WITHIN THE FIRST 30 DAYS OF THE PROJECT.  COORDINATE TEST PIT
LOCATION WITH OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE. WATER TEST PIT TO VERIFY DRAINAGE CONDITIONS. CONTACT
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AFTER WATER TESTING TO COORDINATE EXTENT OF HARDPAN CONDITION AND
WHERE HARDPAN PLANTING PROCEDURES SHALL BE REQUIRED. SEE HARDPAN TREE PLANTING DETAIL.

2"
CLEAR

TYP.

PREVAILING
WIND

DIRECTION

t 480-991-3384                      
6115 N Cattletrack Rd  Scottsdale AZ 85250

gbtwo.com

CO
RN

ER
ST

ON
E 

RA
NC

H
39

99
 S

 D
OB

SO
N 

RD
CH

AN
DL

ER
, A

Z 
85

24
8

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

06/03/2024

06/03/24

PLANTING
DETAILS

L3

1 TREE PLANTING AND STAKING
SCALE = NTS 2 TREE PLANTING ON SLOPE

SCALE = NTS

3 SHRUB PLANTING 
SCALE = NTS 4 ACCENT PLANTING 

SCALE = NTS 5 ROCK MULCH INSTALLATION
SCALE 3" = 1'-0"



ITEM  7 

Planning & Zoning Commission      Development Services  Memo No. PZ
24-056
       

Date: 09/18/2024
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
Thru: Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator
From: Julie San Miguel, Senior Administrative Assistant 
Subject:Notice of Cancellation of the October 2, 2024, Planning and Zoning

Commission Hearing

Proposed Motion:
Move Planning and Zoning Commission cancel the October 2, 2024, Planning and
Zoning Commission Hearing.

Background/Discussion
Planning staff is recommending the cancellation of the October 2, 2024, Planning
and Zoning Commission Hearing due to the management of cases. 


	Agenda
	AI 6851 August 21, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_August 21, 2024 Study Session Minutes
	       ATT_August 21, 2024 Regular Meeting Minutes
	AI 6803 PLH22-0035 The District Downtown 
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet 
	I. Introduction
	II. Site, Surrounding Area, and Existing Zoning
	III. Proposed Planned Area Development
	IV. Proposed Preliminary Development Plan
	A. Site Layout
	B. Architecture
	C. Landscaping Theme and Design Considerations
	D. Entry Monumentation and Screening
	E. Development Standards
	F. Multi-Family Design Standards
	G. Circulation
	H. Parking

	V. Miscellaneous
	A. Comprehensive Sign Plan
	B. Phasing
	C. Utilities
	D. Grading and Drainage

	VI. Project Team
	VII. Conclusion

	       ATT_2022 Approved Site Plan 
	Narrative
	1 - Aerial & Vicinity Map
	2 - Conceptual Site Plan
	3 - Typical Main Street
	Typical Main Street at Retail
	Typical Main Street at Residential
	Typical Main Street at Office

	4 - Non-Residential Building Perspectives
	Sheets
	AC-6.4.0 - PARCEL 2 (Building 2B & 2C)
	AC-6.4.2 - PARCEL 2 building 2F
	AC-6.4.3 - PARCEL 1 (Building 1B)
	AC-6.6 - PARCEL 3
	AC-6.7 - PARCEL 6


	5 - Residential Building Perspectives
	6 - Colors & Materials Palette
	7 - Landscape and Open Space Character
	8 - Conceptual Master Plan - Plant Palette
	9 - Comprehensive Sign Program
	10 - Conceptual Phasing Plan
	10 - Multi-Family Phase 2 Phasing Plan
	11 - Preliminary G&D
	12 - Preliminary Plat
	202211108 District Downtown PAD-PDP-PPT Narrative-Update.pdf
	I. Introduction
	II. Site, Surrounding Area, and Existing Zoning
	III. Proposed Planned Area Development and Mid-Rise Overlay
	IV. Proposed Preliminary Development Plan
	A. Site Layout
	B. Architecture
	C. Landscaping Theme and Design Considerations
	D. Entry Monumentation and Screening
	E. Development Standards
	F. Multi-Family Design Standards
	G. Circulation
	H. Parking

	V. Miscellaneous
	A. Comprehensive Sign Plan
	B. Phasing
	C. Utilities
	D. Grading and Drainage

	VI. Project Team
	VII.  Conclusion


	AI 6825 Rezoning PLH24-0001 Toll Brothers Uptown
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Development Booklet
	PreliminaryPlat

	       ATT_Community Support
	       ATT_Traffic Study
	AI 6827 Use Permit PLH24-0018 Pecos & McQueen Storage
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps 
	PLH24-0018-air-photo

	       ATT_PLH24-0018 Pecos and McQueen Storage Exhibits
	NARRATIVE PECOS AND MCQUEEN STORAGE     (2)
	23024 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS COLOR 8-19-24 S (1)
	23024 Pecos & McQueen Prelim Site Plan 9-12-24 s
	2024.09.12 - UP Narrative - Pecos McQueen - Final - v5

	AI 6828 Entertainment Use Permit PLH24-0022 The Mexicano
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps 
	       ATT_PLH24-0022 The Mexicano Exhibits
	NARRATIVE THE MEXICANO (1)

	AI 6797 PDP PLH22-0024 Cornerstone Ranch
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	       ATT_Narrative
	       ATT_Comprehensive Sign Program
	Sheets and Views
	L1

	220902-05 (1)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	4: w1
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10

	Cornerstone Corner-06.03.24
	Sheets and Views
	Cornerstone-Corner HS-L1
	Cornerstone-Corner PL-L2
	Cornerstone-Corner PL-L3


	Cornerstone Corner-07.01.24 (002)
	Sheets and Views
	Cornerstone-Corner HS-L1
	Cornerstone-Corner PL-L2
	Cornerstone-Corner PL-L3


	PLH22

	AI 6850 Notice of Cancellation of the October 2, 2024, Planning and Zoning Commission Hearing

